City Council Agenda
Monday, March 8, 2021
7:00 P.M.
200 S. Holden
Warrensburg, MO 64093
Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone or Android device:
Please click this URL to join. https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89013053236
Or join by phone:
Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):
US: +1 646 558 8656 or +1 301 715 8592 or +1 312 626 6799 or +1 669
900 9128 or +1 253 215 8782 or +1 346 248 7799
Webinar ID: 890 1305 3236
International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kk8oubUiK
1. Call To Order
2. Roll Call
3. Approval Of City Council Minutes
3.I. City Council Minutes 2.22.2021
Documents:
CITYCOUNCILMINUTES02222021.PDF
3.II. Joint City Council And Parks& Recreation Board Meeting 2.24.21
Documents:
CITYCOUNCILMINUTES02242021.PDF
3.III. City Council Work Session 3.1.2021
Documents:
CITYCOUNCILMINUTES03012021.PDF
4. Adoption Of Agenda
5. Presentation
5.I. Fiscal Year 2020 Audit Report
Presented by Marcella McCoy, Finance Director and KPM CPAs

4. Adoption Of Agenda
5. Presentation
5.I. Fiscal Year 2020 Audit Report
Presented by Marcella McCoy, Finance Director and KPM CPAs
Documents:
CITY OF WARRENSBURG - BOARD COPY.PDF
6. 1st Reading Only Ordinance
6.I. First Reading Of An Ordinance Amending Portions Of Chapter 5, Animals, Of The Code
Of Ordinances Of The City Of Warrensburg, Missouri
An Ordinance Amending Portions of Chapter 5, Animals of the Code of Ordinances of
the City of Warrensburg, Missouri.
Presented by Chief Rich Lockhart
Documents:
CHAPTER5AMENDMENTLETTER.PDF
CHAPTER5AMENDMENTORDINANCE.PDF
6.II. First Reading Of An Ordinance Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into A Sign Lease
Agreement With The Central Bank Of Warrensburg
First reading of an ordinance authorizing the city manager to enter into a sign lease
agreement with the Central Bank of Warrensburg
Presented by Danielle Dulin, Interim City Manager
Documents:
HAWTHORNESIGNLEASELETTER.PDF
HAWTHORNSIGNLEASEORDINANCE.PDF
HAWTHORNESIGNLEASEAGREEMENT.PDF
7. 2nd Reading Of Ordinance
7.I. Second Reading Of Ordinance Authorizing The Human Resources Director And City
Clerk To Execute An Agreement For Services With GOV HR USA For City Manager
Recruitment Services
An Ordinance Authorizing the Human Resources Director and City Clerk to Execute
an Agreement for Services with GOV HR USA for City Manager Recruitment
Services
Presented by Greg McCullough, Human Resources Director
Documents:
RECRUITMENTSERVICESLETTER.PDF
RECRUITMENTSERVICESORDINANCE.PDF
GOVHRUSAPROPOSAL.PDF
8. Other Business
8.I. Resolution Accepting A Proposal Prepared By Mike Keith Insurance For Workers'
Compensation Insurance For 2021-2022
Resolution Accepting a Proposal Prepared by Mike Keith Insurance for Workers'
Compensation Insurance for 2021-2022.
Presented by Greg McCullough, Human Resources Director
Documents:

Compensation Insurance For 2021-2022
Resolution Accepting a Proposal Prepared by Mike Keith Insurance for Workers'
Compensation Insurance for 2021-2022.
Presented by Greg McCullough, Human Resources Director
Documents:
WORKCOMPLETTER.PDF
WORKCOMPRESOLUTION.PDF
WORKCOMPPREMIUM20202021.PDF
WORKCOMPPREMIUM20212022.PDF
WORKCOMPRATING2020.PDF
WORKCOMPRATING2021.PDF
9. Appearances To The Council Not Listed On The Agenda
10. Miscellaneous Matters From The Mayor And/Or City Council
11. Mayoral Appointment/S
11.I. Mayoral Appointments To Parks & Recreation Board & University Of Missouri Extension
Office Board
Documents:
MAYORALAPPOINTMENTS.PDF
12. City Manager Report
Documents:
CITYMANAGERREPORT.PDF
12.I. Big Brothers And Big Sisters Quarterly Report
Documents:
BBBSQUARTERLYREPORT.PDF
13. Director Of Finance Report
Documents:
DOF REPORT 03-08-2021.PDF
20210308 - FEBRUARY REVENUE BUDGET REPORT.PDF
20210308 - SALES TAX FISCAL_21.PDF
FEBRUARY REVENUE COMPARISON CHART_21.PDF
14. Adjourn

CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF FEBRUARY 22, 2021
A meeting of the Warrensburg City Council was held on February 22, 2021, at 7:00 p.m., at
200 S. Holden and via Zoom, with Mayor Bryan Jacobs presiding. Roll was called as follows,
Present were: Brooks, Holmberg, Lund, Kushner, Jacobs. Absent: none.
The minutes of the February 8, 2021 City Council meeting were considered for approval.
Holmberg moved to approve the minutes of the February 8, 2021, meeting. Yes: Brooks,
Holmberg, Lund, Kushner, Jacobs. No: none.
The adoption of the agenda was considered. Lund moved to adopt the agenda. Yes: Brooks,
Holmberg, Lund, Kushner, Jacobs. No: none.
Under presentations, Mayor Jacobs read a proclamation honoring Black History Month. Erica
Jones Collins, Chairman of the Diversity and Inclusion Commission, thanked Mayor Jacobs.
Jones Collins said to commemorate Black History month, several community members would
like to share their stories. Karen Levigne, a long-time member of the community, said she is
thankful for Warrensburg and being able to live during this time. Levigne said she has been
given an opportunity to grow as a black person and appreciates the educational opportunities
offered in Warrensburg. Christa Collins, a teacher in the Warrensburg School District, spoke
about togetherness. She said this is a big part of black history and black culture. Christa
displayed artwork painted by her sister several years ago that displays family and taking care of
each other. Christa said each year she tries to highlight literature in her classroom. Christa read
from the book “I Am Enough” by Grace Byers. James Collins, Warrensburg High School
student, named several recommended African American movies. Police Chief Rich Lockhart, a
liaison for the Diversity and Inclusion Commission, introduced Jarrod Peterson, a very
impressive young man who often shares his poetry. Peterson read a poem he had written called
Actors. Mayor Jacobs thanked everyone for sharing their stories.
Mayor Jacobs read an Ordinance Authorizing the Human Resources Director and City Clerk to
Execute an Agreement for Services with GOV HR USA for City Manager Recruitment Services
for the first time by title. Human Resources Director Greg McCullough said on December 14,
2020, a decision was made to request proposals for City Manager recruitment services. He said
the proposals were placed on the City’s website with a closing date of January 22, 2021 by 5:00
p.m. McCullough said by the deadline, five proposals were received. He said a selection rating
process was done by two City Council members and four City Department Heads. McCullough
said based on the overall scoring process used, staff recommends GovHR USA as the recruiter
of choice to perform the City Manager recruitment. He said the cost for services is $21,000.
McCullough said if approved, the cost will be included in mid-year budget amendments.
Chairman Pro Tem Holmberg said as he looked at the top two companies chosen, there was
only a one-point difference between the two firms. He said since this is an important decision,
he would like to look deeper into the scoring process. City Counselor Doug Harris said the City
Council is welcome to look at the top two companies. Council member Kushner said he is torn
about making a change now since four department heads and two City Council members have
already scored the firms. Mayor Jacobs said he is comfortable with the scoring of those six
individuals but knows the importance of this decision. After further discussion, Council member
Lund said the other City Council members could look at the information provided since the

ratings were so close. Harris said if there is a change in the selection of firms, the public will
need to be notified through the City Clerk’s office, prior to the meeting. When asked about a
special City Council meeting by Council member Lund, Harris responded that could be done.
In Other Business was Consideration of Mayoral Appointments. Mayor Jacobs said he would
like to recommend John Paul Suchecki to the Parks and Recreation Board. Mayor Jacobs said
he spoke with him and believes he will be a good addition to the Parks and Recreation Board.
Lund moved to approve. Yes: Brooks, Holmberg, Lund, Kushner, Jacobs. No: none. Carried
unanimously.
In Miscellaneous Matters, Community Development Director Barbara Carroll said the Love
What’s Local Committee would like to remind everyone about Restaurant Week thru March 7,
2021 in Warrensburg. She said it is especially important this year to support our local
restaurants due to COVID this past year. Carroll said Central Bank has agreed to be the
corporate sponsor.
In Miscellaneous Matters, Interim City Manager Danielle Dulin announced Warrensburg
Convention and Visitor’s Bureau Director Marcy Barnhart has been awarded the marketing
match grant for $21,739. Dulin said the City will be distributing information for community groups
concerning the upcoming General Obligation Issue on the ballot for the April 6, 2021, Municipal
Election.
As there was no further business, the meeting was adjourned.
_________________
Bryan Jacobs, Mayor
Attest:

____________________
Cindy Gabel, City Clerk

JOINT CITY COUNCIL AND PARKS AND RECREATION
MEETING OF FEBRUARY 24, 2021
There was a joint meeting of the Warrensburg City Council and Parks and Recreation Board on
Wednesday, February 24, 2021, at 7:00 p.m. The meeting was held at the Community Center
Multi-Purpose Room AB at 445 East Gay Street. Roll was called as follows, Present were:
Brooks, Holmberg, Lund, Kushner, Jacobs. Absent: none.
The adoption of the agenda was considered. Lund moved to adopt the agenda. Yes: Brooks,
Holmberg, Lund, Kushner, Jacobs. No: none.
Parks and Recreation Board President Erica Jones Collins thanked everyone for attending
tonight’s meeting. She said she would like to discuss the services provided by the City to the
Parks Department. Jones Collins asked what the costs are to the City to provide Information
Technology (IT) services and Human Resources (HR) support services. Jones Collins said she
knows this information cannot be provided this evening.
Jones Collins said the Parks Department is hoping to work together with the City on mutual
ground. She said they have looked at how other entities around them are operating. Jones
Collins said rather than through Resolution, a contractual agreement might be a better option.
Council member Lund said the City is concerned about basic policies and procedures that have
not been followed. He said from a HR perspective, the City has concerns about a possible
lawsuit. Council member Lund said the City wants Parks and Recreation to be successful, but if
using City services policies must be followed.
Parks Board member Dan Baldridge said he has not been on the board long but does have HR
experience. He expressed concerns about possible City HR problems. There was discussion of
prior issues between the Parks Department and the City. New Parks and Recreation Board
member John Paul Suchecki said communication seems to be part of the problem. Collins
Jones said better training policies and procedures would be helpful. She said Parks and
Recreation has a huge staff with a large turnover.
Council member Brooks and Parks Board member Baldridge said some of these procedures
can be improved with better communication. Parks and Recreation Director Danielle Fesler said
the department does want to work with the City.
Council member Kushner said he knows the big problem has been the paperwork and the
details. He said this whole situation should not have gone this far. He said policy has not been
followed and the paperwork was not submitted. Kushner said a lot has depended on scheduling,
and this issue should be able to be fixed.
Parks Operations Superintendent Jeff Coleman said those working in the Parks Department did
not receive training for human resources even though money had been budgeted several years
ago. He said often those filling out forms make mistakes, and no training is provided. Coleman
said he has heard tonight that people want to work together and that is what should happen.
Coleman said we need to move forward and make it right for the citizens of Warrensburg.
There was no further discussion in the open meeting.

Lund moved to close pursuant to Section 610.021 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, relating
to:
(13) Individually identifiable personnel records, performance ratings or records pertaining
to employees or applicants for employment.
The meeting was adjourned to the closed.

___________________
Bryan Jacobs, Mayor
Attest:

____________________
Cindy Gabel, City Clerk

CITY COUNCIL MEETING
Strategic Planning
March 1, 2021
A meeting of the Warrensburg City Council was held on Monday, March 1, 2021, at 4:00 p.m.,
at 200 S. Holden and via Zoom, with Mayor Bryan Jacobs presiding. Roll was called as follows,
Present were: Brooks, Holmberg, Lund, Kushner, Jacobs. Absent: none.
The adoption of the agenda was considered. Lund moved to adopt the agenda. Yes: Brooks,
Holmberg, Lund, Kushner, Jacobs. No: none.
Interim City Manager Danielle Dulin said Marcella McCoy will provide an update on the City’s
Strategic Plan. She said because of the transition with the City Manager position, the Strategic
Planning period will focus on the next two to three years.
Finance Director Marcella McCoy said this was originally created in 2016 over a five-year period
of 2017-2021. She said the Strategic Plan is a part of the budget and is adopted at the time the
budget is approved. McCoy said this document can be utilized for planning and finding strengths
and sustainability.
McCoy said there were five focus areas that were developed in 2016 and they are as follows:
Investment in Infrastructure, Community Pride and Interaction, Growth and Development.
Regional Draw, and Employee Morale and Retention.
FOCUS I: INVESTMENT IN INFRASTRUCTURE:
McCoy said this is especially important because of the April bond issue. She said this includes
sidewalks, road improvements, stormwater, and several other specific improvements. She said
this is a priority.
McCoy said projects completed included The Maguire Corridor Project, Upgrading the Signaling
on Maguire along with the completion of Veterans Road. She said sidewalks continue to be an
on-going project and some walking trails have been incorporated as part of the plan.
FOCUS II: COMMUNITY PRIDE AND INTERACTION:
McCoy said the objectives were to engage in partnerships, increased support with UCM and
Whiteman AFB, and identified projects that would enhance the quality of life in Warrensburg.
She said the website was recently updated, and the City will identify and promote projects that
enhance the quality of life in Warrensburg.
FOCUS III: GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT
McCoy said growth and development will improve the rankings for the area that result in
community savings and efficiencies. She said work in continuing to enhance new technologies.
She said this also includes recruiting new businesses and the development of Young Street.
McCoy said housing is also important for growth and development.
FOCUS IV: REGIONAL DRAW
McCoy said this is concerning the Warrensburg Convention and Visitor’s Bureau and their plan
to adopt a Strategic Plan which should be adopted in July.

FOCUS V: EMPLOYEE MORALE AND RETENTION
McCoy said the City would like to focus on employee development and provide employees with
good, economic benefits. She said there have been improvements within the Police Department
with the implementation of the Cadet training program.
McCoy said she would like the Mayor and City Council thoughts on what they would like to see
during the next two to three years. Chairman Pro Tem Holmberg said he believes five years is
too far out to forecast, so the next couple years is good. He is not big on surveys, but the
Community Survey can be helpful. He said he does not watch TV, but he knows we need to pay
attention to infrastructure projects in other communities.
Mayor Jacobs asked if there have been any follow-up traffic studies. Dulin said there have not
been any in recent years. She said last year was unusual because of the pandemic.
Council member Kushner said there has been a lot of growth since Fire Station II was built. He
saw this has been a big drawn to the northeast area of Warrensburg. Council member Kushner
said he believes one important issue is stormwater management. He said there has been
flooding on Maguire Street, Shepherd Park, and Montserrat Park Road.
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL ADDITIONAL COMMENTS
FOCUS I: INVESTMENT IN INFRASTRUCTURE
Interim City Manager Dulin said she would like to know the City Council’s thoughts about the
development of a new Industrial Park or consider Brady Commerce Park. Community
Development Director Barbara Carroll said in 2017 the City was saving money to acquire an
additional industrial Park. She said adding infrastructure could attract businesses. Council
member Lund said he believes this is very important.
FOCUS II: COMMUNITY PRIDE AND INTERACTION
Council member Kushner said an intern from UCM might be helpful for City employees. The
intern could help with public notifications and updates on the City’s website. Council member
Lund said the City could also look from employees within to handle some of the updates.
Chairman Pro Tem Holmberg mentioned promoting Burg Fest and other community events. He
said the City is fortunate to be rated highly with people. Dulin mentioned this plan does not
include Parks and Recreation. Council member Brooks suggested this be discussed later.
Council member Kushner said setting clean-up dates can help Warrensburg’s appearance.
Chairman Pro Tem Holmberg mentioned the Adopt the Highway Program. He said this could be
good for Warrensburg if people adopted streets or areas to keep clean.
FOCUS III: GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT
Council Member Lund said Walking and Biking Trails are very important to the community. He
said enhancements to the Parks would also be helpful. Council member Kushner said setting
clean
FOCUS IV: REGIONAL DRAW.
Mayor Jacobs said promoting Old Drum Days and finding activities for the 12- to 17-year-old
group is important. Chairman Pro Tem Holmberg said tours are an excellent idea and festivals
with food vendors are popular. He said Friday Art Walks need to be promoted. Chairman Pro
Tem Holmberg said he also loves Blind Boone Park, and it should be a draw for others to want

to come to our community.
Tourism Director Marcy Barnhart said it helps to get the community buy-in when there are new
ideas.
FOCUS V: EMPLOYEE MORALE AND RETENTION
Mayor Jacobs asked what the City Council could do-possibly budget something?
Interim City Manager Dulin said the City is struggling with retaining Police Officers and Fire
Department personnel. She said the City’s salaries for these positions are much lower than
surrounding communities. Interim City Manager Dulin said this is causing recruitment and
morale challenges.
Interim City Manager Dulin said the tuition reimbursement for Police Officers has been helpful.
She said sign-on bonuses have also been discussed. She was asked when the last salary
study was completed, and it was in 2017.
Interim City Manager Dulin said the employee training that was cut last year due to the
pandemic, has been missed by many employees. She said these opportunities provide growth.
Finance Director Marcella McCoy said the City had planned for a decrease in some revenues
but overall, it has not been significant. She said the CARES ACT money has been a big help.

_________________
Bryan Jacobs, Mayor
Attest:

____________________
Cindy Gabel, City Clerk

City of Warrensburg, Missouri
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Independent Auditors' Report

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Warrensburg
Warrensburg, Missouri

Report on Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the discretely presented component unit of the City of Warrensburg, Missouri, as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in the Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the City’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of
the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

www.kpmcpa.com
1445 E. Republic Road Springfield, MO 65804 | 417‐882‐4300 | fax 417‐882‐4343
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Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the discretely presented
component unit as of September 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A), budgetary comparison information, the Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Asset and Related Ratios,
and the Schedule of Contributions and related notes be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
City of Warrensburg, Missouri’s basic financial statements. The Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and the
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
a required part of the basic financial statements.
The Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and the Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position are
the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and
the Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 9, 2021, on our
consideration of the City of Warrensburg, Missouri’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City
of Warrensburg, Missouri’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

KPM CPAs, PC
Springfield, Missouri
February 9, 2021
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

City of Warrensburg
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2020
The management’s discussion and analysis of the City of Warrensburg’s financial performance provides an overview of
the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020. Please read it in conjunction with the City’s
financial statements, which begin on page 18.

Financial Highlights
•

The Net Position of the City’s governmental activities increased by $1,818,753 for the year as a result of
current year activities. The net position of the City’s business activities increased $57,336 for the year.

•

The assets and deferred outflow of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflow of
resources as of September 30, 2020, by $62.7 million (net position). Of this amount, $13.3 million was
unrestricted and may be used to meet future obligations of the City.

•

Total long-term liabilities of the City decreased by $4,608,923.

Using this Annual Report
This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities provide information about the activities of the City as a whole and present a longer-term view of the City’s
finances. Fund financial statements tell how these services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for
future spending. Fund financial statements also report the City’s operations in more detail than the government-wide
statements by providing information about the City’s most significant funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements
One of the most important questions asked about the City’s finances is, “Is the City as a whole better off or worse off as a
result of the year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities report information about the
City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and
liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies.
All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. These
two statements report the City’s net position and changes in them. The City’s net position – the difference between assets
and liabilities – are one way to measure the City’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases
in the City’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating.
In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City into two kinds of activities:
Governmental Activities: Most of the City’s basic services are reported here. Taxes are the primary source
of financing for these activities.
Business-Type Activities: The City charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of the cost of
certain services it provides. The City’s sewer services are provided here.

Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds rather than the City as a
whole. Some funds are required to be established by state law and by bond covenants. However, the City Council
establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is meeting
legal responsibilities for using certain taxes and grants.
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City of Warrensburg
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2020
Governmental Funds: Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus
on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for
spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting,
which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s general government
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps the reader determine
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the
City’s programs. The differences between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities) and the governmental funds are shown in a reconciliation
following the fund financial statements.
Proprietary Funds: When the City charges customers for the services it provides – whether to outside
customers or to other units of the City – these services are generally reported in proprietary funds.
Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
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City of Warrensburg
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2020

Government-Wide Financial Analysis
Net Position
The following table presents the condensed Statement of Net Position for the City as of September 30, 2020 and 2019:
Governmental
Activities
Assets
Current and other assets
Capital assets
Net pension asset
Total Assets

$

Deferred Outflow of Resources
Deferred outflow of resources
Liabilities
Other liabilities
Long-term liabilities outstanding
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflow of Resources
Deferred inflow of resources
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

$

Business-Type
Activities

11,430,733
48,192,513
2,294,763
61,918,009

$

4,005,023
23,779,920
112,750
27,897,693

Total
September 30,
2020

Total
September 30,
2019

$

$

15,435,756
71,972,433
2,407,513
89,815,702

15,850,467
74,752,135
5,142,852
95,745,454

1,634,470

128,580

1,763,050

310,621

3,301,722
14,076,067
17,377,789

1,522,670
9,813,246
11,335,916

4,824,392
23,889,313
28,713,705

5,633,288
28,498,236
34,131,524

155,065

2,439

157,504

1,093,097

32,460,935
3,427,791
10,130,899
46,019,625

12,698,674
774,898
3,214,346
16,687,918

45,159,609
4,202,689
13,345,245
62,707,543

43,952,387
3,919,133
12,959,934
60,831,454

$

$

$

Total net position of the City increased $1,876,089 for the year due to current year activity. Total liabilities for the City
have decreased by $5,417,819. Net capital assets for the governmental activities totaled $48.2 million as of September
30, 2020.
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City of Warrensburg
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2020
Change in Net Position

Governmental
Activities
Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General Revenues
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Motor vehicle taxes
Other taxes
Franchise fees
Interest
Other revenue
Gain on disposal of assets
Transfers
Total Revenues, Gains, and
Transfers

$

1,006,667
29,523
345,239

$

2,346,734
8,374,283
741,935
424,466
2,432,631
131,566
159,791
2,250
820,000

Expenses
General government
Finance
Other support services
Information technology
Municipal court
Buildings and grounds
Public safety and health
Community development
Transportation
Cemetery
Parks and recreation
Debt service
Sewer
Total Expenses
Increase in Net Assets

Business-Type
Activities

$

4,699,626
-

Total
Year Ended
September 30,
2020

Total
Year Ended
September 30,
2019

$

$

264,287
(820,000)

5,706,293
29,523
345,239

6,248,887
167,439
187,751

2,346,734
8,374,283
741,935
424,466
2,432,631
395,853
159,791
2,250
-

2,330,854
7,816,714
762,824
368,870
2,550,153
582,882
73,717
502,943
-

16,815,085

4,143,913

20,958,998

21,593,034

841,425
629,407
577,831
588,774
177,987
203,866
4,420,911
1,034,935
3,288,273
133,251
2,547,370
552,302
14,996,332

421,865
3,664,712
4,086,577

841,425
629,407
577,831
588,774
177,987
203,866
4,420,911
1,034,935
3,288,273
133,251
2,547,370
974,167
3,664,712
19,082,909

681,791
536,736
514,926
625,293
164,287
309,806
5,139,962
906,866
2,446,870
121,790
2,776,682
1,099,390
3,069,337
18,393,736

1,818,753

$

11

57,336

$

1,876,089

$

3,199,298

City of Warrensburg
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2020

Governmental Activities
Governmental activities increased the net position of the City by $1,818,753. Total tax revenues for the City were $14.3
million, which represents 85% of the financing of these activities. Program revenues for the functions totaled $1.4 million
or 8% of the funding. The following table shows the cost of the City’s programs as well as each program’s net cost (total
cost less revenues generated by the activities). The net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the taxpayers
by each of these functions.
Net Cost of the City of Warrensburg’s Governmental Activities
Total Cost
of Services
$
841,425
629,407
577,831
588,774
177,987
203,866
4,420,911
1,034,935
3,288,273
133,251
2,547,370
552,302
$ 14,996,332

General government
Finance
Other support services
Information technology
Municipal court
Buildings and grounds
Public safety and health
Community development
Transportation
Cemetery
Parks and recreation
Debt Service

Net Cost
of Services
$
254,846
629,407
577,831
588,774
(72,356)
203,866
4,353,143
1,034,935
3,288,273
61,576
2,142,306
552,302
$ 13,614,903

Business-Type Activities
Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $57,336. Last year the business-type activities increased
$713,049.
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Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds
The pie chart below illustrates the City of Warrensburg’s revenue sources as percentages for the fiscal year 2020. The City
saw a decrease in revenues from fiscal year 2019 to fiscal year 2020, with the most important difference being charges
for services. Charges for services decreased $542,594 from $6,248,887 in fiscal year 2019 to $5,706,293 in fiscal year 2020.
Franchise fees also saw a slight decrease of $117,522. Changes in revenue continue to shift the proportions of revenue
collections. Historically, Sales tax has been consistently over 50% of total revenue that is now down to 40%. Franchise fees
continue to see a decline while sales taxes saw an increase compared to fiscal year 2019.
Fiscal Year 2020 Revenues
Franchise fees
12%
Other taxes
2%

Other revenue
1%

Interest
2%

Charges for services
27%

Motor vehicle taxes
4%

Grants & contributions
2%
Sales taxes
39%

Property taxes
11%
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September 30, 2020
The City of Warrensburg saw an overall decrease in expenses in fiscal year 2020. Most of the divisions saw increases in
operating expense. Decreases in Building and Grounds, Public Safety, Information Technology and Parks and Recreation
provided for the overall decrease in expense compared to 2019.
Implementation of the findings of the recent Wage & Benefit Study brought employee wages to the 50th percentile (the
average) of comparable communities. This represents the increase in most of the division’s operating costs and will
continue to impact the City’s budget for FY21 and future budgets. Departments have done a great job this year making
this matter a priority and balancing their budgets.
Fiscal Year 2020 Expenses
General government
5%

Finance
3%

Other support services
3%
Information technology
3%

Sewer
19%

Municipal court
1%

Debt service
4%

Buildings and grounds
1%

Parks and recreation
14%

Public safety and health
23%
Cemetery
1%
Community development
6%

Transportation
17%
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City of Warrensburg
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2020
The combined fund balances of the City’s governmental funds as of September 30, 2020, were $9.5 million. The General
Fund increased by $145,052. The Park Fund increased by $279,993. The Tri-Centennial Fund increased by $256. The Capital
Improvement Transportation Fund increased by $250,372. The Capital Improvement Half-Cent Fund increased by
$126,061. The Debt Service Fund decreased by $2,276. The Neighborhood Improvement Fund decreased by $354,715.
The Tax Increment Financing Fund decreased by $4,332. The Capital Improvement Bond Fund increased by $50,313. The
Vehicle Fund decreased by $64,779.
The following bar graph provides a view of the City of Warrensburg’s ending General Fund balances, and displays the
recent historical performance of the General Fund.

Fiscal Year General Fund Balances
7,000,000
6,000,000
5,000,000
4,000,000
3,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
07-08

08-09

09-10

10-11

11-12

12-13

13-14

14-15

15-16

16-17

17-18

18-19

19-20

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
Differences between the original and the final amended budget can be summarized as follows:

•

The original revenues and other sources budget of $10,630,529 was amended to $10,660,578 during the
year.

•

The total original budgeted expenditures and other uses of $11,175,193 were decreased by $156,465 to
$11,018,728. Most of this decrease was from an decrease in transportation and public safety and health.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets
Capital assets of the governmental activities were $48.2 million (net of accumulated depreciation) as of September 30,
2020. This represents a decrease of $1.6 million from the prior year due to the current year disposal of capital assets and
improvements. Net capital assets for business-type activities were $23.8 million as of September 30, 2020. This represents
a decrease of $1.1 million from the prior year due primarily to current year provisions for depreciation.
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Debt
Total debt and long-term obligations of the governmental activities as of September 30, 2020, was $16.2 million, which is
an decrease of $3.2 million.
Total debt and long-term obligations of the business-type activities as of September 30, 2020, was $11.0 million, which is
down by $1.3 million from the prior year due to the payments made on the City’s Certificates of Participation and revenue
bonds.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget
The City continues to experience stability in overall General Fund revenues, which is a positive. Overall revenue has
plateaued, and staff does not anticipate any significant increase in the upcoming fiscal year. However, there is projection
of decrease in sales tax revenue as COVID-19 continues. Some revenue streams have declined, with the most significant
one being franchise fees. Given the significant dependence of the City on sales tax revenues it is imperative that a constant
focus is applied to sustaining growth in this revenue stream. Efforts such as the “Love What’s Local” campaign become
increasingly important. The real driver, however, will be to increase population and discretionary income levels within the
city limits and local region. Conversation also needs to continue with State and Federal elected officials regarding the
disparity between online and local sales transactions.
Ideally the City would diversify its revenues streams to decrease dependency upon sales tax, particularly stronger property
tax revenues. However, the Missouri legislature’s enactment of the Hancock Amendment has made doing so more
difficult. It is recommended that the Council consider placing significant infrastructure and capital purchase on the ballot
for citizens to vote property tax increases to pay for these community needs. Examples of projects and capital purchases
include the Maguire Street Corridor, storm water infrastructure, Public Safety apparatus and technology.
In fiscal year 2017, the City joined the Missouri Securities Investment Program (MOSIP). At the time this allowed the City
to earn interest above what was currently offered by the City’s banking institution, while maintaining compliance with
state approved investments for municipalities. Currently, the City’s banking institution provides a better earnings rate.
Sewer rate increases beginning in 2017 had the desired effect on generating revenues needed to stabilize the financial
viability of the Sewer Utility. Additional increases are needed to provide the appropriate revenues to fund Sewer Capital
Projects and maintain financial solvency.
Recent years of extensive capital purchases and projects undertaken by the City, there has been a shift in focus for fiscal
year 2021. Additionally, the pandemic has and continues to change the way business is conducted. Capital projects were
limited in 2020 and 2021 has even fewer significate expenditures. The demolition of a dilapidated Street Department
storage building on West Culton street will take place sometime in the spring of 2021, leaving a prime lot in the downtown
portion of the City. There will also be a refresh of the servers in City Hall. This refresh takes place every four years to
update the City’s virtual infrastructure.
The City continues plans to complete extensive upgrades to its wastewater plants, and some of that work will began in
fiscal year 2020. To address the reliability of phone and internet networks, which are a necessary tool for the operation
of the plant, the City will have fiber installed to the facilities. There will also be new SCADA components installed along
with the replacement of Ultraviolet components and Sequencing Batch Reactor blowers that aid in the treatment of the
City’s wastewater.
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Contacting the City’s Financial Management
The City’s financial statements are designed to present users with a general overview of the City’s finances and to
demonstrate the City’s accountability. Any questions regarding the report or request for additional information should be
directed to:
Finance Director
102 South Holden St.
Warrensburg, Missouri 64093
(660) 747-9131
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Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2020
Primary Government

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted
Investments - unrestricted
Taxes receivable, net
Utilities receivable, net
Other accounts receivable, net
Special assessments receivable, net
Court fines receivable, net
Accrued interest receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted investments
Net pension asset
Capital Assets
Non-depreciable
Depreciable, net
Total Assets
Deferred Outflow of Resources
Deferred pension outflow
Total Deferred Outflow of Resources

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities

$

$

7,999,672
494,314
1,734,795
19,383
450,552
2,579
3,860
12,485
201,430
124,779
386,884
2,294,763

Component Unit

Total

Warrensburg
Convention and
Visitors Bureau

2,335,798
245,000
503,059
200
2,173
21,336
78,031
819,426
112,750

$ 10,335,470
739,314
1,734,795
503,059
19,583
450,552
2,579
6,033
12,485
222,766
202,810
1,206,310
2,407,513

5,308,182
42,884,331
61,918,009

392,583
23,387,337
27,897,693

5,700,765
66,271,668
89,815,702

432,643

1,634,470
1,634,470

128,580
128,580

1,763,050
1,763,050

-

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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$

381,192
50,336
1,115
-

City of Warrensburg
Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2020

Liabilities
Current
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Unearned revenue
Court bonds payable
Accrued interest payable
Arbitrage payable
Current maturities of long-term debt
Noncurrent
Capital leases payable
Certificates of participation payable
Revenue bonds payable, net
General obligation bonds payable, net
Compensated absences payable
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflow of Resources
Deferred pension inflow
Total Deferred Inflow of Resources
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Warrensburg
Convention and
Visitors Bureau

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities

291,860
257,334
120,139
13,422
69,430
2,549,537
3,301,722

24,273
18,984
88,854
122,559
1,268,000
1,522,670

316,133
276,318
120,139
13,422
158,284
122,559
3,817,537
4,824,392

8,345
8,345

184,416
9,882,068
3,585,000
424,583
14,076,067
17,377,789

9,780,232
33,014
9,813,246
11,335,916

184,416
9,882,068
9,780,232
3,585,000
457,597
23,889,313
28,713,705

8,345

155,065
155,065

2,439
2,439

157,504
157,504

-

32,460,935
3,427,791
10,130,899
$ 46,019,625

12,698,674
774,898
3,214,346
$ 16,687,918

45,159,609
4,202,689
13,345,245
$ 62,707,543

424,298
424,298

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Total

$

City of Warrensburg
Statement of Activities
Year Ended September 30, 2020
Net (Expenses), Revenues, and Changes in Net Position
Program Revenues

Functions/Programs

Expenses

Primary Government

Component Unit
Convention and

Charges

Operating

Capital

for

Grants and

Grants and

Governmental

Business-Type

Warrensburg

Services

Contributions

Contributions

Activities

Activities

$

$

Total

Visitors Bureau

Primary Government
Governmental Activities
General government

$

(841,425)

$

233,216

8,570

344,793

$

(254,846)

$

-

$

(254,846)

$

-

Finance

(629,407)

-

-

-

(629,407)

-

(629,407)

-

Other support services

(577,831)

-

-

-

(577,831)

-

(577,831)

-

Information technology

(588,774)

-

-

-

(588,774)

-

(588,774)

-

Municipal court

(177,987)

250,343

-

-

72,356

-

72,356

-

Buildings and grounds

(203,866)

-

-

-

(203,866)

-

(203,866)

-

Public safety and health

(4,420,911)

57,385

10,383

-

(4,353,143)

-

(4,353,143)

-

Community development

(1,034,935)

-

-

-

(1,034,935)

-

(1,034,935)

-

Transportation

(3,288,273)

-

-

-

(3,288,273)

-

(3,288,273)

-

Cemetery
Parks and recreation

(133,251)
(2,547,370)

61,130
404,593

10,545
25

446

(61,576)
(2,142,306)

-

(61,576)
(2,142,306)

-

(552,302)

-

-

-

(552,302)

-

(552,302)

-

(14,996,332)

1,006,667

29,523

345,239

(13,614,903)

-

(13,614,903)

-

(4,086,577)

4,699,626

-

-

-

613,049

613,049

-

Total Business-Type Activities

(4,086,577)

4,699,626

-

-

-

613,049

613,049

-

Total Primary Government

$ (19,082,909)

345,239

(13,614,903)

613,049

Debt service
Total Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities
Sewer

$

5,706,293

$

29,523

$

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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(13,001,854)

-

City of Warrensburg
Statement of Activities
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Charges
for
Services

Expenses
Component Unit
Warrensburg Convention
and Visitors Bureau

$

(167,058)

$

295,176

Program Revenues
Operating
Capital
Grants and
Grants and
Contributions
Contributions

$

80,031

General Revenues
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Motor vehicle taxes
Other taxes
Franchise fees
Interest
Other revenue
Gain on disposal of assets
Transfers
Total General Revenues and Transfers
Changes in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of year
Net Position, End of year

$

Net (Expenses), Revenues, and Changes in Net Position
Primary Government
Component Unit
Warrensburg
Governmental
Business-Type
Convention and
Activities
Activities
Total
Visitors Bureau

-

-

-

208,149

2,346,734
8,374,283
741,935
424,466
2,432,631
131,566
159,791
2,250
820,000

264,287
(820,000)

2,346,734
8,374,283
741,935
424,466
2,432,631
395,853
159,791
2,250
-

4,691
535
-

15,433,656

(555,713)

14,877,943

5,226

1,818,753

57,336

1,876,089

213,375

44,200,872

16,630,582

60,831,454

210,923

$ 46,019,625

$ 16,687,918

$ 62,707,543

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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-

$

424,298

City of Warrensburg
Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds
September 30, 2020

General
Fund
Assets
$ 4,496,568
Cash and cash equivalents
494,314
Investments
1,046,514
Taxes receivable, net
143
Other accounts receivables
Special assessments receivable, net
2,579
Court fines receivable, net
145,000
Due from other funds
3,015
Accrued interest receivable
12,485
Inventory
174,137
Prepaid expenses
Restricted cash and
39,942
cash equivalents
Restricted investments
Total Assets
$ 6,414,697
Liabilities, Deferred
Inflow of Resources,
and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Court bonds payable
Due to other funds
Unearned revenue
Total Liabilities

$

85,388
234,806
13,422
26,520
360,136

Park
Fund
$ 1,344,122
231,459
19,240
17
27,293

Special Revenue Funds
Capital
Capital
Improvement Improvement
Tri-Centennial Transportation
Half-Cent
Fund
Fund
Fund
$

251
$ 1,622,382

$

$

$

103,340
22,528
93,619
219,487

15,174
15,174

-

$

$

$

433,079
127,252
560,331

7,027
7,027

$

$

$

Debt Service Funds
Debt
Service
Fund

Neighborhood
Improvement
Fund

409,625
309,698
828
-

$ 159,983
-

720,151

7
$ 159,990

$

$

$

-

145,000
145,000

$

265,958
450,552
716,510

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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-

Tax
Increment
Financing
Fund
$

$

$

Capital Projects Fund
Capital
Improvement
Bond
Vehicle
Fund
Fund

1,894
-

$

19,872
-

1,894

82,559
386,884
$ 489,315

$

1,874
1,874

$

$

8,743
8,743

$

Total
Governmental
Funds
-

$ 7,126,403
494,314
1,734,795
19,383
450,552
2,579
145,000
3,860
12,485
201,430

2,020
2,020

124,779
386,884
$ 10,702,464

-

$

206,372
257,334
13,422
145,000
120,139
742,267

City of Warrensburg
Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds
September 30, 2020
Special Revenue Funds

General
Fund
Deferred Inflow of Resources
Deferred inflows special assessments

Debt Service Funds

Capital
Capital
Improvement Improvement
Tri-Centennial Transportation
Half-Cent
Fund
Fund
Fund

Park
Fund

Debt
Service
Fund

Neighborhood
Improvement
Fund

Capital Projects Fund
Tax
Increment
Financing
Fund

Capital
Improvement
Bond
Fund

Total
Governmental
Funds

Vehicle
Fund

-

-

-

-

-

-

450,552

-

-

-

450,552

201,430

Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Restricted for
Debt Service
Capital improvements
Tri-centennial
Parks and recreation
Unassigned

12,485
174,137

27,293

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

5,867,939

1,375,602
-

15,174
-

553,304
-

720,151
-

14,990
-

265,958
-

20
-

480,572
-

2,020
-

Total Fund
Balances

6,054,561

1,402,895

15,174

553,304

720,151

14,990

265,958

20

480,572

2,020

$ 6,414,697

$ 1,622,382

560,331

$ 720,151

$ 159,990

1,894

$ 489,315

Total Liabilities,
Deferred Inflow
of Resources, and
Fund Balances

$

15,174

$

$

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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716,510

$

$

2,020

12,485

280,968
1,756,047
15,174
1,375,602
5,867,939
9,509,645

$

10,702,464

City of Warrensburg
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2020
Fund balance - total governmental funds

$

9,509,645

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds:
Governmental capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation

97,001,210
(48,808,697)
48,192,513

The net pension asset is not available to pay for the current-period expenditures,
and therefore, is not reported in the funds. The following is the detail of the net
effect of these differences in the treatment of the net pension asset and
related deferred items:
Net pension asset
Deferred outflows due to pension
Deferred inflows due to pension

2,294,763
1,634,470
(155,065)
3,774,168

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of insurance
to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the Internal Service Fund are
included in governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position

787,781

Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather is
recognized as an expenditure when due

(69,430)

Deferred inflows - special assessments

450,552

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds
Net position of governmental activities

(16,625,604)
$

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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46,019,625

City of Warrensburg
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Governmental Funds
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Interest income
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues
Expenditures
Current
General government
Finance
Other support services
Information technology
Municipal court
Buildings and grounds
Public safety and health
Community development
Transportation
Cemetery
Parks and recreation
Capital improvements
Debt Service
Principal and interest
Total Expenditures

General
Fund

Park
Fund

$ 8,487,048
233,216
345,993
115,047
253,811
85,645
170,797
9,691,557

$ 1,904,472
404,593
22,720
17,763
2,349,548

565,805
474,805
551,789
545,615
151,808
186,450
5,037,700
721,557
1,332,304
102,734
-

1,772,083
-

9,670,567

1,772,083

Special Revenue Funds
Capital
Capital
Improvement Improvement
Tri-Centennial Transportation
Half-Cent
Fund
Fund
Fund
$

256
256

$

Debt Service Funds

Capital Projects Fund
Capital
Neighborhood Tax Increment Improvement
Improvement
Financing
Bond
Vehicle
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund

Debt
Service
Fund

741,935
7,495
749,430

$ 1,994,045
6,784
2,000,829

$

612
612

-

499,058

471,778

-

-

499,058

471,778

2,791,864
2,791,864

$

63,283
63,283

152,068
152,068

$ 1,049,725
7,648
1,057,373

-

156,400
-

2,632,998
2,632,998

156,400

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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$

$

Total
Governmental
Funds

406
406

$ 14,392,576
233,216
345,993
519,640
253,811
131,566
188,560
16,065,362

12,060

149,869

565,805
474,805
551,789
545,615
151,808
186,450
5,037,700
877,957
1,332,304
102,734
1,772,083
1,132,765

12,060

149,869

5,424,862
18,156,677

City of Warrensburg
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Governmental Funds
Year Ended September 30, 2020

General
Fund
Excess (Deficit)
of Revenues over
Expenditures
Other Financing
Sources (Uses)
Sale of equipment
General obligation bond proceeds
Operating transfers in (out)
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)
Excess (Deficit)
of Revenues and
Other Sources
over Expenditures
and other (Uses)
Fund Balance, October 1
Fund Balance, September 30

Special Revenue Funds
Capital
Capital
Improvement Improvement
Tri-Centennial Transportation
Half-Cent
Fund
Fund
Fund

Park
Fund

Debt Service Funds
Debt
Service
Fund

Neighborhood Tax Increment
Improvement
Financing
Fund
Fund

20,990

577,465

256

250,372

1,529,051

(2,791,252)

(2,569,715)

124,052

(297,472)

-

-

(1,402,990)

2,788,976

1,695,000
520,000

-

124,052

(297,472)

-

-

(1,402,990)

2,788,976

2,215,000

-

145,042

279,993

256

250,372

126,061

(2,276)

5,909,519

1,122,902

$ 6,054,561

$ 1,402,895

14,918
$

15,174

$

302,932

594,090

553,304

$ 720,151

$

620,673

14,990

$ 265,958

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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(4,332)

(354,715)

17,266

Capital Projects Fund
Capital
Improvement
Bond
Vehicle
Fund
Fund

4,352
$

20

(149,463)

(2,091,315)

(995,000)

2,250
82,434

2,250
1,695,000
820,000

(995,000)

84,684

2,517,250

50,313

(64,779)

425,935

1,045,313

(4,332)

430,259
$

Total
Governmental
Funds

480,572

$

66,799

9,083,710

2,020

$ 9,509,645

City of Warrensburg
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Activities
Year Ended September 30, 2020
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

$

425,935

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of these assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives on a straight line basis and reported as depreciation expense. The
following is the detail of the amount by which depreciation was exceeded by capital
outlays for the year.
Capital outlay
Depreciation
Disposal of capital assets, net

747,636
(2,011,980)
(347,226)
(1,611,570)

Some revenues reported in the governmental funds represent current financial
resources and were recognized in the Statement of Activities when earned

(72,527)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental
funds. The repayment of the principal of long-term debt is a use of current financial
resources of governmental funds. Also, governmental funds report the effect of
issuance costs and similar items when debt is issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. In the Statement of Activities,
interest is accrued on outstanding debt whereas in the governmental funds, an interest
expenditure is reported when due. The following is the detail of the net effect of
these differences.
Repayment of principal on bonds, leases, and other debt
Bond proceeds
Bond premiums and discounts
Interest payable

4,812,942
(1,695,000)
51,992
7,626
3,177,560

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of various
activities internally to individual funds. The net expense of certain activities
of the Internal Service Fund is reported with governmental activities.

168,185

Some expenditures reported in the governmental fund represent the use of current
financial resources and were recognized in the Statement of Activities when incurred
Change in net position of governmental activities

(268,830)
$

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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1,818,753

City of Warrensburg
Statement of Net Position – Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2020
Enterprise
Fund
Sewer Fund
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Utilities receivable, net
Other receivable, net
Accrued interest receivable
Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

$

2,335,798
245,000
503,059
200
2,173
21,336
3,107,566

Internal
Service
Fund

$

873,269
873,269

Noncurrent Assets
Net pension asset
Total Noncurrent Assets

112,750
112,750

-

Restricted Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Total Restricted Assets

78,031
819,426
897,457

-

392,583
19,650,763
27,361,301
1,134,267
48,538,914
(24,758,994)
23,779,920
27,897,693

873,269

128,580
128,580

-

Property, Plant, and Equipment
Land
Buildings and improvements
Sewer mains and lines
Machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Total Property, Plant, and Equipment
Total Assets
Deferred Outflow of Resources
Deferred pension outflow
Total Deferred Outflow of Resources

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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City of Warrensburg
Statement of Net Position – Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2020

Enterprise
Fund
Sewer Fund
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued interest payable
Arbitrage payable
Current maturities of long-term debt
Total Current Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities
Revenue bonds payable, net
Compensated absences payable
Total Long-Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflow of Resources
Deferred pension inflow
Total Deferred Inflow of Resources
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

$

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Internal
Service
Fund

24,273
18,984
88,854
122,559
1,268,000
1,522,670

85,488
85,488

9,780,232
33,014
9,813,246
11,335,916

85,488

2,439
2,439

-

12,698,674
774,898
3,214,346
16,687,918

787,781
787,781

$

City of Warrensburg
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position – Proprietary Funds
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Operating Revenues
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Premiums
Total Operating Revenues

Enterprise Fund
Sewer Fund

Internal Service
Fund

$

$

4,677,621
22,005
4,699,626

1,166,132
1,166,132

Operating Revenues
Personnel services
Contractual services
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies
Utilities
Education
Labs and testing
Insurance expenses
Depreciation
Miscellaneous
Insurance claims
Insurance administration fees
Total Operating Expenses

769,545
148,410
582,019
175,960
362,933
3,298
22,598
59,146
1,487,298
53,505
3,664,712

681,854
329,494
1,011,348

Operating Income

1,034,914

154,784

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income
Interest expense
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Income Before Operating Transfers
Operating Transfers (Out)

264,287
(421,865)
(157,578)

13,401
13,401

877,336

168,185

(820,000)

Net Income
Net Position, October 1
Net Position, September 30

$

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
30

-

57,336

168,185

16,630,582
16,687,918

619,596
787,781

$

City of Warrensburg
Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary Funds
Year Ended September 30, 2020
Sewer
Fund
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

$

Cash flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Operating transfer (out)
Net Cash (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchase of fixed assets
Payment of bond principal
Payment of interest expense
Net Cash (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received on investments
Maturity of investments
Sale of investments
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of year
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of year

4,660,311
(1,487,382)
(759,927)
2,413,002

Internal Service
Fund
$

(820,000)
(820,000)

-

(319,166)
(1,245,000)
(431,860)
(1,996,026)

-

259,810
15,724
275,534

15,222
141,695
156,917

(127,490)

226,177

2,541,319
2,413,829

Less Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Unrestricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating
Activities
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in
Utilities receivable
Other accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Net pension asset
Deferred pension outflows
Increase (decrease) in
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Compensated absences
Arbitrage payable
Deferred pension inflows
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

647,092
873,269

$

(78,031)
2,335,798

$

873,269

$

1,034,914

$

154,784

1,487,298

$

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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1,166,132
(1,096,872)
69,260

-

(39,115)
(200)
12,124
177,620
(109,466)

-

(91,638)
2,334
(1,384)
1
(59,486)
2,413,002

(85,524)
69,260

$

City of Warrensburg
Combined Statement of Fiduciary Net Position – Private Purpose Trusts
September 30, 2020
Private-Purpose
Trusts
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total Assets

$

Liabilities
Due to others

167,059
167,059

-

Net Position
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

$

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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167,059
167,059

City of Warrensburg
Combined Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position – Private Purpose Trusts
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Private-Purpose
Trusts
Additions
Donations

$

Deductions
Contributions and other

2,862

2,100

Changes in Net Position

762

Net Position, beginning of year
Net Position, end of year

$

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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166,297
167,059

City of Warrensburg
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position – Agency Funds
September 30, 2020

Children's
Memorial
Trust
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total Assets
Liabilities
Due to others
Total Liabilities

$
$

32,517
32,517

$

32,517
32,517

Agency Funds
Arts
Commission
Fund
$
$

19,863
19,863

$

19,863
19,863

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
34

Public
Arts
Fund
$
$

736
736

$

736
736

City of Warrensburg
Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The City of Warrensburg, Missouri, (the City) is located in Johnson County and was incorporated in 1865, under the
provisions of the State of Missouri. Warrensburg is a city of the third class and operates under a City Council-Manager
form of government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: public safety (police and fire), streets,
culture-recreation, public improvements, planning, and general administrative services. Other services include sewer
operations.
The accounting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as
applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more significant policies.
Financial Reporting Entity
The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government, (b) organizations for which the primary government
is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the primary government is not accountable, but for which
the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the
reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Component units are legally separate organizations
for which the elected officials of the primary government are financially accountable. Financially accountable means the
primary government is accountable for the component unit and the primary government is able to impose its will or the
component unit may provide financial benefits or impose a financial burden on the primary government. In addition,
component units can be other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary
government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete.
The City is a primary government, which is governed by an elected board. As required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, the City has evaluated the above criteria to determine whether any other entity
meets the definition of a component unit and must be included in these financial statements. The City has determined
that the entity described in the following paragraph meets the above criteria and therefore, has been included as a
component unit in the City’s basic financial statements.
Component Unit
The Warrensburg Convention and Visitors Bureau of the City of Warrensburg is a not-for-profit corporation organized for
the purpose of promoting tourism in Warrensburg. The Bureau is governed by a nine-member board appointed by the
City.
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
The basic financial statements include both the government-wide (the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) and fund financial statements.
Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide statements display information about the government as a whole. Interfund activity has been
eliminated from these statements to minimize the duplication of internal activities. Governmental activities, which are
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely on
fees and charges for services for support.
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City of Warrensburg
Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2020
In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type activities are consolidated
and presented on the full accrual, economic resources basis of accounting. The consolidated presentation incorporates
long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations, and it provides information to improve analysis
and comparability.
The government-wide Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
each function of the City’s governmental and business-type activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically
associated with a program or a function. Program revenues include charges for goods or services offered by the programs
and grants and contributions that are restricted to meet operating and capital expenses of a particular program. Revenues
that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.
Fund Financial Statements
Separate fund financial statements report information on the City’s governmental and proprietary funds. The emphasis of
fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column.
Governmental fund financial statements use the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Consequently, the emphasis on near-term inflows and outflows of resources do not present the longterm impact of transactions. Conversely, the proprietary fund statements incorporate the accrual basis of accounting and
focus on the change in total economic resources. This presentation records long-term assets and liabilities, and recognizes
revenues and expenses when transactions occur, regardless of their impact on the flow of cash. Since the accounting
differs significantly between the governmental funds and the proprietary funds, it is necessary to convert the
governmental fund data to arrive at the government-wide financial statements. Therefore, reconciliations have been
provided following the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance identifying categories that required conversion from the fund statements.
The City reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund: The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial
resources not accounted for in other funds.
Park Fund: The Park Fund of the City is used to account for resources restricted, committed, or assigned for the
parks department within the City.
Tri-Centennial Fund: The Tri-Centennial Fund is used to account for miscellaneous revenues and expenditures that
are restricted, committed, or assigned for the Tri-Centennial activities.
Capital Improvement Transportation Fund: The Capital Improvement Transportation Fund is used to account for
sales taxes and other resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned for the transportation capital
improvements within the City.
Capital Improvement Half-Cent Fund: The Capital Improvement Half-Cent Fund is used to account for sales taxes
and other resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned for the capital improvements within the City.
Neighborhood Improvement Fund: The Neighborhood Improvement Fund is used to account for proceeds that are
restricted, committed, or assigned from the payment of Neighborhood Improvement Bonds.
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City of Warrensburg
Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2020
Debt Service Fund: The Debt Service Fund is used to account for funds that are restricted, committed, or assigned
from the payment of the City’s governmental activities debt.
Tax Increment Financing Fund: This fund is used to account for collection and disbursement of economic activity
taxes and property taxes collected on growth of assessed valuation of the redevelopment area of the TIF District.
Capital Improvement Bond Fund: This fund is used to account for collection and disbursement of proceeds of the
Series 2017 General Obligation bonds.
Vehicle Fund: This fund is used to account for the acquisition and disposal of vehicles throughout various City
departments.
The City reports the following major proprietary funds:
Sewer Fund: The Sewer Fund accounts for the activities and capital improvements of the City’s sewer system.
Internal Service Fund: The Internal Service Fund accounts for the premiums received and claims paid under the
City’s hybrid cost-plus employee health insurance plan.
The City reports the following major fiduciary funds:
Fiduciary Funds: Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others. Since by
definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party and cannot be used to support activities or
obligations for the City, these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide statements. The City is the
fiduciary for four private purpose trust funds and three agency funds. The agency funds consist of the Children’s
Memorial Trust, the Arts Commission Fund, and the Public Arts Fund. The Children’s Memorial Trust fund exists
to account for funds donated to build a memorial to honor the memory of children who have died. The Arts
Commission fund is used to account for funds donated to further the arts within the City. The Public Arts Fund is
used to fund art in public places.
Capital Assets
Capital assets include land, buildings, improvements, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, storm
sewers, and similar items) and are included in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets, excluding land, are defined by the City as assets with a cost of
$5,000 or greater and an estimated useful life of at least one year. All land purchases are capitalized regardless of cost. All
purchased fixed assets are valued at cost when historical records are available and at an estimated historical cost when
no historical records exist. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date received. The
costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not
capitalized.
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City of Warrensburg
Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2020
In conformity with GASB 34, infrastructure, such as streets and storm sewers, completed in the current year has been
capitalized. Additionally, the city elected to depreciate its infrastructure assets. Depreciation is provided in amounts
sufficient to relate the cost of the depreciable assets to operations over their estimated service lives on the straight-line
basis. The service lives by type of asset are as follows:
Machinery and equipment

3 to 20 years

Cemetery buildings

5 to 20 years

Other buildings

15 to 50 years

Improvements

15 to 50 years

Sewer lines

20 to 70 years

Other infrastructure

20 to 50 years

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense; renewals and betterments are capitalized.
Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
The City pools cash resources of its various funds in order to facilitate the management of cash. Cash applicable to a
particular fund is readily identifiable. The balance in the pooled cash account is available to meet current operating
requirements.
Fair Value
The fair value measurement and disclosure framework provides for a fair value hierarchy that gives highest priority to
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value
hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. There have been no
significant changes from the prior year in the methodologies used to measure fair value. The levels of the fair value
hierarchy are described below:
Level 1: Inputs using quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Inputs using significant other observable inputs including quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities.
Level 3: Inputs are significant unobservable inputs.
Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. Inventory
usage is recognized on the consumption method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Compensated Absences
Under terms of the City’s municipal code, City employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts. In the
event of termination, an employee is paid for accumulated vacation days up to the equivalent of one year’s vacation
(maximum of four weeks). The amount that can be accrued for sick leave is limited to 1080 hours for firefighters and 720
hours for all other employees. Employees are paid for one-half of the amount of accumulated sick leave only upon
retirement from the City.
Vested or accumulated vacation leave and compensatory time is accounted for as follows:
Governmental Funds: The accumulated liabilities for vacation and compensatory time is recorded in the
governmental activities column of the government-wide financial statements.
Proprietary Funds: The costs of vacation and compensatory time are accrued in the respective funds as earned by
City employees and recorded in the proprietary fund financial statements and the business-type activities column
of the government-wide financial statements.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Revenue Recognition - Property Taxes
Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied on November 1 and are due and
payable at that time. All unpaid taxes levied November 1 become delinquent after December 31 of that year.
Operating Revenues and Expenses
Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods and/or services in connection with the proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the enterprise fund is charges to customers for services. All other revenues and expenses are
considered nonoperating.
Deposits and Investments
For financial statement purposes and the statement of cash flows, the City considers all accounts subject to withdrawal
by check or on demand to be cash equivalents. All other deposits and Certificates of Deposit are considered to be
investments.
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Net Position
In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, equity is displayed in three components as follows:
Net Investment in Capital Assets: This consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, less the
outstanding balances of any bonds, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets.
Restricted: This consists of net position that are legally restricted by outside parties or by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
Unrestricted: This consists of net position that does not meet the definition of restricted or net investment in
capital assets.
When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, the City
first applies restricted net position.
Fund Balance Classification
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report aggregate amounts for five classifications of fund balances
based on constraints imposed on the use of these resources as follows:
Nonspendable fund balance: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either a)
not in spendable form or b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
Restricted fund balance: This classification reflects the constraints imposed on resources either a) externally by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or b) imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
Committed fund balance: These amounts can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed
by formal resolutions of the City Council – the government’s highest level of decision making authority. Those
committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Council removes the specified use by taking
the same type of action imposing the commitment.
Assigned fund balance: This classification reflects the amounts constrained by the City’s “intent” to be used for
specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Assigned fund balances include all remaining amounts
(except negative balances) that are reported in the governmental funds, other than the General Fund, that are
not classified as nonspendable and are neither restricted nor committed.
Unassigned fund balance: This fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund. It is also used to
report negative fund balances in other governmental funds.
In circumstances when a disbursement is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in multiple fund balance
classifications, fund balance is depleted in the order of restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned.
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Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then.
Currently, the City has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred amounts relating to employer
contributions to the retirement plan.
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
The City has only one type of item that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred pension inflows relating to the
retirement plan. These amounts are recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available.
Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension asset, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Missouri Local Government
Employees Retirement System (LAGERS) and additions to / deductions from LAGERS fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by LAGERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are
reported at fair value.
Program Revenues
In the Statement of Activities, revenues that are derived directly from each activity or from parties outside the City’s
taxpayers are reported as program revenues. These include 1) charges for city court fines, licenses and permits, planning
and zoning services, parks and recreation services or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3)
capital grants and contributions. All other governmental revenues are reported as general. All taxes are classified as
general revenues, even if restricted for a specific purpose.

2. Risks & Uncertainties
During 2020, a strain of coronavirus was identified as a global pandemic and began affecting the health of large portions
of the global population (COVID-19). The detrimental impact of this virus is not yet fully determinable, but will likely
continue to be significant for both the City and overall economy. COVID-19 has been identified as a significant risk and
uncertainty that could impact future operations and result in changes in estimates and assumptions made in the financial
statements.

3. Cash & Cash Equivalents
Primary Government
State statutes require that the City’s deposits be insured or collateralized in the name of the City by the trust department
of a bank that does not hold the collateralized deposits. As of September 30, 2020, all bank balances on deposit are entirely
insured or collateralized.

41

City of Warrensburg
Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2020
Warrensburg Convention and Visitors Bureau
State statutes require that the Bureau’s deposits be insured or collateralized in the name of the Bureau by the trust
department of a bank that does not hold the collateralized deposits. As of September 30, 2020, all bank balances on
deposit are entirely insured or collateralized.

4. Investments
Primary Government
The City categorizes its investments within the fair value hierarchy as discussed in Note 1. At September 30, 2020, the City
had the following recurring investments:

Investment Type
Guaranteed Investment Contracts
Missouri Securities Investment
Program
(MOSIP) - Certificates of Deposit
Missouri Securities Investment
Program
(MOSIP) - Cash Management Funds

Maturity

Not Subject to
Fair Value
Hierarchy

1/1/2028

$

1/20/2021 to
5/27/2021

645,806

Fair Value
Level 1
$

738,000

N/A
$

561,818
1,945,624

Total
-

$

-

$

-

645,806

738,000

$

561,818
1,945,624

Guaranteed Investment Contracts
The City has Guaranteed Investment Contracts on deposit with United Missouri Bank. These investments are not required
to be reported under fair value hierarchy. Fair market value approximates cost as the City has a pro-rata share of the fund.
These deposits are held in trust accounts for the 2007 Sewer System Revenue Bonds and the reserve accounts. The City’s
funds are invested under the State Revolving Fund Program and are required to be collateralized in the amount of 100%
of the value of the investment.
Missouri Securities Investment Program
City funds in the Missouri Securities Investment Program are invested in cash management funds in which the City has a
pro-rata share. The funds are invested in accordance with Section 165.051 and Section 360 of the Missouri Revised
Statutes and the cash management fund has a current rating of AAAm. These investments are not required to be reported
under fair value hierarchy.
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Certificates of Deposit
Certificates of deposit with maturities in excess of three months at the date of purchase are classified as investments but
are considered deposits for custodial risk determination. State statutes require that the City’s deposits be collateralized
in the name of the City by the trust department of a bank that does not hold the collateralized deposits. As of September
30, 2020, all certificates of deposit are entirely insured or collateralized with securities.
Interest Rate Risk
The City limits its exposure to interest rate risk. The City restricts its investments to those maturing in 5 years or less. This
policy is limited to those investments made directly by the City and does not apply to investments of debt reserves made
by trust account managers.
Custodial Credit Risk
The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, the City
will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a
transaction, the City will not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities that are in the possession
of an outside party. The City’s policy is to collateralize the demand deposits and repurchase agreements with securities
held by the financial institution’s agent and in the City’s name.
At September 30, 2020, the City’s deposits were insured by Federal depository insurance and uninsured deposits were
fully collateralized by securities held in the City’s name by their financial and government obligations and, accordingly, the
City was not exposed to such credit risks.
Concentration of Credit Risk
The City’s investment policy does not limit the amount it may invest in any one issuer. At September 30, 2020, the City’s
only investments were amounts held in trust invested in Guaranteed Investment Contracts on deposit with United
Missouri Bank. The trust agreement requires that these amounts be collateralized in the amount of 100% of the value of
the investment, and, accordingly, the City was not exposed to such credit risks.
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5. Accounts Receivable
Primary Government
Accounts receivable are presented net of allowance for doubtful accounts as follows:
Accounts
Receivable

General Fund
Ad valorem taxes receivable
Sales and use tax receivable
Franchise tax receivable
Lodging tax receivable

$

Court fines receivable
Park Fund
Ad valorem taxes receivable
Sales and use tax receivable
Other receivables

Net Accounts
Receivable

Allowance
$

$

24,742
767,259
236,166
31,685
1,059,852

$

$

13,338
13,338

$

11,404
767,259
236,166
31,685
1,046,514

$

38,684

$

36,105

$

2,579

$

$

$

$

3,000
18,689
21,689

$

3,618
227,841
19,240
250,699

$

6,618
227,841
37,929
272,388

Capital Improvement Transportation Fund
Motor fuel and vehicle taxes receivable

$

127,252

$

-

$

127,252

Capital Improvement Half-Cent Fund
Sales and use tax receivable

$

309,698

$

-

$

309,698

Neighborhood Improvement Fund
Special assessments receivable

$

697,263

$

246,711

$

450,552

Capital Improvement Bond Fund
Ad valorem taxes receivable

$

19,872

$

-

$

19,872

Sewer Fund
Utilities receivable

$

610,081

$

107,022

$

503,059
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6. Restricted Assets
Primary Government
Cash, investments and net position have been restricted in the following funds and activities as follows:
Restricted
Cash and
Investments
General Fund
Court bonds
Seizures and forfeitures

Restricted
Net Position

$

13,422
26,520

$

-

$

39,942

$

-

$

250
1
-

$

1,375,602

$

251

$

1,375,602

Tri-Centennial Fund
Tri-Centennial activities

$

-

$

15,174

Capital Improvement Fund
Trustee funds

$

-

$

553,304

Capital Improvement Half Cent Fund
Trustee funds

$

-

$

720,151

Debt Service Fund
Debt service reserves

$

7

$

14,990

Neighborhood Improvement Fund
Debt service reserves

$

-

$

265,958

TIF Fund
Debt service reserves

$

-

$

20

Park Fund
Refundable deposits
2014 Refunding Certificates of Participation Payment fund
Parks and recreation
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Restricted
Cash and
Investments

Restricted
Net Position

Capital Improvement Bond Fund
Project reserves

$

469,443

$

480,572

Vehicle Fund
Capital improvements

$

2,020

$

2,020

$

122,559
648,149

$

648,149

Sewer Fund
2007 Revenue Bonds
Rebate account
Principal and interest
2010 Revenue Bonds
Principal and interest

126,749
$

897,457

126,749
$

774,898

7. Long-Term Liabilities – Governmental Activities
Long-term liabilities of the City of Warrensburg consist of four Certificates of Participation, three capital leases, one
General Obligation Bond issue, two Neighborhood Improvement Bonds payable, and compensated absences payable.
During the year ended September 30, 2017, the City entered into a lease purchase agreement to finance police RMS
Software and Park fitness equipment in the amount of $369,762. In the event of default, the Lessor may declare all
payments immediately due and payable or retake possession of the leased property. The agreement requires quarterly
payments of $19,710, including interest at 2.47% as shown in following schedule:
Year Ending
September 30,
2021
2022

Principal

Direct Borrowing
Interest

Total

$

76,689
39,058

$

2,151
362

$

78,840
39,420

$

115,747

$

2,513

$

118,260
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During the year ended September 30, 2017, the City entered into a lease purchase agreement to finance a Pierce Pumper
Fire Truck in the amount of $344,678. In the event of default, the Lessor may declare all payments immediately due and
payable or retake possession of the leased property. The agreement requires annual payments of $91,820, including
interest at 3.3% as shown in following schedule:
Year Ending
September 30,
2021

Principal
$

89,502

Direct Borrowing
Interest
$

2,318

Total
$

91,820

During the year ended September 30, 2019, the City entered into a lease purchase agreement to finance a Johnston Street
Sweeper in the amount of $234,580. In the event of default, the Lessor may declare all payments immediately due and
payable or retake possession of the leased property. The agreement requires annual payments of $51,735, including
interest at 3.35% as shown in the following schedule:
Year Ending
September 30,
2021
2022
2023
2024

Principal

Direct Borrowing
Interest

Total

$

45,346
46,865
48,435
50,058

$

6,389
4,869
3,300
1,677

$

51,735
51,734
51,735
51,735

$

190,704

$

16,235

$

206,939

These lease agreements provide for cancellation of the leases on the annual renewal date if the City should fail to
appropriate funds. However, the City does not foresee exercising its option to cancel. Therefore, these leases are
accounted for as noncancellable capital leases in accordance with GASB Section C20 – “Leases.”
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Series 2013 Certificates of Participation
The City issued $8,485,000 of Series 2013 Refunding Certificates of Participation. The Certificates were issued to refund
the Series 2007 Certificates of Participation which were originally used to fund various city building improvements and
public safety equipment. The Certificates of Participation bear interest at 2.35% with principal and interest payments due
March 1 and September 1 each year.
The total annual minimum lease payments required at September 30, 2020, are as follows:
Year Ending
September 30,

Principal

2021
2022
2023
2024

Interest

Total

$

865,000
940,000
1,020,000
1,005,000

$

84,894
64,155
41,595
17,684

$

949,894
1,004,155
1,061,595
1,022,684

$

3,830,000

$

208,328

$

4,038,328

Series 2014 Certificates of Participation
The City issued $655,000 of Series 2014 Certificates of Participation. The Certificates were issued to finance the
Community Center roof project. The Certificates of Participation bear interest of 2.83% with principal payments due
September 1 and interest payments due March 1 and September 1 each year.
The total annual minimum lease payments required at September 30, 2020, are as follows:
September 30,

Principal

2021
2022
2023
2024
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Interest

Total

$

70,000
72,000
74,000
76,000

$

8,264
6,283
4,245
2,150

$

78,264
78,283
78,245
78,150

$

292,000

$

20,942

$

312,942
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Series 2017 Certificates of Participation
December 12, 2017, the City issued $7,700,000 in Series 2017 Refunding Certificates of Participation for the purpose of
refunding the 2009 and 2010 Certificates of Participation, which were originally issued for financing certain park projects,
city buildings, and equipment purchases. The Certificates of Participation bear interest from 3.0% to 5.0% with principal
payments due September 1 and interest payments due March 1 and September 1 each year.
The total annual minimum lease payments required at September 30, 2020, are as follows:
Year Ending
September 30,

Principal

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033

Interest

Total

$

335,000
340,000
380,000
385,000
605,000
660,000
715,000
750,000
805,000
350,000
395,000
425,000
420,000

$

232,825
216,075
199,075
183,875
168,475
144,275
117,875
96,425
73,925
49,775
39,275
26,931
13,650

$

567,825
556,075
579,075
568,875
773,475
804,275
832,875
846,425
878,925
399,775
434,275
451,931
433,650

$

6,565,000

$

1,562,456

$

8,127,456

Neighborhood Improvements Bonds – Series 2001
The City issued $105,000 of Series 2001 Neighborhood Improvement Bonds. The Bonds were issued to finance certain
improvements to Russell Avenue. The bonds bear interest from 4.875% to 5.625% with principal payments due September
1 and interest payments due March 1 and September 1 each year. In conjunction with the issuance of these bonds, the
City has agreed to assess certain Russell Avenue property owners the $105,000 cost of such improvements. The owners
will be assessed $9,200 annually over the next 20 years. The special assessments received will be used for bond payments.
The total annual principal and interest payments required at September 30, 2020, are as follows:
Year Ending
September 30,

Principal

2021

$
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Interest
$

Total
225

$

8,225
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General Obligation Bonds – Series 2017
The City issued $5,550,000 of Series 2017 General Obligation Bonds. The Bonds were issued to finance certain Fire
Department Improvements and Street Improvements. The bonds bear interest from 2% to 5% with principal payments
due September 1 and interest payments due March 1 and September 1 each year.
The total annual principal and interest payments required at September 30, 2020, are as follows:
Year Ending
September 30,
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027

Principal

Direct Borrowing
Interest

Total

$

930,000
980,000
210,000
220,000
235,000
245,000
255,000

$

73,400
40,100
22,250
16,900
12,350
7,550
2,550

$

1,003,400
1,020,100
232,250
236,900
247,350
252,550
257,550

$

3,075,000

$

175,100

$

3,250,100

Neighborhood Improvement District Limited General Obligation Refunding Bonds – Series 2019
The City issued $1,695,000 of Series 2019 General Obligation Refunding Bonds. The Bonds were issued to pay off the
outstanding bond balance of the Series 2011 Neighborhood Improvement District Bond.
The total annual principal and interest payments required at September 30, 2020, are as follows:
Year Ending
September 30,
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031

Principal

Direct Borrowing
Interest

Total

$

130,000
130,000
135,000
135,000
135,000
145,000
145,000
150,000
150,000
155,000
160,000

$

32,659
29,838
26,962
24,033
21,103
18,065
14,919
11,718
8,463
5,154
1,736

$

162,659
159,838
161,962
159,033
156,103
163,065
159,919
161,718
158,463
160,154
161,736

$

1,570,000

$

194,650

$

1,764,650
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The following table is a summary of the changes in the Long-Term Liabilities – Governmental Activities:
Balance
September 30,
2019
Direct Borrowings
Capital lease - US Bancorp
Capital lease - PNC Equipment Finance
Capital lease - US Bank - Technology
2001 Neighborhood Improvement Bonds
2011 Neighborhood Improvement Bonds
2017 General Obligation Bonds
2019 General Obligation Refunding Bonds
2013 Refunding Certificates of Participation
2014 Certificates of Participation
2017 Refunding Certificates of Participation
Issuance premiums
Issuance discounts

$

Compensated Absences
Total

$

Additions

234,580
176,745
190,570
16,000
2,390,000
3,960,000
4,615,000
361,000
6,910,000
546,501
(29,441)

$

Retirements

1,695,000
-

$

43,876
87,243
74,823
8,000
2,390,000
885,000
125,000
785,000
69,000
345,000
54,257
(2,265)
-

Balance
September 30,
2020
$

190,704
89,502
115,747
8,000
3,075,000
1,570,000
3,830,000
292,000
6,565,000
492,244
(27,176)

Amounts
Due Within
One Year
$

45,346
89,502
76,689
8,000
930,000
130,000
865,000
70,000
335,000
-

19,370,955

1,695,000

4,864,934

16,201,021

2,549,537

494,402

-

69,819

424,583

-

19,865,357

$
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1,695,000

$

4,934,753

$

16,625,604

$

2,549,537

City of Warrensburg
Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

8. Long-Term Liabilities – Business-Type Activities
Long-term liabilities in the Sewer Fund consists of the 2007 and 2010 Sewer System Revenue Bonds, and compensated
absences.
2007 Sewerage System Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds
The City entered into an agreement with the State Environmental Improvement and Energy Resources Authority, the City
issued $14.15 million in Sewerage System Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2007. The bonds bear
interest at 4.00% to 4.75%. In connection with the City’s issuance of these revenue bonds, the City began participating in
a revolving loan program established by the Missouri Department of Natural Resources (DNR). The State of Missouri
manages and invests the bond proceeds on behalf of the City. As the City incurs approved capital expenditures, DNR
reimburses the City for the expenditure from the bond proceeds account and deposits an additional 70% of the
expenditure amount in a Bond Reserve Fund in the City’s name. The interest paid on these sewer revenue bonds is offset
by an interest subsidy from the State of Missouri’s 70% bond reserves. Interest payments are due semi-annually on
January 1 and July 1 of each year with annual principal payments due July 1 of each year. In the event of default, the DNR
will have the right to take whatever action at law or in equity they deem necessary.
The annual debt service requirements to amortize the principal on the 2007 revenue bonds outstanding at September 30,
2020, are as follows:
Year Ending
September 30,
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027

Direct Placement
Administrative
Interest
Fee

Principal

Total

$

830,000
845,000
865,000
885,000
905,000
925,000
945,000

$

265,781
227,038
186,425
147,075
106,775
63,312
20,672

$

44,268
38,342
32,309
26,132
19,814
13,352
6,747

$

1,140,049
1,110,380
1,083,734
1,058,207
1,031,589
1,001,664
972,419

$

6,200,000

$

1,017,078

$

180,964

$

7,398,042
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2010 Sewerage System Revenue Bonds
On September 30, 2015, the City had issued the maximum of $8,548,500, in the State of Missouri Direct Loan Program
sewerage system revenue bonds, Series 2010, for the purpose of extending and improving the City’s sewerage system.
The bonds bear interest at 1.48%. The principal and interest payments are due January 1 and July 1 of each year. Bonds
may be called at any time for redemption under various provisions outlined in the bond ordinance. In the event of default,
the State of Missouri will have the right to take whatever action at law or in equity they deem necessary.
The annual debt service requirements to amortize the principal on the 2010 revenue bonds outstanding at September 30,
2020, are as follows:
Year Ending
September 30,
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030

Direct Placement
Administrative
Interest
Fee

Principal

Total

$

438,000
446,000
456,000
464,000
474,000
483,000
493,000
503,000
513,000
524,500

$

69,345
62,833
56,196
49,417
42,513
35,468
28,283
20,949
13,468
5,839

$

23,428
21,228
18,985
16,695
14,362
11,983
9,555
7,078
4,550
1,972

$

530,773
530,061
531,181
530,112
530,875
530,451
530,838
531,027
531,018
532,311

$

4,794,500

$

384,311

$

129,836

$

5,308,647
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Changes in Long-Term Liabilities - Enterprise Funds
The following table is a summary of the changes in the Enterprise Fund long-term liabilities for the year ended September 30, 2020:
Balance
September 30,
2019
Direct Placements
Revenue Bonds
Series 2007 SRF Revenue Bonds
Series 2010 SRF Revenue Bonds
Premium on bonds

$

Compensated Absences
Total

$

Additions

7,015,000
5,224,500
61,923

$

Retirements

-

$

815,000
430,000
8,191

Balance
September 30,
2020

$

6,200,000
4,794,500
53,732

Amounts
Due Within
One Year

$

830,000
438,000
-

12,301,423

-

1,253,191

11,048,232

1,268,000

34,398

-

1,384

33,014

-

12,335,821

$
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-

$

1,254,575

$

11,081,246

$

1,268,000
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9. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2020, was as follows:
Balance
September 30,
2019
Governmental Activities
Non-depreciable Capital Assets
Land
Construction in progress
Total Non-depreciable Capital Assets
Depreciable Capital Assets
Building and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Total Depreciable Capital Assets
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Depreciable Capital Assets, Net
Total Capital Assets Governmental Activities, Net

$

Additions

2,940,764
2,115,533
5,056,297

$

29,675,283
11,294,084
50,575,136
91,544,503

$

46,796,717
44,747,786

Deletions

251,885
251,885

$

$

$

18,400
113,280
364,071
495,751

$

2,333,552

$

$ 49,804,083

Balance
September 30,
2020

$

-

$

2,940,764
2,367,418
5,308,182

$

347,226
347,226

29,693,683
11,060,138
50,939,207
91,693,028

$

321,572

48,808,697
42,884,331
$ 48,192,513

Depreciation expense for governmental activities was charged to functions as follows:
General
Information Technology
Buildings and grounds
Fire
Police
Animal control
Parks
Community development
Streets
Cemetery
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$

139,182
4,417
2,359
179,452
101,504
12,511
494,772
4,641
1,379,374
15,340

$

2,333,552
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Balance
September 30,
2019
Business-Type Activities
Sewer
Non-depreciable Capital Assets
Land
Total Non-depreciable Capital Assets

$

Additions

Balance
September 30,
2020

Deletions

392,583
392,583

$
$

-

$
$

-

$

392,583
392,583

Depreciable Capital Assets
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Sewer mains and lines
Total Depreciable Capital Assets

19,494,721
1,123,051
27,214,393
47,832,165

$

$

$

156,042
16,216
146,908
319,166

$

5,000
5,000

19,650,763
1,134,267
27,361,301
48,146,331

Less Accumulated Depreciation

23,276,696

$

1,487,298

$

5,000

24,758,994

Depreciable Capital Assets, Net
Total Capital Assets Business-Type Activities, Net

24,555,469

23,387,337

$ 24,948,052

$ 23,779,920

10. Employee Pension Plan
General Information about the Pension Plan
Plan Description. The City’s defined benefit pension plan provides certain retirement, disability and death benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. The City participates in the Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System
(LAGERS). LAGERS is an agent multiple-employer, statewide public employee pension plan established in 1967 and
administered in accordance with RSMo. 70.600-70.755. As such, it is LAGERS responsibility to administer the law in
accordance with the expressed intent of the General Assembly. The plan is qualified under the Internal Revenue Code
Section 401(a) and is tax exempt. The responsibility for the operations and administration of LAGERS is vested in the
LAGERS Board of Trustees consisting of seven persons. LAGERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. This report may be obtained by accessing the LAGERS
website at www.molagers.org.
Benefits Provided. LAGERS provides retirement, death and disability benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the
governing body of the employer, within the options available in the state statutes governing LAGERS. All benefits vest
after 5 years of credited service. Employees who retire on or after age 60 (55 for police) with 5 or more years of service
are entitled to an allowance for life based upon the benefit program information provided below. Employees may retire
with an early retirement benefit with a minimum of 5 years of credited service and after attaining age 55 (50 for police)
and receive a reduced allowance.
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2020 Valuation
Benefit Multiplier
Final Average Salary

1.50% for life
5 Years

Member Contributions

0%

Benefit terms provide for annual post retirement adjustments to each member’s retirement allowance subsequent to the
member’s retirement date. The annual adjustment is based on the increase in the Consumer Price Index and is limited to
4% per year.
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms. At June 30, 2020, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:
General
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active employees

Police

Fire

Total

42
31
63

15
31
32

20
25
23

77
87
118

136

78

68

282

Contributions. The employer is required to contribute amounts at least equal to the actuarially determined rate, as
established by LAGERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits
earned by employees during the year. With an additional amount to finance an unfunded accrued liability. Employer
contribution rates are 6.2% for General, 5.5% for Police, and 2.4% for Fire of annual covered payroll.
Net Pension Asset. The employer’s net pension asset was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of February 29, 2020.
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Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the February 29, 2020, actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:
Inflation

3.25% wage inflation; 2.50% price inflation

Salary Increase

3.25% to 6.55% including wage inflation for General and Police Divisions

Salary Increase

3.25% to 7.15% including wage inflation for Fire Division

Investment Rate of Return

7.25%, net of investment expenses

The healthy retiree mortality tables, for post-retirement mortality, were the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant mortality table
for males and females. The disabled retiree mortality tables, for post-retirement mortality, were the RP-2014 disabled
mortality table for males and females. The pre-retirement mortality tables used were the RP-2014 employees mortality
table for males and females.
Both the post-retirement and pre-retirement tables were adjusted for mortality improvement back to the observation
period base year of 2006. The base year for males was then established to be 2017. Mortality rates for a particular calendar
year are determined by applying the MP-2015 mortality improvement scale to the above described tables.
The actuarial assumptions used in the February 29, 2020, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period March 1, 2010, through February 28, 2015.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a model method in which the
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of investment expenses and inflation)
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. The target allocation and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:
Asset Class
Alpha
Equity
Fixed Income
Real Assets
Strategic Assets
Cash/Leverage

Target
Allocation

Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return

15.00%
35.00%
31.00%
36.00%
8.00%
-25.00%

3.67%
4.78%
1.41%
3.29%
5.25%
-0.29%

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is 7.25%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumes that employer and employee contributions will be made at the rates agreed upon
for employees and the actuarially determined rates for employers. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to pay all projected future benefit payments of current active and
inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payment to determine the total pension liability.
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Changes in the Net Pension Asset

General Division
Balance at beginning of year
Changes for the year
Service cost
Interest
Difference between expected
and actual experiences
Contributions - employer
Net investment income
Benefits paid, including refunds
Administrative expenses
Other changes
Net Changes
Balance at end of year

Total Pension
Liability
(a)
$ 10,246,185

Police Division
Balance at beginning of year
Changes for the year
Service cost
Interest
Difference between expected
and actual experiences
Contributions - employer
Net investment income
Benefits paid, including refunds
Administrative expenses
Other changes
Net Changes
Balance at end of year
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Increase (Decrease)
Plan Fiduciary
Net Pension
(b)
$ 11,879,314

Net Pension
(Asset)
(a) - (b)
$
(1,633,129)

249,256
735,308

-

249,256
735,308

467,138
(460,982)
990,720
11,236,905

185,936
160,354
(460,982)
(17,616)
109,407
(22,901)
11,856,413

467,138
(185,936)
(160,354)
17,616
(109,407)
1,013,621
(619,508)

7,845,074

9,381,164

(1,536,090)

144,803
561,211

-

144,803
561,211

329,212
(356,985)
678,241
8,523,315

70,284
129,516
(356,985)
(9,011)
77,189
(89,007)
9,292,157

329,212
(70,284)
(129,516)
9,011
(77,189)
767,248
(768,842)

City of Warrensburg
Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

Fire Division
Balance at beginning of year
Changes for the year
Service cost
Interest
Difference between expected
and actual experiences
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income
Benefits paid, including refunds
Administrative expenses
Other changes
Net Changes
Balance at end of year
Total Plan Balances at end of year

Total Pension
Liability
(a)
6,220,320

Increase (Decrease)
Plan Fiduciary
Net Pension
(b)
8,193,953

149,651
442,978

$

428,165
(374,128)
646,666
6,866,986
26,627,206

Net Pension
(Asset)
(a) - (b)
(1,973,633)

-

$

32,057
105,804
(374,128)
(6,991)
(64,546)
(307,804)
7,886,149
29,034,719

149,651
442,978

$

428,165
(32,057)
(105,804)
6,991
64,546
954,470
(1,019,163)
(2,407,513)

The Net Pension (Asset) is allocated as follows:

Net Pension
(Asset)
Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities

$

(2,294,763)
(112,750)

$

(2,407,513)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Asset to Changes in the Discount Rate. The following present the Net Pension Asset of the
employer, calculated using the discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what the employer’s Net Pension Asset would be using
a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.25%) or one percentage point higher (8.25%) than the current rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

General Division
Total Pension Liability
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Net Pension Liability/(Asset)

1% Decrease
6.25%
$ 12,820,796
11,856,413
964,383

Current Single
Discount Rate
Assumption
7.25%
$ 11,236,905
11,856,413
(619,508)

Police Division
Total Pension Liability
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Net Pension Liability/(Asset)

9,848,747
9,292,157
556,590

8,523,315
9,292,157
(768,842)

7,453,363
9,292,157
(1,838,794)

Fire Division
Total Pension Liability
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Net Pension (Asset)
Total Net Pension Liability/(Asset)

7,902,168
7,886,149
16,019
1,536,992

6,866,986
7,886,149
(1,019,163)
(2,407,513)

6,024,924
7,886,149
(1,861,225)
(5,624,744)

$

$

1% Increase
8.25%
$
9,931,688
11,856,413
(1,924,725)

$

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
For the year ended 2020, the employer recognized pension expense of $262,599 in the general division, pension expense
of $175,578 in the police division, and pension expense of $189,385 in the fire division. The employer reported deferred
outflows and inflows of resources to be recognized in future expenses from the following sources:

Deferred
Outflow of
Resources
General Division
Differences in experiences
Differences in assumptions
Excess investment returns
Contributions subsequent to
the measurement date

$

371,212
289,343
45,927
706,482
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Deferred
(Inflow) of
Resources
$

(13,402)
(13,402)

Net Deferred
Outflows (Inflows)
of Resources
$

357,810
289,343
45,927
693,080

City of Warrensburg
Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2020
Deferred
Outflow of
Resources
Police Division
Differences in experiences
Differences in assumptions
Excess investment returns
Contributions subsequent to
the measurement date

Fire Division
Differences in experiences
Differences in assumptions
Excess investment returns
Contributions subsequent to
the measurement date
Total

$

Deferred
(Inflow) of
Resources

Net Deferred
Outflows (Inflows)
of Resources

302,132
5,856
231,339

(61,699)
-

240,433
5,856
231,339

17,223
556,550

(61,699)

17,223
494,851

326,075
166,049

(82,403)
-

243,672
166,049

7,894
500,018
1,763,050

(82,403)
(157,504)

7,894
417,615
1,605,546

$

$

Deferred outflows and (inflows) have been allocated as follows:

Deferred
Outflow of
Resources
Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities

$

1,634,470
128,580
1,763,050

$

Deferred
(Inflow) of
Resources
$
$

(155,065)
(2,439)
(157,504)

Net Deferred
Outflows (Inflows)
of Resources
$
$

1,479,405
126,141
1,605,546

*The amount reported as deferred outflow of resources resulting from contributions subsequent to the measurement
date will be recognized as a reduction in the Net Pension Asset for the year ending September 30, 2021.
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense
as follows:
Net Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources
General
Police
Fire
Division
Division
Division

Year Ending
June 30,
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

Total

$

37,513
134,342
252,991
222,307
-

$

31,085
76,700
189,271
172,870
7,702
-

$

16,627
91,918
187,132
114,044
-

$

85,225
302,960
629,394
509,221
7,702
-

$

647,153

$

477,628

$

409,721

$

1,534,502

11. Assessed Valuation, Tax Levy, & Legal Debt Margin
The assessed valuation of the tangible property and the tax levies per $100 assessed valuation of that property were as
follows:
2019
Assessed Valuation
Real estate
Personal property
Total

$ 181,616,419
42,492,384
$ 224,108,803
2019

Tax Rate Per $100 of Assessed Valuation
General levy
Park levy
Debt service levy
Total

$

$

.3608
.1960
.5900
1.1468

The legal debt margin at September 30, 2020, was computed as follows:

Constitutional debt limit
General Obligation Bonds payable
Legal Debt Margin
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General Obligation Bonds
Ordinary (1)
Additional (2)
$ 22,410,880
$ 22,410,880
$
(4,645,000)
-

Total
44,821,760
(4,645,000)

$

40,176,760

17,765,880

$

22,410,880

$

City of Warrensburg
Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2020
(1) Under Article VI, Section 26(b) and (c), Missouri Constitution, the City, by a vote of its qualified electors voting therein,
may incur an indebtedness for any purposes authorized in the charter of the City or by any general law of the State of
Missouri. The borrowings authorized by this section shall not exceed ten percent of the value of the taxable tangible
property in the City.
(2) Under Article VI, Section 26(d) and (e), Missouri Constitution, the City, by a vote of its qualified electors voting therein,
may become indebted not exceeding in the aggregate an additional ten percent for the purpose of acquiring rights of way,
constructing, extending, and improving streets and avenues, and/or sanitary or storm sewer systems; and purchasing or
constructing waterworks, electric or other light plants, provided that the total general obligation indebtedness of the City
does not exceed twenty percent of the value of the taxable tangible property in the City.

12. Unearned Revenue
Revenues from receivables not expected to be collected in time to pay current operating expenses are considered
unearned until received in the governmental funds. These unearned revenues include special assessments to be collected
over several years, and class fees. All of the unearned revenue at September 30, 2020, is accounted for as follows:
General Fund
Police department forfeit and seizure

$

26,520

$

93,619

$

450,552

Park Fund
Class fees
Neighborhood Improvement Fund
Special assessments

13. Risk Management
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City has transferred its risk by obtaining coverage from a
public self-insured insurance pool. In addition, it has effectively managed risk through various employee education and
prevention programs. There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year.
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14. Interfund Transfers
Interfund transfers for the year ended September 30, 2020, consisted of the following:
Transfers In
842,519
82,434
2,788,976
520,000
$
4,233,929

General Fund
Park Fund
Capital Improvement Half Cent Fund
Vehicle Fund
Debt Service Fund
Capital Improvement Bond Fund
Neighborhood Improvement Fund
Sewer Fund

$

Transfers Out
$
718,467
297,472
1,402,990
995,000
820,000
$
4,233,929

Transfers are used to (1) move receipts from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund that
statute or budget requires to disburse them, and (2) use unrestricted receipts in the Enterprise Funds and General Fund
to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

15. Internal Balances
Internal balances as of September 30, 2020, consisted of the following:

Internal Balances

$

General
Fund
145,000

Debt Service
Fund
$
(145,000)

During the course of its operations, the City has numerous transactions between funds to finance operations, provide
services, construct assets, and service debt. To the extent that certain transactions between funds have not been paid or
received as of September 30, 2020, balances of interfund amounts receivable or payable have been recorded within the
fund financial statements.

16. Pledged Revenues
The City has pledged future water and sewer customer revenues to repay the Series 2007 and 2010 Sewer Revenue Bonds
issued to improve and expand the sewer system. The bonds are payable solely from sewer customers net revenues and
are payable through 2030. Net revenues are revenues of the system less expenses of the system with the exception of
depreciation. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $12,395,889. Principal and interest paid
for the current year and total customer net revenues were $1,622,005 and $2,522,212, respectively.
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17. Keystone Tax Increment Financing Redevelopment Agreement
The Keystone TIF is committed to reimburse the developer for public infrastructure improvements in the Keystone
Redevelopment Area. There is no debt on the City’s part. However, the City is obligated to repay $2,355,801 of public
infrastructure improvements to the extent that taxes are collected within this District. The City is only obligated if taxes
are collected and only through the year 2038. As of September 30, 2020, the City has paid the developer $379,019, leaving
a remaining balance of $1,976,782.

18. Conduit Debt
On June 8, 2017, the City authorized the issuance of $110,110,000 aggregate maximum principal amount of Taxable
Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, Series 2017. The issuance is Chapter 100 debt in order to provide economic
financial assistance to a third-party private entity and the City has no obligation beyond the rents, revenues and receipts
derived by the City from the Project; therefore, the issue does not constitute a debt of the City and, accordingly, are not
included in the City’s statement of net position. The bonds are issued as the Project proceeds. As of September 30, 2020,
the full $110,110,000 had been issued.
In May 2008, the City authorized the issuance of $45,000,000 aggregate maximum principal amount of Taxable Industrial
Development Revenue Bonds, Series 2008. The issuance is Chapter 100 debt in order to provide economic financial
assistance to a third-party private entity and the City has no obligation beyond the rents, revenues and receipts derived
by the City from the Project; therefore, the issue does not constitute a debt of the City and, accordingly, are not included
in the City’s statement of net position. The bonds are issued as the Project proceeds. As of September 30, 2020,
$43,869,147 had been issued.

19. Current Year Bond Refunding
On December 9, 2019 the City issued $1,695,000 in general obligation refunding bonds with interest of 2.17%. The City
issued the bonds to pay the remaining of the Neighborhood Improvement District Series 2011 Bonds outstanding principal
on December 9, 2019.
As a result of the refunding, the City decreased its total debt service requirement by $285,991, which resulted in an
economic gain (difference between the present value of the debt service payments on old and new debt) of $221,946.
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City of Warrensburg
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Asset and Related Ratios
Year Ended September 30, 2020
Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System (LAGERS)

Total Pension Liability
Service cost
Interest on the total pension liability
Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments

June 30,
2020
$

Net Change in Total Pension Liability
Total Pension Liability, Beginning
Total Pension Liability, Ending
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Pension plan net investment income
Benefit payments
Pension plan administrative expense
Other

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability

Employer's net pension asset as a percentage
of covered employee payroll

505,322
1,589,103
(378,857)
(807,774)

$

462,167
1,491,584
73,407
(602,357)

June 30,
2016
$

431,128
1,358,800
(53,903)
719,477
(674,859)

June 30,
2015
$

437,162
1,292,940
(182,349)
(599,217)

907,794

1,424,801

1,780,643

948,536

24,311,579
26,627,206

22,975,035
24,311,579

22,067,241
22,975,035

20,642,440
22,067,241

18,861,797
20,642,440

17,913,261
18,861,797

(2,407,513)

$

109.04%
$

$

June 30,
2017

1,336,544

29,454,431
29,034,719
$

513,898
1,654,015
10,356
(841,725)

June 30,
2018

2,315,627

(419,712)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position, Beginning
Plan Fiduciary Net Position, Ending

Covered employee payroll

$

288,277
395,674
(1,192,095)
(33,618)
122,050

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Employer Net Pension (Asset)

543,710
1,739,497
1,224,515
(1,192,095)

June 30,
2019

6,145,225
(39.18%)

303,536
1,881,335
(841,725)
(28,745)
82,444

253,688
5,374
3,180,351
(807,774)
(19,892)
112,226

267,924
2,744,149
(602,357)
(18,628)
75,944

327,108
11,176
(53,020)
(674,859)
(18,848)
(266,524)

436,101
478,382
(599,217)
(20,132)
450,476

1,396,845

2,723,973

2,467,032

(674,967)

745,610

28,057,586
29,454,431

25,333,613
28,057,586

22,866,581
25,333,613

(5,142,852)

$

121.15%
$

5,907,448
(87.06%)

(5,082,551)

$

122.12%
$

5,567,272
(91.29%)

(3,266,372)

23,541,548
22,866,581
$

114.80%
$

5,587,967
(58.45%)

(2,224,141)

$

110.77%
$

4,910,908
(45.29%)

This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.
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22,795,938
23,541,548
(4,679,751)
124.81%
$

4,807,182
(97.35%)

City of Warrensburg
Schedule of Contributions
Year Ended September 30, 2020
Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System (LAGERS)
2020
Actuarially determined contribution

$

Contributions in relation to the
actuarially determined contribution

2019

282,381
282,381

Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

Covered-employee payroll

$ 5,908,705

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

$

-

4.78%

335,095

2018
$

315,365
$

19,730

$ 6,046,527
5.22%

2017

256,773

$

256,773
$

-

$ 5,638,846
4.55%

2016

249,997

$

249,997
$

-

$ 5,585,361
4.48%

2015

315,514

$

315,515
$

(1)

$ 5,178,591
6.09%

2014

421,140
421,140

$

-

$ 4,972,607
8.47%

See accompanying notes to the Schedule of Contributions.
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$

2013

479,472

$

479,472
$

-

$ 4,921,620
9.74%

521,963

2012
$

474,502
$

47,461

$ 4,869,803
9.74%

493,031

2011
$

436,855
$

56,176

$ 4,975,442
8.78%

465,772
392,554

$

73,218

$ 5,042,751
7.78%

City of Warrensburg
Notes to the Schedule of Contributions
Year Ended September 30, 2020
Valuation Date: February 29, 2020
Notes: The roll-forward of total pension liability from February 29, 2020, to June 30, 2020, reflects expected service cost
and interest reduced by actual benefit payments.
Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates
Actuarial Cost Method: Entry Age Normal and Modified Terminal Funding
Amortization Method: Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed
Remaining Amortization Period: 15 years
Asset Valuation Method: 5-Year smoothed market; 20% corridor
Inflation: 3.25% wage inflation; 2.50% price inflation
Salary Increases: 3.25% to 6.55% including wage inflation for general and police divisions
3.25% to 7.15% including wage inflation for fire division
Investment Rate of Return: 7.25%, net of investment expenses
Retirement Age: Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility condition
Mortality: The healthy retiree mortality tables, for post-retirement mortality, were the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant
mortality table for males and females. The disabled retiree mortality tables, for post-retirement mortality, were the RP2014 disabled mortality table for males and females. The pre-retirement mortality tables used were the RP-2014
employees mortality table for males and females.
Both the post-retirement and pre-retirement tables were adjusted for mortality improvement back to the observation
period base year of 2006. The base year for males was then established to be 2017. Mortality rates for a particular calendar
year are determined by applying the MP-2015 mortality improvement scale to the above described tables.
Other Information: None
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City of Warrensburg
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – General Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Original
Budget
Revenues
Taxes
Ad valorem taxes
City sales tax
Financial institution tax
Railroad and utility tax
Utility franchise tax
Surtax
Lodging tax
Cigarette tax

Licenses and Permits
Occupational licenses
Building permits

Intergovernmental Revenues
Grants

Charges for Services
Cemetery services
Animal shelter

Fines and Forfeitures
City court fines
Police training fees

Miscellaneous
Interest income
Other
Total Revenues

$

Final
Budget

789,000
4,646,000
3,500
32,000
2,653,000
30,000
288,000
28,000
8,469,500

$

789,500
4,695,000
3,500
33,000
2,522,000
30,000
288,000
28,000
8,389,000

Variance
With Final
Budget

Actual

$

780,832
4,922,272
3,419
33,009
2,432,631
29,165
257,673
28,047
8,487,048

$

(8,668)
227,272
(81)
9
(89,369)
(835)
(30,327)
47
98,048

109,800
116,390
226,190

102,800
125,390
228,190

88,606
144,610
233,216

(14,194)
19,220
5,026

244,000
244,000

421,680
421,680

345,993
345,993

(75,687)
(75,687)

256,400
60,000
316,400

62,400
72,000
134,400

61,130
53,917
115,047

(1,270)
(18,083)
(19,353)

329,400
3,500
332,900

329,400
3,500
332,900

250,343
3,468
253,811

(79,057)
(32)
(79,089)

101,420
91,600
193,020
9,782,010

85,570
221,170
306,740
9,812,910

85,645
170,797
256,442
9,691,557

75
(50,373)
(50,298)
(121,353)

See accompanying notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules.
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City of Warrensburg
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – General Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2020
Variance
With Final
Budget

Original
Budget

Final
Budget

Actual

Expenditures
Current
General government
Finance
Other support services
Information technology
Municipal court
Buildings and grounds
Public safety and health
Community development
Transportation
Cemetery
Total Expenditures

626,912
518,228
574,284
666,726
176,313
238,342
5,639,880
775,310
1,476,628
160,947
10,853,570

603,423
481,117
586,212
621,214
166,760
203,250
5,289,240
726,233
1,414,763
114,050
10,206,262

565,805
474,805
551,789
545,615
151,808
186,450
5,037,700
721,557
1,332,304
102,734
9,670,567

37,618
6,312
34,423
75,599
14,952
16,800
251,540
4,676
82,459
11,316
535,695

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues Over Expenditures

(1,071,560)

(393,352)

20,990

414,342

6,000
842,519
(321,623)
526,896

6,000
841,668
(812,466)
35,202

842,519
(718,467)
124,052

(544,664)

(358,150)

145,042

503,192

5,909,519
6,054,561

503,192

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of equipment
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers (out)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Excess (Deficit) of Revenues and Other
Sources Over Expenditures and Other (Uses)
Fund Balance, October 1
Fund Balance, September 30

$

5,909,519
5,364,855

$

5,909,519
5,551,369

$

See accompanying notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules.
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(6,000)
851
93,999
88,850

$

City of Warrensburg
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Park Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Original
Budget
Revenues
Taxes
Ad valorem taxes
Sales tax
Other taxes
Charges for services
Interest income
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

$

Expenditures
Current
Park
Park maintenance
Park recreation programs
Community center
Total Expenditures

Final
Budget

432,000
1,339,000
170,200
882,485
30,000
8,200
2,861,885

$

432,000
1,356,000
167,900
479,116
22,550
17,573
2,475,139

Actual

$

424,177
1,446,519
33,775
404,593
22,720
17,764
2,349,548

540,537
462,626
939,727
483,274
2,426,164

442,610
382,105
777,881
370,189
1,972,785

431,664
404,402
574,380
361,637
1,772,083

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

435,721

502,354

577,465

Other Financing (Uses)
Operating transfers (out)
Total Other Financing (Uses)

(22,519)
(22,519)

(297,729)
(297,729)

(297,472)
(297,472)

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures and
Other (Uses)

413,202

204,625

279,993

Fund Balance, October 1
Fund Balance, September 30

$

1,122,902
1,536,104

$

1,122,902
1,327,527

$

1,122,902
1,402,895

See accompanying notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules.
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Variance
With Final
Budget

$

(7,823)
90,519
(134,125)
(74,523)
170
191
(125,591)

10,946
(22,297)
203,501
8,552
200,702
75,111

257
257

75,368

$

75,368

City of Warrensburg
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Tri-Centennial Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Original
Budget
Revenues
Interest income
Total Revenues

$

Expenditures
Tri-Centennial
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures
Fund Balance, October 1
Fund Balance, September 30

$

Final
Budget

155
155

$

Variance
With Final
Budget

Actual

155
155

$

256
256

$

101
101

-

-

-

-

155

155

256

101

14,918
15,073

$

14,918
15,073

$

See accompanying notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules.
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14,918
15,174

$

101

City of Warrensburg
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Capital Improvement Transportation Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Original
Budget
Revenues
Motor fuel and vehicle taxes
Interest income
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

$

Final
Budget

846,000
13,000
1,000
860,000

$

696,000
6,700
1,000
703,700

Variance
With Final
Budget

Actual
$

741,935
7,495
749,430

$

45,935
795
(1,000)
45,730

Expenditures
Capital improvements
Total Expenditures

943,100
943,100

786,500
786,500

499,058
499,058

287,442
287,442

(Deficit) of Revenues Over Expenditures

(83,100)

(82,800)

250,372

333,172

Fund Balance, October 1
Fund Balance, September 30

$

302,932
219,832

$

302,932
220,132

$

302,932
553,304

See accompanying notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules.
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333,172

City of Warrensburg
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Capital Improvement Half-Cent Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Original
Budget
Revenues
Sales and use tax
Interest income
Total Revenues

$

Expenditures
Current
Capital improvements
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures
Other Financing (Uses)
Operating transfers (out)
Total Other Financing (Uses)

Final
Budget

1,849,000
17,000
1,866,000

$

1,878,000
6,022
1,884,022

Variance
With Final
Budget

Actual
$

1,994,045
6,784
2,000,829

$

116,045
762
116,807

330,362
330,362

645,503
645,503

471,778
471,778

173,725
173,725

1,535,638

1,238,519

1,529,051

290,532

(1,402,244)
(1,402,244)

(1,403,462)
(1,403,462)

(1,402,990)
(1,402,990)

472
472

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures and
Other (Uses)

133,394

(164,943)

126,061

291,004

Fund Balance, October 1
Fund Balance, September 30

594,090
727,484

594,090
429,147

594,090
720,151

291,004

$

$

$

See accompanying notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules.
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City of Warrensburg
Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The City uses the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:
1. Prior to October, Administration submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year
commencing the following October 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditure plans for all fund types
and the proposed means of financing them.
2. One public hearing is conducted by the City Council in late August or early September to obtain taxpayers’
comments on the proposed budget and tax levy.
3. Prior to October 1, ordinances are passed by Council, which provide for legally adopted budgets for all funds of
the City.
4. The City operates on a program performance budget system, with legally adopted budgets prepared by fund,
program and department. The level of budgetary control is at the department level. The City’s department heads
may make transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of appropriations between departments
require the approval of City Council.
5. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device for all funds of the City.
6. Budgets for the General and Special Revenue Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP. Budgeted
amounts may be amended during the year by City Council on approved budget adjustment forms.
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Other Financial Information

City of Warrensburg
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
September 30, 2020
Private-Purpose Trusts
Stevenson
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total Assets

$

Liabilities
Due to others
Net Position
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Brown

97,895
97,895

$

$

97,895
97,895

Crissey

27,001
27,001

-

$

-

$

27,001
27,001

79

AndersonStevenson

22,500
22,500

$

-

$

22,500
22,500

Total

19,663
19,663

$

-

$

19,663
19,663

167,059
167,059

-

$

167,059
167,059

City of Warrensburg
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Private-Purpose Trusts
Stevenson
Additions
Donations

$

Deductions
Contributions and other

$

$

$

$

380

$

Total

331

$

2,862

-

-

-

2,100

455

380

331

762

26,546
27,001

22,120
22,500

19,332
19,663

166,297
167,059

(404)
98,299
97,895

Crissey

455

2,100

Changes in Net Position
Net Position, beginning of year
Net Position, end of year

1,696

Brown

AndersonStevenson
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Other Reporting Requirements

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Warrensburg
Warrensburg, Missouri

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States, the financial statements of the Primary Government which includes the governmental activities,
business-type activities, and each major fund of the City of Warrensburg, Missouri, as of and for the year ended September
30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Warrensburg,
Missouri’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon, dated February 9, 2021.
We have also audited the discretely presented component unit, Warrensburg Convention and Visitors Bureau, and issued
our report dated February 9, 2021. This report does not include our testing of internal control over financial reporting or
compliance and other matters that are reported for the discretely presented component unit.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Warrensburg, Missouri's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Warrensburg, Missouri’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees,
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that that we consider to
be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

www.kpmcpa.com
1445 E. Republic Road Springfield, MO 65804 | 417‐882‐4300 | fax 417‐882‐4343
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Warrensburg, Missouri's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial
statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Warrensburg, Missouri’s internal control
or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the City of Warrensburg, Missouri’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is
not suitable for any other purpose.

KPM CPAs, PC
Springfield, Missouri
February 9, 2021
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Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Warrensburg
Warrensburg, Missouri

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of the City of Warrensburg, Missouri, for the year
ended September 30, 2020, we considered the City's internal control to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the basic financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed in the Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be material weaknesses.
In addition to the Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we became aware of
additional matters to bring to your attention. The following paragraphs summarize our comments and recommendations
regarding these matters.
1. New Pronouncement
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued the following pronouncement that may affect
the City in future years:
GASB Statement No. 87 – Leases – This Statement establishes a single model for lease accounting. It changes the
definition of a lease and requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were
classified as operating leases. The effective date is for the City’s year ending September 30, 2022, with earlier
application encouraged.
We Recommend:
Management examine the new pronouncement to determine the effect this will have on future financial reporting
and to ensure successful implementation on the effective dates.
2. Bank Depository Agreements
As a custodian of public monies, we believe the City should review certain elements of depository agreements
with the City’s banking institutions to ensure proper controls are in place regarding the deposits. The City has a
responsibility for the safety of City monies and the depository agreements are often not reviewed and updated
appropriately.
www.kpmcpa.com
1445 E. Republic Road Springfield, MO 65804 | 417‐882‐4300 | fax 417‐882‐4343
500 W. Main Street, Suite 200 Branson, MO 65616 | 417‐334‐2987 | fax 417‐336‐3403
Member of The Leading Edge Alliance

We Recommend:
The City determine that the depository agreement with the banking institution has instructions regarding when a
check is valid and may be honored by the institution. If more than one signature is required on checks, then the
depository agreement should reflect that requirement.
The City determine that the depository agreement specify the persons authorized to make wire transfers and to
whom they may be made. This is necessary to prevent unauthorized wire transfers of City funds.
The City determine that the depository agreement has procedures for opening new accounts in order to prevent
unauthorized accounts from being opened under the City name.
3. Internal Audit Procedures
As the City continues to operate throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, personnel, policies and procedures change
to accommodate intermittent remote working. The City should periodically conduct a review of its internal control
procedures to determine if any changes are necessary in order to protect the City’s assets. As part of the process,
the City should add periodic inspection of off-site procedures to verify that City policies and procedures are being
followed routinely at satellite locations.
We Recommend:
The City continue conducting reviews of its internal control procedures to determine opportunities for
strengthening safeguards over the City’s assets. The City may want to consider conducting reviews on the effect
of intermittent remote work to the internal controls over cash management, computer information systems, mail
distribution procedures, purchasing procedures, new vendor procedures, and other areas the City considers
necessary.
4. Cybersecurity
Cybersecurity threats are increasing and government entities of all sizes are at risk for a breach of their information
systems. With this increase in risk, entities should be continually evaluating risk and taking steps necessary to
ensure the security of information systems. Steps include identifying critical information systems, training
employees to properly identify threats received in emails or by other means, and adopting internal
communication methods other than email.
It is important that entities develop a recovery plan outlining procedures that personnel should follow once a
cybersecurity breach is discovered. Additionally, entities should be aware of any insurance in place to help protect
them from liabilities that can occur as the result of a breach.
We Recommend:
The City continue to evaluate its cybersecurity risks and take the necessary steps to reduce the risk of
cybersecurity threats to their information systems. This evaluation should be performed frequently as technology
and information systems are continually changing.

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed these
comments and suggestions with the City's administrative personnel. We will be pleased to discuss them in further detail
at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these matters or to assist you in implementing the
recommendations.
We appreciate this opportunity to serve as the City of Warrensburg's independent auditors and the courtesies and
assistance extended to us by the City's employees.
Respectfully submitted,

KPM CPAs, PC
Springfield, Missouri
February 9, 2021

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Warrensburg
Warrensburg, Missouri

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Warrensburg, Missouri, for the year ended September 30,
2020, and have issued our report thereon dated February 9, 2021. Professional standards require that we provide you
with the following information related to our audit.
Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards
As stated in our engagement letter dated May 3, 2020, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to
express opinions about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your oversight are fairly
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the
financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.
Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit
We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you in our engagement
letter dated May 3, 2020.
Significant Audit Matters
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting policies
used by the City of Warrensburg, Missouri, are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies
were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2019-2020. We noted no transactions
entered into by the governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All
significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the
possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate(s)
affecting the business-type activities’ financial statements was management’s estimate of the allowance for doubtful
accounts is based on historical utility revenues, historical loss levels, and an analysis of the collectability of individual
accounts. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the allowance in determining that it is
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

www.kpmcpa.com
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Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than
those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected
all such misstatements. Material misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures were corrected by management
for the following:


Accounts receivable



Pension related activities



Accrued liabilities



Depreciation



Long-term debt activity



Capital assets

Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report.
We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.
Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation letter
dated February 9, 2021.
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, similar
to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to
the City’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.
Other Audit Findings or Issues
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, with
management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course
of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters
We applied certain limited procedures to Pension Schedules, the Budgetary Comparison Schedules and the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial
statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI
and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.
With respect to the required supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that
the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of
preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our
audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying
accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.
Restriction on Use
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Honorable Mayor, City Council, and management of the
City of Warrensburg, Missouri, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified
parties.
Sincerely,

KPM CPAs, PC
Springfield, Missouri
February 9, 2021

CITY OF WARRENSBURG
POLICE DEPARTMENT
March 8, 2021
Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Warrensburg, Missouri
Dear Mayor and Council Members:
SUBJECT:

An Ordinance Amending Chapter 5 of the Ordinances of Warrensburg Missouri

BACKGROUND:
This is an ordinance Amending sections of Chapter 5 of the City Ordinances after the transfer of
the Animal Shelter to the Warrensburg Area Rescue (WAR). The sections of Chapter 5 not
amended with this ordinance remain in full effect.
ISSUE:
With the transfer of the Animal Shelter and animal control responsibilities to the Warrensburg
Animal Rescue, it became necessary to update sections of Chapter 5 to align with the current
practice more closely. Many of the changes involve name changes and minor procedural
issues. With the elimination of the animal control officer provided by the city, the process now
requires a police officer response to evaluate the situation. A police office is required any time
there is a seizure of an animal because of a bite or a crime.
STRATEGIC PLAN:
This meets Goal III of the Strategic Plan to maintain a safe community.
FISCAL IMPACT:
There is no fiscal impact.
ECONOMIC BENEFITS/IMPACT:
There is no economic benefit or impact.
RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends City Council approval of the Ordinance.
Sincerely,
Rich Lockhart
Chief of Police
cc: Interim City Manager
Attachments: 1. Ordinance

BILL NO.________

ORDINANCE NO.__________

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PORTIONS OF CHAPTER 5, ANIMALS OF THE CODE
OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF WARRENSBURG, MISSOURI.
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WARRENSBURG, MISSOURI
AS FOLLOWS:
Section One. The following sections are hereby amended to read as follows, with the
balance of Chapter 5 remaining in effect unaltered.
Sec 5-1. Definitions
The following words and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have
the meanings respectively ascribed to them:
Animal shall mean any living vertebrate member of the animal kingdom,
excluding man.
Animal shelter shall mean any premises designated by action of the city
for the purpose of impounding and caring for all animals found running at large in
violation of this chapter.
At large shall mean when an animal is off the property of its owner and not
under the control of a competent person.
Dog shall mean any member of the canine (genus canis) family.
Euthanize shall mean the humane destruction of an animal.
Impound shall mean to take into custody any animal, by any humane
means, for the purposes of confinement.
Kennel shall mean any commercial business engaged in breeding, buying,
selling or boarding of at least three (3) dogs.
Livestock animal shall mean cows, horses, mules, hogs, goats, sheep,
domestic fowl or other animals commonly associated with farming and
agriculture.
Neutered shall mean altered to prevent conception.
Owner shall mean any person owning, keeping, harboring or otherwise
having the care or control of an animal.
Under restraint shall mean when an animal is controlled by a leash, at

“heel” beside a competent person and obedient to that person's commands, on
or within a vehicle being driven or parked on the streets or within the property
limits of its owner or keeper.
Sec. 5-2. Impoundment for observation.
a) Any domestic animal that has bitten or scratched a person or other
animal must be kept, at owner's expense, in a veterinary hospital or
animal control shelter for a minimum of ten (10) days for observation. A
report shall be rendered to the person bitten or scratched, or the owner of
the animal bitten or scratched, of the condition of the confined animal
concerning rabies. This report will also be rendered to any official that
requires such a report. Any animal found to be rabid shall be disposed of
as required by this chapter or applicable state law. If the animal is
determined to not be rabid after ten (10) days, it may be redeemed by the
owner as provided in section 5-50 and upon payment of all costs, or it may
be adopted as provided in section 5-51 or 5-83 and upon payment of all
costs, or it may be euthanized.
b) Any person who may show satisfactory proof of a current rabies
vaccination for an animal that has bitten or scratched a person may
quarantine that animal at their home, subject to all requirements of Section
5-46, but must obtain a report from a veterinarian within such ten days to
be provided to the bite or scratch victim, and any government authority
entitled to the same.
c) Bats and wild carnivorous mammals as well as crossbred animals,
which are crossbred between wild animals and dogs or cats, that have
bitten or scratched a person, will be killed and appropriate tissues sent to
the state laboratory for rabies examination.
d) Upon receipt of a report of an animal bite or scratch, the City shall
report the incident to the Johnson County Health Department as required
by Section 322.140 RSMo.
Sec 5-41. Enforcement of article.
This article shall be enforced by employees of the City authorized to
enforce the provisions of this chapter.
Sec 5-45. Restraint of dogs.
(a) Required. The owner of a dog shall keep their dog under restraint at all
times and shall not permit such dog to be at large, off the premises or property of
the owner, without proper restraint.

(b) Legal liability for a dog not under restraint. The owner of any dog who
fails to keep his or her dog under restraint shall be held liable for all damages
caused by such dog.
(c) Handling of when not under restraint; summary killing of dogs. Any dog
found running at large and which cannot be safely taken up and impounded, then
any police officer or employee of the City authorized to enforce this Chapter is
hereby authorized to use such force as may be necessary to capture such dog,
including the actual killing of the dog.
(d) Prosecution of owner when dog is at large. Whenever a dog is at large,
known to be owned, harbored, kept or fed at a certain residence or by a certain
family, then the head of such residence or family, or any adult living there is
hereby declared to be the owner of the dog and shall be charged with a violation
of this section even though the dog is not captured; and the officer may, upon
request, search the premises where he believes the dog is kept to attempt to
verify that the dog is being kept by such person as owner.
(e) Exceptions. The provisions of this section shall not apply to any
publicly or privately designated dog park, so long as such facility is fully
enclosed.
Sec. 5-49. Impoundment.
(a) Generally. Any dog in violation of any section of this Chapter is
subject to being “picked up” and impounded at an animal shelter facility at the
expense of the owner.
(b) Owner to be notified. The owner of the dog, if known, shall be
promptly notified. If unable to identify the owner or unable to locate owner, no
liability shall be attached to the city or to any person involved with the capture or
impoundment of such dog.
Sec. 5-50. Redemption.
(a) Any dog impounded under section 5-49 may be redeemed within the
required lawful holding period by payment of any fees required by the Shelter
housing the dog.
(b) If an impounded dog is unlicensed, its owner shall comply with the
licensing section of this article.
Sec. 5-52. Disposition of unclaimed dogs.
Any dog left in an animal shelter more than five (5) days from the date
of its impoundment and not adopted under section 5-51 may be disposed of in

any lawful manner by the Shelter housing the animal.
Sec. 5-76. Impoundment of animals evidencing neglect, abuse.
Any duly authorized public health official or police officer may impound
any animal found outside of the owned or rented property of the owner or
custodian of such animal when such animal shows evidence of neglect or abuse.
Sec. 5-77. Warrants for entry upon private property for inspection,
impounding.
(a) Any duly authorized public health official, police officer or other officer
of the City may seek a warrant from the appropriate court to enable them to
enter private property in order to inspect, care for, or impound neglected or
abused animals. All requests for such warrants shall be accompanied by an
affidavit stating the probable cause to believe a violation of this article has
occurred. A person acting under the authority of a warrant shall not be liable for
any necessary damage to property while acting under such warrant. All animals
impounded pursuant to a warrant issued under this section shall be
(1) Placed in the care or custody of a veterinarian or an animal shelter. If
no appropriate veterinarian or animal shelter is available, the animal shall
not be impounded unless it is diseased or disabled beyond recovery for
any useful purpose.
(2) If it is determined by a veterinarian that an animal impounded under a
warrant is diseased or disabled beyond recovery for any useful purpose,
that animal may be euthanized.
(b) The owner of any animal who has been convicted of animal neglect or
animal abuse shall be liable for reasonable costs for the care and maintenance of
the animal. Any person incurring reasonable costs for the care and maintenance
of such animal shall have a lien against such animal until the reasonable costs
have been paid, and may put up for adoption or euthanize such animal if such
costs are not paid within ten (10) days after demand.
Sec. 5-82. Redemption.
An owner of an impounded animal which has been held by a shelter
for more than five (5) days will be required to comply with all regulations and
policies regarding adoption of animals.
Sec. 5-84. Disposition of unclaimed cats.
Any cat left in the animal shelter more than five (5) days from the date of
its impoundment and not adopted under section 5-83 may be disposed of in any

lawful manner by the shelter housing the animal.
Section 2. The provisions of Section One of this Ordinance shall be incorporated into
the Code of Ordinances.
Section 3. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage.
Read two (2) times and passed by title this _____ day of ________________, 2021.

Bryan Jacobs, Mayor
Attest:
Cindy Gabel, City Clerk

March 8, 2021
Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Warrensburg, Missouri
Dear Mayor and Councilmembers:
SUBJECT:
An ordinance authorizing the city manager to enter into a sign lease agreement with the
Central Bank of Warrensburg.
BACKGROUND:
The display sign known as the Hawthorne Plaza sign is owned by the City, and retailers in the shopping
area lease space from the City. In 2020, the City entered into an agreement to reimburse up to $225,000
to Central Bank of Warrensburg (lessee) for public improvements in the Hawthorne Plaza development.
These improvements included modifications to the sign including providing electricity to the sign. These
improvements were necessary to bring in a national retailer, a Marshall’s retail store.
This agreement authorizes the improvements to the sign and waives the rent payments for 20 years as
long as the space is continuously operated as a Marshall’s. In this agreement, the city maintains
ownership of the sign and is responsible for all maintenance and repairs. The lessee maintains
ownership of the sign panels and is responsible for all maintenance and repairs. If the space is not
operated as a Marshall’s for 180 days, this agreement will be terminated.
STRATEGIC PLAN:
Focus I: Invest in Infrastructure
Focus III: Growth and Development
FISCAL IMPACT:
The rent payment for space on the sign is estimated to be $4,000 annually; therefore, the city is forgoing
approximately $80,000 in rent payments over the 20-year term of this agreement. However, the sales
tax revenue generated from a retailer such as Marshall’s will be much greater over the 20-year period.
RECOMMENDATION:
Passage of the ordinance.
Sincerely,
Danielle Dulin
Interim City Manager
Attachment:

1. Ordinance
2. Agreement

BILL NO. ____________

ORDINANCE NO.____________

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A SIGN LEASE AGREEMENT WITH
CENTRAL BANK OF WARRENSBURG.
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WARRENSBURG, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:
Section 1.
That the City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to enter into an agreement
with the Central Bank of Warrensburg in the form attached hereton.
Section 2.

This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from its passage.

Passed on _____ day of _________, 2021.

__________________________
Bryan Jacobs, Mayor

Attest:

____________________________
Cindy Gabel, City Clerk

SIGN LEASE AGREEMENT
This Sign Lease Agreement (this “Lease”) is made _______________, 2021, by and
between the City of Warrensburg, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the
laws of Missouri, with its principal office located at 102 South Holden, Warrensburg, Missouri
64093 (“Lessor”), and Central Bank of Warrensburg with its principal office located at 401 N.
Maguire Street, Warrensburg, Missouri 64093 (“Lessee”).
RECITALS
A.
B.
C.

Lessor owns a certain display sign located on Tract A, Hawthorne Plaza, Lots 1 Thru
9 & Tract A (the “Sign”).
Central Bank of Warrensburg is the owner of Lot 4A, Hawthorne Plaza 2 nd Plat and has
entered into a lease with a national retailer hereunder for operations of a Marhsall's
retail store.
Lessor desires to lease to Lessee, and Lessee desires to lease from Lessor, certain
space on the Sign, as more particularly set forth below.

In consideration of the matters described above, and of the mutual benefits and
obligations set forth in this Lease the parties hereto agree as follows:
SECTION ONE
LEASE OF SIGN
Lessor hereby leases to Lessee, and Lessee leases from Lessor,the spaces on both
sides of the Sign being generally depicted as the “New Panel” on Exhibit A (the “Panel
Positions”), attached hereto and made a part hereof, for a 240 month term, commencing on
the date Lessee's sign panels are installed, but in no event longer than 180 days after
execution of this Lease by Lessee, subject to the other cancellation provisions contained in
this Lease.
SECTION TWO
RENT
In lieu of periodic rent payments, Lessee agrees to assure continuous operation of a
Marshall's store of at least 23,000 square feet upon Lot 4A throughout the term of this Lease,
with the associated public benefits such operations will create within the City.
SECTION THREE
INSTALLATION BY LESSOR/INSPECTION BY LESSEE
AND LESSOR'S UPGRADES
Lessor shall allow upgrades to be made to the Sign to accommodate Lessee's panels
as described below. The work is described in Exhibit B, which are the proposals for work
previously received by Lessor and approved by Lessor. Lessee understands that it may
utilize different contractors than those depicted on Exhibit B to accomplish these scopes of
work
Attached as a part of Exhibit A are the approved sign panel depictions. Lessee shall

fabricate the sign panels to be placed on the Signs (the “Panels”). If Lessee wishes to
change the panel design during this Lease, Lessee shall provide Lessor, for Lessor’s
reasonable review and approval, the design of the Panels to ensure consistency of materials
and with an outline of installation methods, in writing, which Lessor must approve of in
advance, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld. Lessee shall cause these new
panels to be installed on the Sign upon completion of the Sign upgrade improvements.
Lessee shall provide Lessor notice prior to panel installation so that Lessor may oversee and
inspect the work on Lessor's sign.
SECTION FOUR
MAINTENANCE; REPAIRS
Lessor, at its own expense, shall maintain and service and maintain in first class
condition the Sign and surrounding lots, including, without limitation, inspecting, cleaning,
repainting, and making all necessary repairs to the Signs and surrounding lots, and shall
repair at its own expense any loss or damage to the Signs caused by accident, fire or theft,
except where caused by the fault of negligence of Lessee or its agents and contractors (in
which event Lessee shall reimburse Lessor for the reasonable cost of the same); provided,
however, if Lessor fails to maintain and repair the Sign and such failure continues for a period
of 30 days following the written notice thereof from Lessee, Lessee shall have the right (but
not the obligation) to complete any or all necessary maintenance and/or repairs. Lessor shall
reimburse Lessee for all reasonable expenses incurred within 30 days after Lessee provides
Lessor an invoice for the same.
Notwithstanding anything in this Lease to the contrary, Lessee shall maintain and
service Lessee's panels after installation and approval at Lessee’s sole cost and expense
(unless damaged due to Lessor’s negligence or fault, in which case Lessor shall promptly
repair such damage at its cost).
SECTION FIVE
DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION
If the Sign is totally destroyed or damaged, from any cause, to such an extent that
proper repairs would cost in excess of $25,000.00, then Lessor shall have the option to
either rebuild the Sign or to terminate this Lease.
SECTION SIX
RISK OF LOSS
Lessor shall not be responsible to Lessee for any loss of advertising if the Sign or
Sign Panels are destroyed or damaged by Acts of God or if this Lease is terminated by its
terms. Lessee bears all risk of such loss to its Sign Panels and may insure the same if Lessee
chooses to do so at its own expense.
SECTION SEVEN
INSPECTION BY LESSEE
Lessee shall at all times during business hours have the right to enter on the lots
upon which the Sign is located for the purposes of inspecting and observing the Sign and the

Panels, and performing any necessary maintenance and making any necessary repairs to
the Panels.
SECTION EIGHT
ALTERATIONS
Lessee shall make no alterations to the Sign without obtaining written consent from
Lessor which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Lessee shall have the
right to change the Panels to be consistent with Lessee’s tenant's prototypical signage as
such may change from time to time, and consistent with the approval requirements set forth in
Section Three.
All additions to and improvements of the Signs of any kind shall immediately become
property of Lessor (except as set forth in Section 11 below) and subject to the terms of this
Lease.
SECTION NINE
DEFAULT
The occurrence of any of the following events shall constitute a default by Lessee
under this Lease:
A.
The nonpayment by Lessee for a period of 10 days after written notice by
Lessor of such nonpayment of any sum required under the terms of this Lease to be
paid by Lessee.
B.
The default by Lessee under any other term, covenant or condition of this Lease
that is not cured within 30 days after notice of the breach from Lessor.
C.
Cessation of active retail operations by on Lot 4A by Marshall's in a space of at
least 23,000 square feet, for a period of 180 days within the Hawthorne Plaza
development.
On the happening of any of the above events, Lessor may, upon 30 days prior written
notice of its intent to do so, terminate this Lease and remove from the Signs the Panels.
Lessor shall not be liable to Lessee for any damages caused by the removal, and all rights
afforded to Lessee under this Lease shall terminate. Panels shall be returned to Lessee
upon their removal.
Notice hereunder shall be deemed received if delivered in person, or by first class mail,
postage prepaid the parties three days after mailing at the following addresses:
City of Warrensburg
Attention: City Manager
102A S. Holden Street
Warrensburg, MO 64093
Central Bank of Warrensburg
401 N. Maguire
Warrensburg, MO 64093

SECTION TEN
EFFECT OF WAIVER
No delay in or omission of the exercise of any right, power, or remedy accruing to
Lessor on any breach or default of Lessee under this Lease shall impair any such right,
power, or remedy of Lessor, nor shall it be construed to be a waiver of any such breach or
default, or of any similar breach or default subsequently occurring.
Any waiver of any single breach or default shall not be deemed a waiver of any other
breach or default previously or subsequently occurring.
Any waiver, permit, consent, or approval of any kind or character on the part of
Lessor of any breach or default under this Lease, or any waiver on the part of Lessor of any
provision or condition of this Lease, must be in writing signed by a duly authorized
representative of the Lessor, and shall be effective only to the extent specifically set forth in
such writing.
All remedies, either under this Lease or by law, or otherwise afforded to Lessor or
Lessee, shall be cumulative and not alternative.
SECTION ELEVEN
OWNERSHIP
The Sign is and shall at all times remain the sole property of Lessor, and Lessee shall
have no right, title, or interest in the Sign, except as set forth in this Lease. The Panels are
and shall at all times remain the sole property of Lessee, and Lessor shall have no right, title,
or interest in the Panels, except as set forth in this Lease.
SECTION TWELVE
OBLIGATIONS OF LESSOR AND SUSPENSION OF OBLIGATIONS OF LESSOR
Should the sign improvements called for herein not be completed within 180 days of
the execution of this Lease, then this Lease shall cease and determine and be of no force or
effect.
The obligations of Lessor and Lessee under the terms of this Lease shall be
suspended to the extent that Lessor or Lessee are hindered or prevented from complying
because of labor disturbances, including strikes and lockouts, acts of God, fires, storms,
accidents, governmental regulations or interferences, or any cause whatsoever beyond the
control of Lessor or Lessee.
Lessor's obligations hereunder, and this Lease, are expressly contingent upon
approval by the Missouri Department of Transportation of modifications to Lessor's permit for
the sign to approve the modifications to be undertaken under this Lease. Should this
approval not be obtained from MoDOT, this Lease shall be void and of no force or effect. The
parties understand that Lessee's landlord and its contractors will be responsible to obtain this
approval and modification of the existing sign permit.

SECTION THIRTEEN
RECOVERY OF ENFORCEMENT COST
The prevailing party in any dispute regarding the terms of this Lease shall be entitled
to recover from the other all of its reasonable costs to enforce any of its respective rights
under this Lease, including reasonable attorney fees and court costs.
SECTION FOURTEEN
MISCELLANEOUS
It is intended that the covenants, rights and agreements of each party, as set forth in
this Lease, shall run with the land and shall be binding upon the respective successors and
assigns (including successive, as well as immediate, successors and assigns) of the parties
hereto.
Lessee shall not assign its rights under this Lease to any third party without the
express written consent of Lessor, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.
This Lease may be executed in counterparts, each of which when executed and
delivered shall be deemed an original, but such counterparts together shall constitute but one
and the same document.
[Signature and Acknowledgement Pages Follow]

The parties hereto have set their hands and seals or caused their appropriate officers
to set their hands and seals as of the day and year first above written.
LESSOR:
City of Warrensburg,
a municipal corporation organized and
existing under the laws of Missouri
By:

____________________________
City Manager

LESSEE:
Central Bank of Warrensburg
_________________________________
By:
___________________________
its ________________________

City of Warrensburg
Human Resources

February 22, 2021
Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Warrensburg, Missouri
Dear Mayor and Council Members:
SUBJECT:
An Ordinance Authorizing the Human Resources Director and City Clerk to Execute an
Agreement for Services with Gov HR USA for City Manager Recruitment Services
BACKGROUND:
On Monday, December 14th, 2020 the decision was made to issue a request for proposals for City
Manager recruitment services. On December 17th, 2020 the request for proposals was placed on
the request for bids tab on the City of Warrensburg website. The request for proposals closing
date was Friday, January 22, 2021 by 5:00 P.M.. We received a total of five proposals by the
closing date and the firms submitting proposals include: SOFTHQ, Management Partners
Incorporate, Baker Tilly US LLP, Government Professional Solutions and GovHR USA. A
selection rating process was undertaken by a committee made up of 2 City Council members and
4 City of Warrensburg Department Heads. Each committee member utilized a scoring system
and scored each proposal based upon these factors: Capacity and Capability, Customer
Relations, Responsiveness, and Timeliness, Experience, Competence and Expertise, Merits of
the Proposal including the scope of work & approach for addressing the tasks, Timeline and
Proposed Schedule, and Cost of Services. This scoring process was completed and tabulated to
determine the top firm on February 11th, 2021. Follow up phone calls were made to other cities
utilizing the top firm’s services for City Manager recruitments for reference purposes.
Based on the overall scoring and process utilized, staff recommends GovHR USA as the
recruiter of choice to perform the City Manager recruitment and be required to complete the
standard Consultant Services Agreement which can be viewed by contacting the City Clerk.
ISSUE:
Hire an outside firm to perform the recruitment for the City Manager position.
STRATEGIC PLAN:
Focus III: Growth and Development, Focus V: Employee Morale and Retention.
FISCAL IMPACT:
The FY21 budget does not include this process. The cost for services is $21,000. This cost if
approved will be included in mid-year budget amendments.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends:
1. Approval of the Ordinance as submitted to Council.

Professionally,

Greg McCullough
Human Resources Director

Attachments: Ordinance
GovHR Proposal

BILL NO.________

ORDINANCE NO._______

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR AND CITY
CLERK TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES WITH GOV HR USA FOR
CITY MANAGER RECRUITMENT SERVICES
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WARRENSBURG,
MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:
Section 1. That the Human Resources Director and City Clerk are hereby authorized
and directed to execute a contract for services with Gov HR USA in the form attached
hereton.
Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from its passage.
Passed in closed session this

day of _____________, 2021.

Bryan Jacobs, Mayor
Attest:
___________________________
Cindy Gabel, City Clerk

CITY OF
WARRENSBURG
HUMAN RESOURCES

Council Letter
M a r c h 8, 2021
Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City
Council City of
Warrensburg, Missouri
Dear Mayor and Council Members:
SUBJECT:

A Resolution of the Council of the City of Warrensburg Accepting a Proposal
Prepared by Mike Keith Insurance for Workers’ Compensation Insurance for
2021-2022

BACKGROUND:
The City’s Workers’ Compensation Insurance through the MO Rural Services Work Comp
Insurance Trust is set to expire on April 1, 2021. A renewal quote was put together by Mike Keith
Insurance, Inc. and it shows a total increase of 9.05% or $25,485 year over year. The renewal
showed an increase of $23,853, the expense constant remained unchanged at $200, the second
injury fund showed an increase of $1,193, the Mo Admn/Prem Tax showed an increase of $239
for the total increase in premium of $25,485.
ISSUE:
Continuing the City’s Workers’ Compensation Insurance Coverage for the year 2021-2022.
STRATEGIC PLAN:
N/A
FISCAL IMPACT:
Workers’ Compensation Renewal
$289,175
Expense Constant: $200
2nd Injury Fund: $14,469
MO Admn/Prem Tax: $2,894
For a total Fiscal Impact of: 306,738

Quote:

The Fiscal Year 2021 budget is comprised of half of the 2020-2021 actual premium and
projected half of the 2021-2022 premium. Year-to-date expense for half of Fiscal Year 2021
is $140,726.52 and half of the 2022 premium is $153,369 for a total expense for Fiscal Year
2021 of $294,095.52. Fiscal Year 2021 premium budget amount is $296,729 across all funds.
ECONOMIC BENEFITS/IMPACT:
N/A
RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the Resolution as submitted.

Sincerely,

Greg McCullough,
Human Resources Director
cc:

City Manager

Attachments: 1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Resolution
2020 to 2021 Premium Worksheet
2021 to 2022 Premium Worksheet
Workers Compensation Experience Rating 04/01/2020
Workers Compensation Experience Rating 04/01/2021

RESOLUTION NO.
A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WARRENSBURG ACCEPTING
A PROPOSAL PREPARED BY MIKE KEITH INSURANCE FOR WORKERS’ COMPENSATION
INSURANCE FOR 2021-2022.
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WARRENSBURG, MISSOURI
AS FOLLOWS:
Section 1.

That the City Manager is authorized to procure Workers’ Compensation
insurance through Mike Keith Insurance in an amount not to exceed $306,738
per the proposal presented to Staff on February 18,, 2021.

Passed in open session this

day of March 2021.

Bryan Jacobs, Mayor

ATTEST:

Cindy Gabel, City Clerk

CITY MANAGER REPORT
March 8, 2021
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Warrensburg, Missouri
Dear Mayor and Council Members:
The last few weeks have been busy gearing up for the educational campaign for the G.O. Bond ballot
measure in April, planning for the strategic planning session, and working with the Parks Department
regarding the resolution passed last summer.
The camera in the wastewater collections crew was damaged and started collected water in the lens.
The camera is nearly 10 years old and was scheduled to be replaced next year. However, it is an
important tool for the collections crew, and it would be detrimental to their work to delay purchasing
the replacement. The ground penetrating radar purchase will be placed on hold in order to replace the
camera. This is approximately $20,000 purchase.
The equipment for the Disaster Recovery infrastructure has been received and the necessary electrical
upgrades have been made. The install of this project will begin later this month. All of the new laptops
have been deployed. All employees eligible to work from home have been trained on the new system,
and the agreement with Citrix will be not be renewed. This will save the city approximately $15,000 this
year.
City Council Meetings, Study Sessions, and Executive Sessions
Tentative future City Council agendas include the following items:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Personnel Policy Update
Wastewater capacity study
MS4 permit
Code enforcement revisions
Stormwater utility funding

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Barbara Carroll, Director
March 3, 2021
Community Development Monthly Activity Report
The Community Development report for February is attached. Please let me know if you have
any questions about the information presented.
Residential Lot Inventory
Attached is the year-end inventory of the number of single-family residential lots available for
development in Warrensburg. This report reflects activity for the last five years.
Energov Server Hosting Project
The cutover date from hosting the Energov software on the City’s server to hosting on the
Tyler’s servers has been scheduled for March 29-30. Staff will need to quit using the current
system at 5:00 p.m. on Monday, March 29. The contractor will then pull the City’s data one last
time and move it to the new Tyler hosted server environment. If all goes correctly, the new
system will go live on Tuesday, March 30 by 2:00 p.m. The online building permit portal and
staff’s access to the software will be down during this time. This will impact building permit,
building inspection, code enforcement, property maintenance code enforcement and business
licenses services. Staff is working to minimize disruption of services, but there will be some
impact on March 30.
Home Occupation Ordinance Update
The City’s current zoning regulations regarding home occupations were adopted in 1992. This,
in large part, pre-dates the internet and does not contemplate home-based internet businesses.
City Planner Kristin Dyer is drafting an update to this ordinance. The intent is to make the
ordinance easier to understand, incorporate internet-based businesses, and manage impacts to
the surrounding neighborhoods. Staff hopes to bring this ordinance forward to the Planning and
Zoning Commission and City Council for consideration in April.

2021 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
Activity during the Month of February

Feb-21

YTD 2021

Feb-20

YTD 2020

New One & Two Family permits
Single Family Additions/Alterations permits
New Commercial,Industrial, Multi Family permits
Commercial & Industrial Additions/Alterations permits
Other Permits Issued

1
7
0
4
4

1
9
0
6
12

1
8
0
5
11

1
15
0
8
18

TOTAL BUILDING PERMITS

16

28

25

42

9
100
$480,762

18
215
$538,775

11
140
$484,291

21
255
$1,554,264

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
3

0

0

0

0

CODE ENFORCEMENT
Violations Opened (Not Cases)
Garbage and Trash
Parking
Vegetation
Nuisance
Signs

18
7
2
40
0

39
11
2
95
0

1
0
0
9
0

5
0
0
15
0

TOTAL VIOLATIONS

67

147

10

20

Active Cases in Community Development
Active Cases in Court
Closed Cases in February
Unfounded in February
Closed Cases YTD
Unfounded Cases TYD

67
14
56
0
109
0

PROPERTY MAINTENANCE
Violations Opened (Not Cases)
Accessory Structures
Mold / Pests
Roofs (Roof Assemblies)
Other Outdoor
Indoor

2
0
0
8
1

2
2
1
9
4

1
1
2
3
5

2
1
4
10
5

TOTAL VIOLATIONS

11

18

12

22

Active Cases in Community Development
Active Cases in Court
Closed Cases in February
Unfounded in February
Closed Cases YTD
Unfounded Cases YTD

39
5
8
2
9
2

BUILDING PERMITS

Plan Reviews
Building Inspections
Construction Valuation

PLANNING & ZONING
Plats
Planning & Zoning items (Conditional Use Permits
Rezonings, Ordinance Amendments & Annexations)
Board of Adjustment items

Human Resources
Greg McCullough, Director
March 3rd, 2021

Human Resources Activities:
1. Positions
a. Street Maintenance Worker I – This position was posted on October 20th and will remain
open until filled. We still have a couple of positions to fill and have received 2
applications since my last report. A second interview has been scheduled for one of the
positions for Friday, March 5th.
b. Firefighter/EMT – This position was posted again on October 19th and remains open
until filled. The Fire Department has a total of 2 open full-time Firefighter/EMT
positions. We have 3 external applicants and 1 internal qualified applicant for these 2
positions.
c. Part-Time Firefighter and Student Resident Firefighter – This position is currently open
as of February 26th. However, we have processed and tested several applicants of which
only 3 have passed this portion of the process. We have reopened the job application
process to help finish filling the roster.
d. Police Officer Trainee – This is a new position that has been created to bring on an
individual as an employee while they are going through the Academy. In addition, we
will be offering to pay costs of tuition for them to attend the Academy and create policy
and reimbursement agreement to accommodate this process. We hope this helps in
recruitment and I am sure that Chief Lockhart will have more information. We have 2
Trainees that have started in this Academy class. We continue to field questions from
candidates regarding this program and also receive other applications.
e. Police Officer/SRO – This position was reposted on September 10th and will remain open
until filled. As of today we have had no additional applications for this position.
f. Police Officer – This position was posted on September 21st and will remain open until
filled. As of today we do not currently have any new applications that I am aware.
g. Police Administrative Assistant – This position was posted on December 23rd and is
scheduled to come down on January 15th. We currently have 26 applications for this
position and applications have been reviewed with interviews with 5 candidates will
take place on March 3rd and 4th.
h. Parks Recreation Supervisor – This position was posted on December 22nd and the
closing date has been extended to February 14th. This position is now closed.
Applications have been reviewed and first round interview questions sent to qualified
applicants. Second round of interviews are taking place this week of March 2nd through
5th.
i. Parks Part-time Indoor Soccer Official – This position was posted on February 1st and will
close on February 14th. This position is now closed. At present we have received 7
applications for this position and these applications are being reviewed currently and
interviewed. Offers of employment have been mailed this week.

j.

Parks Operations Superintendent - This position was posted on February 19th and will
close on March 21st. To date we have received a total of 3 applications for this position.
k. Parks Part-Time Baseball/Softball Officials – This position was posted on March 1st and
closes on March 14th. To date we have not received any applications for this position.
l. Parks Part-Time Maintenance I Worker – This position was posted on March 1st and
Closes on March 21st. To date we have not received any applications for this position.
m. Water Pollution control Compliance Technician – This position was posted on February
12th and will close on February 28th. At present we have received a total of 3
applications for this position. Interviews have been completed and a job offer is in the
process of being written to complete this process.
Other Activities:
1. Completed a total of 4 employment verifications for various purposes.
2. Kathy has been spending dedicated office hours at the Community Center to provide HR
services to Parks and Recreation. Requests are received from Parks personnel regarding
HR services desired each Monday and Kathy completes a report each Friday on tasks
accomplished. Kathy has completed these hours with Parks and Rec the past two
weeks on Tuesday and Thursday. She has been assisting in the onboarding process for 3
positions which include: Parks Summer Day Camp Director, Parks Summer Day Camp
Counselor, Parks Community Center Attendant. In addition, Kathy and I have had
meetings with Parks and Rec staff concerning the Summer hiring needs and this week is
spending extra dedicated time at Parks and Rec to assist with interviewing key positions
and provide support for the summer hiring process.
3. Kathy and I completed the processing, printing, stuffing and delivery of the ACA 1095-C
forms for 2020. These forms were required to be given to employees by March 2nd,
however they were delivered to employees on February 2nd and 3rd. Jeanie McMurphy
from Finance assisted in the sorting and distributing these forms. Former employees
1095’s were mailed on February 3rd. We are now cleaning up the archived report and
once completed we will transmit to the IRS. This must be transmitted electronically by
March 31st, however we will transmit prior to this date.
4. Completed the reporting and paperwork necessary to file 4 different insurance claims
for property and casualty losses.
5. Completed work on follow-up information and reporting of two workers compensation
claims. Also, worked on customer service issue between CCMSI and one of our
employees regarding appointments and communication.
6. Worked on several different personnel items this last month which has taken much time
in terms of meetings and completing the necessary documentation. These included
topics such as personnel policies and individual personnel situations with various
departments.
7. Completed reference calls to other Cities regarding our City Manager RFP proposal
submissions. Documentation of calls have been made.
8. Marcella and I have completed a couple of Zoom meetings with BCBSKC staff regarding
the reconciliation of our administrative cost bill for February. We completed another of
these calls today and believe we have a plan moving forward with BCBS regarding
reconciliation of this bill.

9. We continue to work on our wellness program. We have begun to look at what we can
do to alter our previous program options due to the recent events associated with the
pandemic. We have worked on a program with UCM to provide us an intern over the
Summer session to help us design, market and implement programs with our Wellness
program. We have recently met with Professor Doyle to begin the process for this next
semester. City staff have received two communications regarding wellness activities
from this current class. We have a meeting with Beth Rutt to discuss UCM facilities
contract this week.
10. Worked on reviewing a couple of different job descriptions for departments due to
employees leaving and prior to posting the job currently. Currently working with Fire
Department on Administrative position description.
11. Finally, Kathy developed a spreadsheet and formula which will help us automate and
reconcile, much more efficiently, our BCBSKC administrative costs. We will be utilizing
these as we reconcile our next bill.
12. We have continued to work with Mason Floyd to develop the revisions to our Personnel
policies. Mason has sent these changes to various stakeholder groups and we are
awaiting those responses and will review as a team. We have reviewed these as a
management team and will bring to Council this week.
13. Worked with Danielle Dulin, Chief Lockhart and Chief Oxley to explore items that we can
utilize to help in the recruitment process. A couple of items were identified and
research continues but we hope to implement some ideas in the very near future.
Research continues with referral programs and sign on bonuses.
14. Continue to work on special projects as directed.
Upcoming Activities:
1. Continue wellness program development and implementation until meets goals of City for
this program. We keep moving this forward but will require continual review for the near
future.
2. Working with Mason Floyd to accomplish this task. Complete additional revisions to our
personnel manual, take to Council for approval and publish online to our intranet for all to
have access. We will also provide a form and require everyone to review manual and sign
form that they have reviewed the manual. These revisions will be brought to Council in
January.
3. Continue updating and coordinating performance evaluation system to prepare for the
Spring evaluation cycle.
4. Continue to catch up on documentation on several personnel issues.
5. Continue the cleaning and reorganizing of the Human Resources file room.
6. Continue to work on revision of the City Safety Manual.
Respectfully Submitted,
Greg McCullough
Human Resource Director

Police Department
Chief Rich Lockhart
Members from the African American Heritage Foundation from Whiteman AFB met with members of the
police department to discuss issues related to race and policing. The discussion will be facilitated by Dr.
Lover Chancler from UCM and will be held at the YES Building. The discussion will last two hours, and I
am hoping this is the start of something that continues. We will have 6 to 8 of our officers participating.
This forum was developed through my participation in the Community Change Committee. Watch for
more great things coming from this group.
We are working on filling vacancies. We are down 8 sworn positions and continue to struggle to find
applicants. We received an application this week and we are working on scheduling an interview.
Additionally, I met a Lincoln University police sergeant who told me about their new police academy. We
are working on logistics to travel to Jefferson City and interview potential candidates. This academy
graduates in June of this year.

WCVB DIRECTOR’S REPORT
Marcy Bryant, Director of Tourism
March 3, 2021
Recap: WCVB Received Grants
Since October 2020, the WCVB has received $101,907 in grant funding. A percentage of the
amount received was posted to FY 20-21, as the expenses occurred during that fiscal year.
The WCVB has been awarded $30,410 since January 2021 to assist with advertising expenses.
The grants are reimbursement, minimal match. The funds will be received in FY 20-21. The
WCVB was recently notified it has received the Missouri Division of Tourism Marketing Matching
Grant 2.0 for $21,739.
In less than a year, the WCVB will have administered over $130,000 in grant funding. Most of
the funds, more than 80%, have/will be utilized for advertising expenses. A big thank you to the
City Finance Department for all their support and assistance with the grant administration.
Website
VisitWarrensburg.com has been redesigned and launched (March 3). The WCVB Board
approved the expense of upgrading the department header package. The upgrade allowed the
WCVB to utilize features not available on the basic department header package.
The WCVB greatly appreciates the City allowing the WCVB to partner on this project. We had a
friendly reminder when Covid hit how important our digital presence is.
UCM 150 Celebration in 2021-150 Years of Education For Service
The WCVB along with the Warrensburg Chamber and Warrensburg Main Street are serving on
UCM’s Sesquicentennial committee. The three organizations are working together to host
events 2021 in collaboration with UCM Alumni and Foundation and other departments/offices to
show appreciation to UCM faculty, staff, and students. The celebration’s website is
150.UCMO.edu. A list of events is included on the site.
The WCVB has worked with UCM’s Integrated Marketing and Communication Department on
several advertising pieces in state-wide publications. We will continue that partnership
throughout UCM’s monumental celebration.
WCVB 2021 Community Grant Program Updates
At the February WCVB Board meeting, the WCVB Board approved adding additional application
dates and opening the eligibility requirement to 501c6 nonprofit organizations.
To advertise the revisions, we have done FB posts, updated the website (including a news flash
spotlight), distributed a press release to local media and sent an email to past grant recipients.
The WCVB understands this year brings some uncertainty. The goal of the revisions is to offer
event organizers flexibility while continuing the mission of the WCVB Grant Program.
The WCVB awarded a $1,000 sports tourism grant to the Blaine Whitworth Go Big or Go Home
Golf Tournament on Friday, Oct. 15. The Foundation has received the grant in the past for their
5K. They always go above and beyond the grant requirements.
Groups: NCAA Women’s BB Central Region Tournament (March 12-15)
The tournament will be played at UCM’s Multipurpose Building. The teams will be announced
on Sunday, March 7. We have offered to provide individual bags with community information
(map, restaurant guide, etc.) the hotel staff can distribute to guests. Due to Covid precautions,
material distribution looks a bit different. We have not learned of the NCAA’s rules regarding

spectators. The tournament’s organization is being handled by the NCAA and not UCM
Athletics.
WCVB Board Meetings
The WCVB continues to meet via Zoom the second Thursday of the month at 10 a.m. The log in
information is on the meeting’s agenda and on the VisitWarrensburg.com site.
Upcoming Projects:
WCVB Strategic Plan (Update): The WCVB has a strategic plan, but it needs to be revised. The
plan was adopted January 2019, prior to the lodging tax increase in April and Visitor Center
relocation in July. Several of the goals were focused on these two items.
The WCVB Board will meet in July to revise.
Summer Social Media Campaign: In 2020, the WCVB adopted its brand with a new logo and
callout…Small Town + Big Soul. This summer, we are working on a social media campaign that
will focus on those who make our community what it is. Those working behind the scenes,
making the Burg the vibrant, dynamic community we all know it to be.

Director of Finance Report
March 08, 2021
Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Warrensburg, Missouri
Dear Mayor and Council Members:
The Director of Finance respectfully submits this report to augment your review of the financial
information provided. It includes an update of processes Finance is working to complete and
outlines the data included in the attached documents.
Business/Liquor Licenses:
Three local business establishments have been Issued citations from the Prosecutor’s Office for
failure to maintain an active license. One business has been sent a follow up letter to confirm
they are out of business. To comply they must contact the Prosecutor’s Office and provide proof
of license renewal or appear before the judge on the required court date.
Business and dog license fees are prorated at this time as the license is only valid through May
31. Staff is working to update information and forms for the upcoming license renewal season.
Renewals will be sent the last week of April.
Thirteen liquor license establishments have not scheduled the location inspection by the March 1
due date. Two establishments failed the initial inspection and will be required to pay the $225.00
fee before any future inspections can be scheduled.
Expiration date for liquor licenses is June 30 and an approved inspection must be provided as
part of the process.
Utility Billing:
Follow up letters have been sent to any account holders that have a current credit card draft
pending to update their information for future payment process. Thirty account holders for two
zones have been removed from draft with a letter sent stating the account could be subject to
penalties if not paid as the draft process has been discontinued.
Billing for Zone 1 residential customers on the next cycle will include readings to calculate for the
new winter average.
Collections procedures continue that include additional reports to sort delinquent past due
accounts with personal identifiers to transfer balances due to a new account.
Disconnects continue with several accounts pending for shut off closed due to delay caused by
inclement weather.
Customers continue signing up for E-billing.
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Audit Fiscal Year 2020:
The Audit Report is presented at this meeting for Council acceptance providing ample time to
submit the report to the State Auditor and other entities as required by bond and other covenants.
Revenue for Fiscal Year 2021
Included with this report is a Monthly Revenue Budget Report from the financial system. This
report includes each revenue category by fund and total revenue by fund. A revenue category is
defined by the type of revenue collected. For example, the City collects Property Tax, Sales Tax,
and other revenue.
This report states the adopted annual budget, the current monthly activity, fiscal (year-to-date)
activity and remaining budget percentage. As of February, the percentage remaining is expected
to be approximately fifty-eight percent (58%). The report reflects the total for all funds as just over
fifty percent (50.35%) remaining.
General Fund reflects nearly fifty-two percent (51.74%) remaining. A large portion of General
Fund revenue is the Cares Act money that is not included in the adopted budget. The Cares Act
funds will be included as part of the mid-year budget amendment scheduled for late April or first
of May. Without the Cares Act money, General Fund revenue collections reflects about forty-four
percent; under budget by about fourteen percent (14%). This report provides the data to build
the monthly revenue charts included in this report.
Chart for Sales Tax Comparison to Budget
Council continues to receive revenue reports that include a chart comparing sales tax collections
to budget in a column line chart for each of the sales tax collections for the Fiscal Year.
Information was included as to how the new chart is created in April 2020. Each Sales Tax
collected is reported showing the following:
“Ten Year Comparison Table” – this table is located at the top of each monthly sales
tax report provided. It is the actual collections by month and compares last year collections to
this year, defines the amount and percentage difference in the last two columns.
“Actual to Budget Column Line Chart” – this is the chart that reflects the actual
collections to budget amounts and the monthly difference and cumulative difference amounts.
The line in the chart shows the cumulative percentage change for each month. In this example
the percentages fluctuate up and down with each month’s collections compared to budget. The
difference and cumulative difference columns show the monthly and cumulative changes as
positive and negative amounts.
“Column Chart of Actual Collections for the past 10 years” – this chart shows the
actual collections each month for the past ten years. The slight variations in the collections are
reflected in the size of the color blocks for each month. Overall, the chart shows sales taxes on
a basic increase since 2012. The comparison of 2020 to 2021 for February shows a decrease
compared to February 2020 of nearly ten percent (9.66%).
Sales tax revenue received in February is for actual sales from December or earlier. With several
businesses paying their collected sales taxes at different periods throughout the year creates
variation in the percentages from month to month compared to prior years. Some businesses
pay monthly, quarterly, semi-annually, or even annually.
The collection of sales taxes for the first part of Fiscal Year 2021 is greater than that collected in
the first part of Fiscal Year 2020 by nearly three percent (2.85%). Use tax continues to reflect a
significant increase in collections compared to the first part Fiscal Year 2020 by just over eightytwo and half percent (82.58%). Sale Tax collections compared to 2021 Budget reflect just over
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four and one quarter percent (4.26%) over projected budget. Use Tax collections compared to
budget reflect over sixteen percent (16.08%) over projections.
Revenue Comparisons:
February 2021 revenue comparisons are attached for your review. Included is the monthly
comparison to February 2020, a year-to-date comparison for Fiscal Year 2021 compared to yearto-date Fiscal Year 2020, and a year-to-date Fiscal Year 2021 compared to Fiscal Year 2021
Budget. The year-to-date comparison to budget is a recap of revenue provided in the Detail vs.
Budget Report from the financial system. For the first five months of the fiscal year, overall
revenue is slightly exceeding budget with 51.74% remaining.
Combined Franchise taxes continue to reflect a decrease across the board for February 2021
compared to February 2020. February telephone franchise reflects a significant decrease
compared to February 2020. It is the largest decrease compared to February 2020 showing
nearly thirty percent (29.94%). Combined numbers reflect a decrease just under one percent
(0.75%) compared to February 2020.
Motor vehicle fuel tax continues to reflect a decrease compared to 2020 receipts. Total motor
vehicle taxes and fees reflect a slight decrease compared to 2020 receipts. Total motor fuel and
vehicle taxes exceed projected budget as of February by projection by 8.04%. February property
tax receipts are slightly less than February 2020 receipts. Lodging tax collections for February
2021 continue to be down compared to February 2020 by 17.43%.
Attachments:
Monthly Revenue Budget Report
Sales Tax Comparisons
Revenue Comparisons
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Budget Report

Group Summary

City of Warrensburg, MO

For Fiscal: 2020-2021 Period Ending: 02/28/2021

Current
Total Budget

Period
Activity

Fiscal
Activity

Revenue Total:

855,500.00
4,152,750.00
332,500.00
2,507,000.00
215,000.00
0.00
10,000.00
11,700.00
102,800.00
91,390.00
332,900.00
275,100.00
842,520.00
6,000.00
56,470.00
15,000.00
35,000.00
9,841,630.00

855,500.00
4,152,750.00
332,500.00
2,507,000.00
215,000.00
0.00
10,000.00
11,700.00
102,800.00
91,390.00
332,900.00
275,100.00
842,520.00
6,000.00
56,470.00
15,000.00
35,000.00
9,841,630.00

47,511.91
321,391.22
58,743.64
205,447.83
14,549.56
182,367.82
0.00
0.00
1,032.25
5,390.82
17,160.03
6,934.50
0.00
0.00
162.00
0.00
1,600.00
862,291.58

785,352.79
1,826,102.65
190,919.36
961,122.97
104,304.00
409,670.20
0.00
8,450.50
13,205.59
44,839.78
100,203.63
43,210.81
210,629.85
8,800.00
18,135.52
10,956.00
13,943.32
4,749,846.97

-70,147.21
-2,326,647.35
-141,580.64
-1,545,877.03
-110,696.00
409,670.20
-10,000.00
-3,249.50
-89,594.41
-46,550.22
-232,696.37
-231,889.19
-631,890.15
2,800.00
-38,334.48
-4,044.00
-21,056.68
-5,091,783.03

8.20 %
56.03 %
42.58 %
61.66 %
51.49 %
0.00 %
100.00 %
27.77 %
87.15 %
50.94 %
69.90 %
84.29 %
75.00 %
46.67 %
67.88 %
26.96 %
60.16 %
51.74 %

Fund: 110 - GENERAL Total:

9,841,630.00

9,841,630.00

862,291.58

4,749,846.97

-5,091,783.03

51.74 %

RevCategor…
Fund: 110 - GENERAL
Revenue
511 - PROPERTY TAX
512 - SALES TAX
513 - USE TAX
514 - FRANCHISE TAX
519 - TAX - NON CATEGORIZED
521 - INTERGOVEN - FED GRANT
522 - INTERGOVEN - STATE GRANT
523 - INTERGOVEN - LOCAL GRANT
531 - LICENSES
532 - PERMITS
541 - FINES
551 - SERVICE & MERCHANDISE
555 - SERVICE & MERCHANDISE
561 - ASSET SALES
571 - INTEREST INCOME
591 - DONATION
599 - REVENUE - NON CATEGORIZED

3/4/2021 1:29:17 PM

Variance
Percent
Favorable
(Unfavorable) Remaining

Original
Total Budget
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Budget Report

For Fiscal: 2020-2021 Period Ending: 02/28/2021
Current
Total Budget

Period
Activity

Fiscal
Activity

Revenue Total:

565,000.00
74,500.00
4,000.00
643,500.00

565,000.00
74,500.00
4,000.00
643,500.00

54,965.50
7,856.38
0.00
62,821.88

282,085.29
37,409.55
1,949.68
321,444.52

-282,914.71
-37,090.45
-2,050.32
-322,055.48

50.07 %
49.79 %
51.26 %
50.05 %

Fund: 210 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT TRAN Total:

643,500.00

643,500.00

62,821.88

321,444.52

-322,055.48

50.05 %

RevCategor…
Fund: 210 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT TRAN
Revenue
512 - SALES TAX
551 - SERVICE & MERCHANDISE
571 - INTEREST INCOME

3/4/2021 1:29:17 PM

Variance
Favorable
Percent
(Unfavorable) Remaining

Original
Total Budget
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Budget Report

For Fiscal: 2020-2021 Period Ending: 02/28/2021
Current
Total Budget

Period
Activity

Fiscal
Activity

Revenue Total:

1,615,000.00
178,000.00
3,500.00
1,796,500.00

1,615,000.00
178,000.00
3,500.00
1,796,500.00

127,916.48
29,377.33
0.00
157,293.81

718,297.28
95,477.59
2,589.01
816,363.88

-896,702.72
-82,522.41
-910.99
-980,136.12

55.52 %
46.36 %
26.03 %
54.56 %

Fund: 215 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 1/2 C Total:

1,796,500.00

1,796,500.00

157,293.81

816,363.88

-980,136.12

54.56 %

RevCategor…
Fund: 215 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 1/2 C
Revenue
512 - SALES TAX
513 - USE TAX
571 - INTEREST INCOME

3/4/2021 1:29:17 PM

Variance
Favorable
Percent
(Unfavorable) Remaining

Original
Total Budget

Page 3 of 21

Budget Report

For Fiscal: 2020-2021 Period Ending: 02/28/2021
Current
Total Budget

Period
Activity

Fiscal
Activity

Revenue Total:

1,114,300.00
3,300.00
1,117,600.00

1,114,300.00
3,300.00
1,117,600.00

47,230.90
17.91
47,248.81

1,045,083.31
1,279.32
1,046,362.63

-69,216.69
-2,020.68
-71,237.37

6.21 %
61.23 %
6.37 %

Fund: 225 - GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS Total:

1,117,600.00

1,117,600.00

47,248.81

1,046,362.63

-71,237.37

6.37 %

RevCategor…
Fund: 225 - GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
Revenue
511 - PROPERTY TAX
571 - INTEREST INCOME

3/4/2021 1:29:17 PM

Variance
Favorable
Percent
(Unfavorable) Remaining

Original
Total Budget
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Budget Report

For Fiscal: 2020-2021 Period Ending: 02/28/2021
Variance
Favorable
Percent
(Unfavorable) Remaining

Original
Total Budget

Current
Total Budget

Period
Activity

Fiscal
Activity

Revenue Total:

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

6.96
6.96

6.96
6.96

0.00 %
0.00 %

Fund: 250 - VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT Total:

0.00

0.00

0.00

6.96

6.96

0.00 %

RevCategor…
Fund: 250 - VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT
Revenue
571 - INTEREST INCOME

3/4/2021 1:29:17 PM
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For Fiscal: 2020-2021 Period Ending: 02/28/2021
Current
Total Budget

Period
Activity

Fiscal
Activity

Revenue Total:

0.00
2,827,530.00
2,827,530.00

0.00
2,827,530.00
2,827,530.00

5.94
1,576,690.85
1,576,696.79

5.94
1,766,504.25
1,766,510.19

5.94
-1,061,025.75
-1,061,019.81

0.00 %
37.52 %
37.52 %

Fund: 310 - DEBT SERVICE Total:

2,827,530.00

2,827,530.00

1,576,696.79

1,766,510.19

-1,061,019.81

37.52 %

RevCategor…
Fund: 310 - DEBT SERVICE
Revenue
571 - INTEREST INCOME
711 - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

3/4/2021 1:29:17 PM

Variance
Favorable
Percent
(Unfavorable) Remaining

Original
Total Budget

Page 6 of 21

Budget Report

For Fiscal: 2020-2021 Period Ending: 02/28/2021
Variance
Favorable
Percent
(Unfavorable) Remaining

Original
Total Budget

Current
Total Budget

Period
Activity

Fiscal
Activity

Revenue Total:

69,000.00
100,000.00
2,490.00
171,490.00

69,000.00
100,000.00
2,490.00
171,490.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

63,282.81
0.00
0.00
63,282.81

-5,717.19
-100,000.00
-2,490.00
-108,207.19

8.29 %
100.00 %
100.00 %
63.10 %

Fund: 410 - NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT Total:

171,490.00

171,490.00

0.00

63,282.81

-108,207.19

63.10 %

RevCategor…
Fund: 410 - NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT
Revenue
511 - PROPERTY TAX
561 - ASSET SALES
711 - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

3/4/2021 1:29:17 PM
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For Fiscal: 2020-2021 Period Ending: 02/28/2021
Current
Total Budget

Period
Activity

Fiscal
Activity

Revenue Total:

465,780.00
1,163,750.00
131,000.00
802,415.00
200.00
15,960.00
2,000.00
2,500.00
2,583,605.00

465,780.00
1,163,750.00
131,000.00
802,415.00
200.00
15,960.00
2,000.00
2,500.00
2,583,605.00

25,810.24
95,693.61
22,030.24
21,667.68
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
165,201.77

425,553.38
523,888.57
71,599.23
111,634.76
0.00
5,123.16
221.00
61.92
1,138,082.02

-40,226.62
-639,861.43
-59,400.77
-690,780.24
-200.00
-10,836.84
-1,779.00
-2,438.08
-1,445,522.98

8.64 %
54.98 %
45.34 %
86.09 %
100.00 %
67.90 %
88.95 %
97.52 %
55.95 %

Fund: 430 - PARK & RECREATION Total:

2,583,605.00

2,583,605.00

165,201.77

1,138,082.02

-1,445,522.98

55.95 %

RevCategor…
Fund: 430 - PARK & RECREATION
Revenue
511 - PROPERTY TAX
512 - SALES TAX
513 - USE TAX
551 - SERVICE & MERCHANDISE
561 - ASSET SALES
571 - INTEREST INCOME
591 - DONATION
599 - REVENUE - NON CATEGORIZED

3/4/2021 1:29:17 PM

Variance
Favorable
Percent
(Unfavorable) Remaining

Original
Total Budget
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For Fiscal: 2020-2021 Period Ending: 02/28/2021
Current
Total Budget

Period
Activity

Fiscal
Activity

Revenue Total:

140,600.00
9,500.00
150,100.00

140,600.00
9,500.00
150,100.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

140,736.94
1,791.60
142,528.54

136.94
-7,708.40
-7,571.46

0.10 %
81.14 %
5.04 %

Fund: 440 - TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING Total:

150,100.00

150,100.00

0.00

142,528.54

-7,571.46

5.04 %

RevCategor…
Fund: 440 - TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING
Revenue
511 - PROPERTY TAX
512 - SALES TAX

3/4/2021 1:29:17 PM

Variance
Favorable
Percent
(Unfavorable) Remaining

Original
Total Budget
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For Fiscal: 2020-2021 Period Ending: 02/28/2021
Current
Total Budget

Period
Activity

Fiscal
Activity

Revenue Total:

500.00
4,784,600.00
287,540.00
0.00
5,072,640.00

500.00
4,784,600.00
287,540.00
0.00
5,072,640.00

0.00
393,043.00
15,837.56
75.00
408,955.56

0.00
2,048,036.57
90,099.33
75.00
2,138,210.90

-500.00
-2,736,563.43
-197,440.67
75.00
-2,934,429.10

100.00 %
57.20 %
68.67 %
0.00 %
57.85 %

Fund: 610 - WATER POLLUTION CONTROL Total:

5,072,640.00

5,072,640.00

408,955.56

2,138,210.90

-2,934,429.10

57.85 %

RevCategor…
Fund: 610 - WATER POLLUTION CONTROL
Revenue
532 - PERMITS
551 - SERVICE & MERCHANDISE
571 - INTEREST INCOME
599 - REVENUE - NON CATEGORIZED

3/4/2021 1:29:17 PM

Variance
Favorable
Percent
(Unfavorable) Remaining

Original
Total Budget
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For Fiscal: 2020-2021 Period Ending: 02/28/2021
Current
Total Budget

Period
Activity

Fiscal
Activity

Revenue Total:

920.00
920.00

920.00
920.00

0.00
0.00

333.96
333.96

-586.04
-586.04

63.70 %
63.70 %

Fund: 710 - STEVENSON Total:

920.00

920.00

0.00

333.96

-586.04

63.70 %

RevCategor…
Fund: 710 - STEVENSON
Revenue
571 - INTEREST INCOME

3/4/2021 1:29:17 PM

Variance
Favorable
Percent
(Unfavorable) Remaining

Original
Total Budget
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For Fiscal: 2020-2021 Period Ending: 02/28/2021
Current
Total Budget

Period
Activity

Fiscal
Activity

Revenue Total:

270.00
270.00

270.00
270.00

0.00
0.00

92.97
92.97

-177.03
-177.03

65.57 %
65.57 %

Fund: 720 - BROWN Total:

270.00

270.00

0.00

92.97

-177.03

65.57 %

RevCategor…
Fund: 720 - BROWN
Revenue
571 - INTEREST INCOME

3/4/2021 1:29:17 PM

Variance
Favorable
Percent
(Unfavorable) Remaining

Original
Total Budget
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For Fiscal: 2020-2021 Period Ending: 02/28/2021
Current
Total Budget

Period
Activity

Fiscal
Activity

Revenue Total:

190.00
1,000.00
1,190.00

190.00
1,000.00
1,190.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

67.71
0.00
67.71

-122.29
-1,000.00
-1,122.29

64.36 %
100.00 %
94.31 %

Fund: 730 - ANDERSON Total:

1,190.00

1,190.00

0.00

67.71

-1,122.29

94.31 %

RevCategor…
Fund: 730 - ANDERSON
Revenue
571 - INTEREST INCOME
591 - DONATION

3/4/2021 1:29:17 PM

Variance
Favorable
Percent
(Unfavorable) Remaining

Original
Total Budget
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For Fiscal: 2020-2021 Period Ending: 02/28/2021
Current
Total Budget

Period
Activity

Fiscal
Activity

Revenue Total:

230.00
370.00
600.00

230.00
370.00
600.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

77.46
0.00
77.46

-152.54
-370.00
-522.54

66.32 %
100.00 %
87.09 %

Fund: 740 - CRISSEY Total:

600.00

600.00

0.00

77.46

-522.54

87.09 %

RevCategor…
Fund: 740 - CRISSEY
Revenue
571 - INTEREST INCOME
711 - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

3/4/2021 1:29:17 PM

Variance
Favorable
Percent
(Unfavorable) Remaining

Original
Total Budget
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For Fiscal: 2020-2021 Period Ending: 02/28/2021
Current
Total Budget

Period
Activity

Fiscal
Activity

Revenue Total:

80.00
80.00

80.00
80.00

0.00
0.00

52.24
52.24

-27.76
-27.76

34.70 %
34.70 %

Fund: 750 - TRICENTENNIAL Total:

80.00

80.00

0.00

52.24

-27.76

34.70 %

RevCategor…
Fund: 750 - TRICENTENNIAL
Revenue
571 - INTEREST INCOME

3/4/2021 1:29:17 PM

Variance
Favorable
Percent
(Unfavorable) Remaining

Original
Total Budget
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For Fiscal: 2020-2021 Period Ending: 02/28/2021
Current
Total Budget

Period
Activity

Fiscal
Activity

Revenue Total:

330.00
15,600.00
15,930.00

330.00
15,600.00
15,930.00

0.00
1,360.00
1,360.00

109.06
1,585.00
1,694.06

-220.94
-14,015.00
-14,235.94

66.95 %
89.84 %
89.37 %

Fund: 810 - CHILDREN'S MEMORIAL Total:

15,930.00

15,930.00

1,360.00

1,694.06

-14,235.94

89.37 %

RevCategor…
Fund: 810 - CHILDREN'S MEMORIAL
Revenue
571 - INTEREST INCOME
591 - DONATION

3/4/2021 1:29:17 PM

Variance
Favorable
Percent
(Unfavorable) Remaining

Original
Total Budget
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For Fiscal: 2020-2021 Period Ending: 02/28/2021
Current
Total Budget

Period
Activity

Fiscal
Activity

Revenue Total:

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

68.36
68.36

68.36
68.36

0.00 %
0.00 %

Fund: 820 - ARTS COMMISSION Total:

0.00

0.00

0.00

68.36

68.36

0.00 %

RevCategor…
Fund: 820 - ARTS COMMISSION
Revenue
571 - INTEREST INCOME

3/4/2021 1:29:17 PM

Variance
Favorable
Percent
(Unfavorable) Remaining

Original
Total Budget

Page 17 of 21

Budget Report

For Fiscal: 2020-2021 Period Ending: 02/28/2021
Current
Total Budget

Period
Activity

Fiscal
Activity

Revenue Total:

20.00
20.00

20.00
20.00

0.00
0.00

2.52
2.52

-17.48
-17.48

87.40 %
87.40 %

Fund: 825 - PUBLIC ARTS FUND Total:

20.00

20.00

0.00

2.52

-17.48

87.40 %

RevCategor…
Fund: 825 - PUBLIC ARTS FUND
Revenue
571 - INTEREST INCOME

3/4/2021 1:29:17 PM

Variance
Favorable
Percent
(Unfavorable) Remaining

Original
Total Budget
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Budget Report

For Fiscal: 2020-2021 Period Ending: 02/28/2021
Current
Total Budget

Period
Activity

Fiscal
Activity

Revenue Total:

166,773.00
71,600.00
1,500.00
239,873.00

166,773.00
71,600.00
1,500.00
239,873.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

89,754.44
54,062.88
1,569.73
145,387.05

-77,018.56
-17,537.12
69.73
-94,485.95

46.18 %
24.49 %
4.65 %
39.39 %

Fund: 830 - WCVB TOURISM BUREAU Total:

239,873.00

239,873.00

0.00

145,387.05

-94,485.95

39.39 %

RevCategor…
Fund: 830 - WCVB TOURISM BUREAU
Revenue
519 - TAX - NON CATEGORIZED
522 - INTERGOVEN - STATE GRANT
571 - INTEREST INCOME

3/4/2021 1:29:17 PM

Variance
Favorable
Percent
(Unfavorable) Remaining

Original
Total Budget
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Budget Report

For Fiscal: 2020-2021 Period Ending: 02/28/2021

RevCategor…
Fund: 900 - SELF INSURED
Revenue
500 - PREMIUMS
571 - INTEREST INCOME
Revenue Total:

3/4/2021 1:29:17 PM

Original
Total Budget

Current
Total Budget

Period
Activity

Fiscal
Activity

1,334,040.00
7,000.00
1,341,040.00

1,334,040.00
7,000.00
1,341,040.00

99,007.85
0.00
99,007.85

477,552.27
3,014.25
480,566.52

Variance
Favorable
Percent
(Unfavorable) Remaining

-856,487.73
-3,985.75
-860,473.48

64.20 %
56.94 %
64.16 %

Fund: 900 - SELF INSURED Total:

1,341,040.00

1,341,040.00

99,007.85

480,566.52

-860,473.48

64.16 %

Report Total:

25,804,518.00

25,804,518.00

3,380,878.05

12,810,982.27

-12,993,535.73

50.35 %
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Budget Report

For Fiscal: 2020-2021 Period Ending: 02/28/2021

Fund Summary
Original
Total Budget

Current
Total Budget

Period
Activity

Fiscal
Activity

110 - GENERAL
9,841,630.00
210 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT TRAN
643,500.00
215 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 1/2 C
1,796,500.00
225 - GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
1,117,600.00
250 - VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT
0.00
310 - DEBT SERVICE
2,827,530.00
410 - NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT
171,490.00
430 - PARK & RECREATION
2,583,605.00
440 - TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING
150,100.00
610 - WATER POLLUTION CONTROL
5,072,640.00
710 - STEVENSON
920.00
720 - BROWN
270.00
730 - ANDERSON
1,190.00
740 - CRISSEY
600.00
750 - TRICENTENNIAL
80.00
810 - CHILDREN'S MEMORIAL
15,930.00
820 - ARTS COMMISSION
0.00
825 - PUBLIC ARTS FUND
20.00
830 - WCVB TOURISM BUREAU
239,873.00
900 - SELF INSURED
1,341,040.00
Report Total:
25,804,518.00

9,841,630.00
643,500.00
1,796,500.00
1,117,600.00
0.00
2,827,530.00
171,490.00
2,583,605.00
150,100.00
5,072,640.00
920.00
270.00
1,190.00
600.00
80.00
15,930.00
0.00
20.00
239,873.00
1,341,040.00
25,804,518.00

862,291.58
62,821.88
157,293.81
47,248.81
0.00
1,576,696.79
0.00
165,201.77
0.00
408,955.56
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
1,360.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
99,007.85
3,380,878.05

4,749,846.97
321,444.52
816,363.88
1,046,362.63
6.96
1,766,510.19
63,282.81
1,138,082.02
142,528.54
2,138,210.90
333.96
92.97
67.71
77.46
52.24
1,694.06
68.36
2.52
145,387.05
480,566.52
12,810,982.27

Fund

3/4/2021 1:29:17 PM

Variance
Favorable
Percent
(Unfavorable) Remaining
-5,091,783.03
-322,055.48
-980,136.12
-71,237.37
6.96
-1,061,019.81
-108,207.19
-1,445,522.98
-7,571.46
-2,934,429.10
-586.04
-177.03
-1,122.29
-522.54
-27.76
-14,235.94
68.36
-17.48
-94,485.95
-860,473.48
-12,993,535.73

51.74 %
50.05 %
54.56 %
6.37 %
0.00 %
37.52 %
63.10 %
55.95 %
5.04 %
57.85 %
63.70 %
65.57 %
94.31 %
87.09 %
34.70 %
89.37 %
0.00 %
87.40 %
39.39 %
64.16 %
50.35 %
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CITY OF WARRENSBURG
*1 CENT SALES TEN YEAR COMPARISON
FY12

FY13

FY14

FY15

FY16

FY17

FY18

FY19

FY20

FY21

CHANGE

%

OCT

$

241,663.14

$

262,395.96

$

223,965.81

$

291,309.52

$

300,352.02

$

290,432.91

$

277,035.30

$

255,230.99

$

272,805.07

$

300,458.97

$ 27,653.90

NOV

$

182,051.90

$

220,033.60

$

276,423.19

$

238,145.41

$

216,601.32

$

211,424.44

$

177,540.63

$

224,863.87

$

252,813.76

$

249,727.09

$

DEC

$

289,597.56

$

252,544.84

$

267,827.30

$

285,374.94

$

319,019.14

$

288,310.36

$

394,139.78

$

310,872.00

$

289,360.40

$

328,164.17

$ 38,803.77

JAN

$

233,058.35

$

220,025.84

$

255,013.31

$

294,539.60

$

250,241.32

$

296,111.08

$

229,462.01

$

292,370.18

$

298,640.41

$

302,411.04

$

FEB

$

203,878.27

$

229,347.32

$

285,929.58

$

238,250.72

$

219,096.17

$

213,215.16

$

269,203.71

$

250,206.62

$

283,194.65

$

255,833.14

$ (27,361.51)

MAR

$

267,574.99

$

258,746.18

$

229,349.91

$

253,219.95

$

339,600.73

$

307,664.21

$

363,836.04

$

301,978.15

$

287,995.37

MAR

APR

$

254,868.76

$

241,309.70

$

259,439.94

$

273,340.61

$

261,812.55

$

264,157.95

$

263,457.37

$

266,940.73

$

304,660.70

APR

MAY

$

174,935.23

$

196,492.75

$

288,104.51

$

205,450.09

$

214,086.04

$

161,834.43

$

233,179.18

$

223,472.98

$

256,519.11

MAY

JUN

$

279,936.42

$

267,505.55

$

258,915.52

$

319,728.73

$

334,068.59

$

283,382.60

$

275,050.27

$

330,656.99

$

332,114.88

JUN

JUL

$

249,964.18

$

312,893.75

$

321,626.49

$

294,159.03

$

278,860.86

$

341,411.81

$

354,778.37

$

299,913.52

$

350,318.42

JUL

AUG

$

190,637.98

$

186,223.91

$

218,005.63

$

195,901.22

$

217,673.85

$

228,583.89

$

243,192.76

$

309,680.96

$

289,925.95

AUG

SEP

$

269,733.79

$

303,619.30

$

286,494.71

$

320,967.17

$

325,860.80

$

289,997.56

$

331,796.69

$

327,373.20

$

364,540.92

TOTAL

$ 2,837,900.57

$ 2,951,138.70

$ 3,171,095.90

$ 3,210,386.99

$ 3,277,273.39

$ 3,176,526.40

$ 3,412,672.11

$ 3,393,560.19

$ 3,582,889.64

(3,086.67)

3,770.63

10.14% OCT
-1.22% NOV
13.41% DEC
1.26% JAN
-9.66% FEB

SEP
$ 1,436,594.41

$ 39,780.12

2.85% TOTAL

1 CENT SALES TAXES RECEIVED

FY 2021 Actual to Budget
0.045

350000

0.04

300000

0.035
250000

4,000,000

3,500,000
SEP
3,000,000

AUG
JUL

0.03

JUN

2,500,000

200000

0.025
0.02

150000

MAY
APR

2,000,000

MAR
0.015

100000

FEB

1,500,000

JAN
0.01

50000

NOV

0.005

0

0
OCT

NOV
FY 21 Actual

3/4/2021

DEC

1,000,000

Budget

DEC
Difference

JAN
Cumulative Dif

OCT

500,000

FEB
-

Cumulative % Dif

FY12

Page 1

FY13

FY14

FY15

FY16

FY17

FY18

FY19

FY20

FY21

* Effective 1/01/1972
2020 Adj.Feb.

CITY OF WARRENSBURG
*1/2 CENT SALES TEN YEAR COMPARISON
FY12

FY13

FY14

FY15

FY16

FY17

FY18

FY19

FY20

FY21

CHANGE

%

OCT

$

120,831.68

$

131,197.84

$

111,983.09

$

145,654.68

$

150,176.28

$

145,216.65

$

138,517.76

$

127,615.00

$

136,402.77

$

150,229.29

$

13,826.52

10.14% OCT

NOV

$

91,025.98

$

110,016.80

$

138,211.48

$

119,072.69

$

108,300.84

$

105,712.23

$

88,769.99

$

112,432.06

$

126,406.61

$

124,863.50

$

(1,543.11)

-1.22% NOV

DEC

$

144,798.86

$

126,272.31

$

133,913.51

$

142,687.52

$

159,509.74

$

144,155.35

$

197,069.71

$

155,435.62

$

144,680.41

$

164,082.36

$

19,401.95

13.41% DEC

JAN

$

116,528.87

$

110,013.12

$

127,506.60

$

147,270.08

$

125,120.62

$

148,055.79

$

114,731.10

$

146,185.47

$

149,320.16

$

151,205.65

$

1,885.49

FEB

$

101,939.20

$

114,673.58

$

142,964.83

$

119,125.33

$

109,548.28

$

106,607.60

$

134,601.87

$

125,103.08

$

141,597.20

$

127,916.48

$ (13,680.72)

MAR

$

133,791.41

$

129,373.00

$

114,669.70

$

126,605.69

$

169,800.49

$

153,829.54

$

181,918.09

$

150,989.42

$

143,997.60

APR

$

127,424.88

$

120,648.44

$

129,717.13

$

136,670.24

$

130,906.51

$

132,079.16

$

131,728.51

$

133,470.43

$

152,330.50

APR

MAY

$

87,466.47

$

98,246.54

$

144,052.54

$

102,725.05

$

107,034.41

$

80,917.38

$

116,589.61

$

111,736.23

$

128,259.80

MAY

1.26% JAN
-9.66% FEB
MAR

JUN

$

139,953.69

$

133,753.04

$

129,451.06

$

159,864.25

$

167,028.61

$

141,291.28

$

137,525.10

$

165,328.46

$

166,057.35

JUN

JUL

$

124,982.01

$

156,445.40

$

160,813.34

$

147,079.69

$

139,430.42

$

170,695.02

$

177,389.18

$

149,956.62

$

175,159.33

JUL

AUG

$

95,319.04

$

93,111.83

$

109,002.66

$

97,950.67

$

108,836.84

$

114,281.02

$

121,596.73

$

154,840.48

$

144,963.46

AUG

SEP

$

134,867.11

$

151,804.17

$

143,247.57

$

160,483.47

$

162,930.65

$

144,998.94

$

165,898.45

$

163,687.09

$

182,270.64

TOTAL $ 1,418,929.20

$ 1,475,556.07

$ 1,585,533.51

$ 1,605,189.36

$ 1,638,623.69

$ 1,587,839.96

$ 1,706,336.10

$ 1,696,779.96

$ 1,791,445.83

FY 2021 Actual to Budget

SEP
$

718,297.28

$

19,890.13

2.85% TOTAL

1/2 CENT SALES TAXES RECEIVED

180000
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160000
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140000
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100000
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80000

0.02

1,000,000

60000

0.015

800,000

40000

0.01

600,000

20000

0.005

400,000

0

200,000

SEP
AUG
JUL
JUN
MAY
APR
MAR
FEB
JAN
DEC
NOV
OCT

0
OCT

NOV
FY 21 Actual

3/4/2021

Budget

DEC
Difference

JAN
Cumulative Dif

FEB
-

Cumulative % Dif

FY12

Page 2

FY13

FY14

FY15

FY16

FY17

FY18

FY19

FY20

FY21

* Effective 1/01/1995
2020 Adj.Feb.

CITY OF WARRENSBURG
*3/8 CENT SALES TEN YEAR COMPARISON
FY12

FY13

FY14

FY15

FY16

FY17

FY18

FY19

FY20

FY21

CHANGE

%

OCT

$

86,189.33

$

93,465.69

$

83,936.23

$

105,422.83

$

107,993.82

$

105,377.24

$

99,242.10

$

95,187.99

$

102,214.37

$

108,347.15

$

6,132.78

6.00% OCT

NOV

$

67,637.85

$

78,992.03

$

95,992.27

$

88,737.16

$

80,964.79

$

78,354.36

$

62,317.52

$

80,365.11

$

90,462.83

$

93,541.33

$

3,078.50

3.40% NOV
13.56% DEC

DEC

$

102,057.84

$

91,997.57

$

100,103.74

$

100,560.75

$

113,408.87

$

104,098.29

$

141,643.09

$

112,288.75

$

104,462.03

$

118,627.53

$

14,165.50

JAN

$

84,469.04

$

78,689.20

$

90,220.18

$

107,726.80

$

90,666.80

$

105,762.86

$

82,643.20

$

106,763.75

$

106,744.46

$

107,678.95

$

934.49

FEB

$

72,484.04

$

83,486.85

$

103,219.69

$

85,148.34

$

82,150.10

$

79,204.48

$

100,682.66

$

91,262.55

$

104,477.05

$

95,693.61

$

MAR

$

97,609.07

$

92,583.73

$

85,991.73

$

91,879.55

$

119,713.66

$

108,704.25

$

127,429.96

$

108,917.98

$

103,563.12

MAR

APR

$

91,179.39

$

84,330.44

$

89,923.49

$

99,288.84

$

93,822.27

$

97,331.52

$

95,571.47

$

93,935.98

$

108,681.88

APR

MAY

$

63,071.14

$

70,707.30

$

98,496.17

$

74,867.23

$

80,275.00

$

56,525.77

$

84,712.82

$

83,571.09

$

92,402.04

MAY

JUN

$

102,100.92

$

96,244.12

$

93,367.55

$

113,081.19

$

118,727.93

$

102,978.01

$

98,968.83

$

118,436.96

$

118,673.74

JUN

JUL

$

90,305.51

$

113,223.39

$

116,755.95

$

107,530.80

$

102,127.07

$

123,032.59

$

126,639.46

$

107,033.56

$

126,859.66

JUL

AUG

$

68,553.90

$

67,134.73

$

79,002.18

$

72,948.55

$

79,230.19

$

84,598.76

$

90,330.78

$

108,381.89

$

107,147.20

AUG

SEP

$

96,171.11

$

109,587.86

$

103,401.28

$

113,775.48

$

117,872.86

$

105,337.95

$

115,936.67

$

118,895.27

$

128,894.15

SEP

TOTAL

$ 1,021,829.14

$ 1,060,442.91

$ 1,140,410.46

$ 1,160,967.52

$ 1,186,953.36

$ 1,151,306.08

$ 1,226,118.56

$ 1,225,040.88

$ 1,294,582.53

$

523,888.57

$

(8,783.44)

15,527.83

0.88% JAN
-8.41% FEB

3.05% TOTAL

3/8 CENT SALES TAXES RECEIVED

FY 2021 Actual to Budget
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FY13

FY14

FY15

FY16

FY17

FY18

FY19

FY20

FY21

* Effective 4/01/2004
2020 Adj.Feb.

CITY OF WARRENSBURG
1 CENT USE TEN YEAR COMPARISON
FY12

FY13

FY14

FY15

FY16

FY17

OCT

$ 11,056.06

$ 13,900.06

$

NOV

$ 11,525.73

$ 15,955.74

DEC

$ 16,808.54

$ 17,075.51

JAN

$ 10,964.18

$ 13,072.57

FEB

$ 15,326.27

MAR

$ 12,687.35

APR

FY18

FY19

FY20

FY21

CHANGE

9,143.52

$ 15,961.68

$ 14,297.21

$ 22,204.92

$

$ 21,934.11

$ 19,083.78

$ 18,292.66

$ 25,830.18

$ 20,893.01

$ 18,277.23

$ 22,768.53

$ 14,826.63

$ 15,384.22

$ 19,412.67

$ 16,908.80

$ 17,578.20

$ 21,592.46

$ 33,738.68

$ 47,815.98

$ 39,738.90

$ 17,579.43

$ 25,803.07

$ 19,731.46

$ 23,052.54

$ 13,464.09

$ 17,199.63

$ 18,897.80

$ 16,811.78

MAY

$ 11,539.63

$ 16,520.19

$ 30,031.20

JUN

$ 18,872.40

$ 20,623.89

$ 13,515.76

JUL

$ 16,234.34

$ 17,766.36

AUG

$ 24,256.14

$ 15,313.50

SEP

$ 16,342.89

TOTAL

$179,077.62

5,257.26

$ 21,217.49

$ 16,912.14

$ 30,442.72

$ 13,530.58

80.01% OCT

$ 17,327.71

$ 25,983.82

$ 19,195.17

$ 38,756.77

$ 19,561.60

101.91% NOV

$ 23,477.96

$ 22,575.35

$ 26,302.28

$ 28,603.23

$

2,300.95

8.75% DEC

$ 17,230.49

$ 28,100.11

$ 18,103.13

$ 34,373.00

$ 16,269.87

89.87% JAN

$ 29,977.33

$ 49,539.04

$ 30,780.41

$ 24,052.68

$ 58,743.64

$ 34,690.96

144.23% FEB

$ 20,953.42

$ 29,507.54

$ 48,533.97

$ 38,085.61

MAR

$ 15,592.06

$ 18,874.61

$ 30,779.50

$ 15,976.62

$ 23,279.45

APR

$ 15,257.19

$ 14,694.11

$ 16,758.71

$ 23,208.09

$ 13,624.85

$ 40,807.72

MAY

$ 10,750.07

$ 16,553.81

$ 20,400.29

$ 17,490.23

$ 23,647.66

$ 41,580.86

JUN

$ 27,751.05

$ 15,201.88

$ 16,793.68

$ 19,675.12

$ 34,222.43

$ 17,019.56

$ 33,127.28

JUL

$ 19,162.04

$ 13,467.18

$ 17,022.58

$ 19,792.30

$ 26,103.60

$ 23,925.48

$ 34,443.17

AUG

$ 18,390.66

$ 15,902.92

$ 17,496.69

$ 18,779.33

$ 27,510.52

$ 20,514.14

$ 26,288.22

$ 30,188.45

SEP

$204,990.00

$252,157.38

$229,267.59

$234,494.21

$254,382.23

$294,657.99

$297,673.54

$346,077.94

$190,919.36

$ 86,353.96

%

82.58% TOTAL

1 CENT USE TAXES RECEIVED

FY 2021 Actual to Budget
70000

60000
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SEP
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50000
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40000

0.1
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30000

0.06
20000
0.04
10000

0.02
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MAY

Budget

NOV

DEC

JAN
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200,000

Difference

MAR

Cumulative Dif
Cumulative % Dif

FEB

150,000

JAN
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100,000
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OCT

50,000
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OCT

JUN

250,000
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FEB
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FY13

FY14

FY15

FY16

FY17

FY18

FY19

FY20

FY21

2020 Adj.Feb.

CITY OF WARRENSBURG
1/2 CENT USE TEN YEAR COMPARISON
FY12

FY13

FY14

FY15

FY16

FY17

FY18

FY19

FY20

FY21

CHANGE

%

OCT

$

5,527.00

$

6,948.75

$

4,570.92

$

7,982.34

$

7,149.94

$ 11,104.54

$

2,629.12

$ 10,610.74

$

8,457.66

$ 15,224.22

$

6,766.56

80.01% OCT

NOV

$

5,761.80

$

7,976.39

$ 10,965.03

$

9,543.68

$

9,148.04

$ 12,917.51

$

8,665.48

$ 12,994.35

$

9,599.39

$ 19,382.02

$

9,782.63

101.91% NOV

DEC

$

8,402.72

$

8,536.18

$ 10,444.57

$

9,140.33

$ 11,386.40

$

7,414.70

$ 11,741.19

$ 11,289.79

$ 13,153.60

$ 14,304.30

$

1,150.70

8.75% DEC

JAN

$

5,481.08

$

6,535.08

$

$

9,708.15

$

$

8,790.75

$

8,616.86

$ 14,052.69

$

9,053.27

$ 17,189.72

$

8,136.45

89.87% JAN

FEB

$

7,661.71

$ 10,794.23

$ 16,872.50

$ 23,912.47

$ 19,873.18

$ 14,991.48

$ 24,774.16

$ 15,393.09

$ 12,028.59

$ 29,377.33

$ 17,348.74

144.23% FEB

MAR

$

6,342.50

$

8,788.09

$ 12,903.96

$

9,867.58

$ 11,528.43

$ 10,478.67

$ 14,756.54

$ 24,271.54

$ 19,046.38

MAR

APR

$

6,730.80

$

8,598.23

$

9,450.67

$

8,407.47

$

7,797.49

$

9,439.07

$ 15,392.63

$

7,989.81

$ 11,641.90

APR

MAY

$

5,768.75

$

8,258.57

$ 15,018.42

$

7,630.03

$

7,348.43

$

8,380.93

$ 11,606.22

$

6,813.70

$ 20,407.69

MAY

JUN

$

9,434.45

$ 10,310.04

$

6,759.15

$

5,376.05

$

8,278.46

$ 10,202.06

$

$ 11,826.04

$ 20,794.33

JUN

JUL

$

8,115.67

$

8,881.54

$ 13,878.12

$

7,602.37

$

8,398.42

$

9,839.40

$ 17,114.42

$

8,511.38

$ 16,566.74

JUL

AUG

$ 12,125.82

$

7,655.33

$

9,582.82

$

6,734.85

$

8,512.89

$

9,898.00

$ 13,054.25

$ 11,964.98

$ 17,224.82

AUG

SEP

$

$

9,193.63

$

7,952.95

$

8,749.98

$

9,391.42

$ 13,757.84

$ 10,259.00

$ 13,146.57

$ 15,097.06

SEP

TOTAL

$ 89,522.23

$117,269.08

$127,214.95

$147,356.62

$148,864.68

$173,071.43

8,169.93

$102,476.06

7,690.69

$126,089.80

$114,655.30

8,455.98

8,746.75

$ 95,477.59

$ 43,185.08

82.58% TOTAL

1/2 CENT USE TAXES RECEIVED

FY 2021 Actual to Budget
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FY13

FY14

FY15

FY16

FY17

FY18

FY19

FY20

FY21

2020 Adj.Feb.

CITY OF WARRENSBURG
3/8 CENT USE TEN YEAR COMPARISON
FY12

FY13

FY14

FY15

FY16

FY17

FY18

FY19

FY20

FY21

CHANGE

%

OCT

$ 3,872.18

$ 4,868.24

$ 3,202.35

$ 5,986.01

$ 5,361.79

$ 8,327.37

$

1,971.59

$

7,957.06

$

6,342.45

$ 11,416.73

$

5,074.28

80.01% OCT

NOV

$ 4,036.67

$ 5,588.20

$ 7,682.01

$ 7,156.86

$ 6,860.18

$ 9,686.92

$

6,498.29

$

9,744.54

$

7,198.64

$ 14,534.70

$

7,336.06

101.91% NOV

DEC

$ 5,886.88

$ 5,980.38

$ 7,317.38

$ 6,854.39

$ 8,538.73

$ 5,560.33

$

8,804.79

$

8,466.29

$

9,863.97

$ 10,726.88

$

862.91

8.75% DEC

JAN

$ 3,840.00

$ 4,578.42

$ 5,388.03

$ 7,280.21

$ 6,341.20

$ 6,592.23

$

6,461.84

$ 10,538.20

$

6,789.10

$ 12,890.64

$

6,101.54

89.87% JAN

9,020.32

$ 22,030.24

$ 13,009.92

144.23% FEB

FEB

$ 5,367.74

$ 7,562.35

$ 12,652.80

$ 17,932.11

$ 14,903.02

$ 11,242.20

$ 18,578.30

$ 11,543.38

$

MAR

$ 4,443.51

$ 6,156.87

$ 9,676.76

$ 7,399.76

$ 8,645.24

$ 7,858.02

$ 11,066.02

$ 18,201.38

$ 14,283.00

MAR

APR

$ 4,715.55

$ 6,023.85

$ 7,087.12

$ 6,304.81

$ 5,847.39

$ 7,078.42

$ 11,543.03

$

5,991.60

$

8,730.34

APR

MAY

$ 4,041.54

$ 5,785.89

$ 11,262.41

$ 5,721.80

$ 5,510.63

$ 6,284.91

$

8,703.58

$

5,109.64

$ 15,303.85

MAY

JUN

$ 6,609.71

$ 7,223.13

$ 5,068.72

$ 4,031.53

$ 6,208.07

$ 7,650.59

$

6,559.25

$

8,868.43

$ 15,593.79

JUN

JUL

$ 5,685.78

$ 6,222.33

$ 10,407.29

$ 5,701.06

$ 6,298.02

$ 7,378.63

$ 12,834.21

$

6,382.74

$ 12,423.51

JUL

AUG

$ 8,495.26

$ 5,363.27

$ 7,186.22

$ 5,050.51

$ 6,383.87

$ 7,422.58

$

9,789.46

$

8,972.62

$ 12,917.00

AUG

SEP

$ 5,723.79

$ 6,440.98

$ 5,963.97

$ 6,561.67

$ 7,042.69

$ 10,317.09

$

7,693.28

$

9,858.70

$ 11,321.38

SEP

TOTAL

$62,718.61

$71,793.91

$92,895.06

$85,980.72

$ 87,940.83

$ 95,399.29

$110,503.64

$111,634.58

$129,787.35

FY 2021 Actual to Budget
25000

$ 71,599.19

$ 32,384.71

82.58% TOTAL

3/8 CENT USE TAXES RECEIVED
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FY13

FY14

FY15

FY16

FY17

FY18

FY19

FY20

FY21

2020 Adj.Feb.

CITY OF WARRENSBURG
LAW ENFORCEMENT TEN YEAR COMPARISON
FY12

FY13

FY14

FY15

FY16

FY17

FY18

FY19

FY20

OCT

$ 55,646.53

$ 68,648.72

$ 49,734.02

$ 69,740.56

$ 73,177.08

$ 74,169.96

$ 70,492.57

$ 62,332.51

$ 71,710.54

$

FY21
79,577.66

$

CHANGE
7,867.12

NOV

$ 53,633.60

$ 55,212.92

$ 77,887.02

$ 63,532.50

$ 58,894.22

$ 55,595.27

$ 52,280.94

$ 59,911.16

$ 63,444.87

$

68,686.74

$

5,241.87

8.26% NOV

DEC

$ 68,590.40

$ 58,370.64

$ 65,709.45

$ 72,535.63

$ 79,184.98

$ 72,791.45

$ 100,119.52

$ 73,344.67

$ 71,772.51

$

87,141.65

$ 15,369.14

21.41% DEC

JAN

$ 58,621.47

$ 53,269.01

$ 61,204.89

$ 68,952.60

$ 62,138.58

$ 73,293.44

$ 55,325.38

$ 73,118.12

$ 72,310.87

$

81,012.60

$

FEB

$ 52,660.81

$ 55,330.96

$ 68,707.24

$ 61,982.30

$ 54,930.81

$ 53,749.36

$ 66,673.84

$ 66,817.69

$ 75,654.69

$

63,404.45

$ (12,250.24)

MAR

$ 63,526.08

$ 64,281.82

$ 59,850.51

$ 62,673.10

$ 83,803.95

$ 80,502.75

$ 92,142.87

$ 73,811.27

$ 69,821.52

MAR

APR

$ 72,355.32

$ 62,409.29

$ 64,069.15

$ 73,651.81

$ 67,565.62

$ 65,452.50

$ 74,151.28

$ 70,352.26

$ 79,816.54

APR

MAY

$ 45,732.81

$ 49,808.18

$ 77,051.67

$ 52,566.73

$ 57,599.71

$ 51,343.45

$ 58,958.71

$ 61,991.69

$ 64,713.00

MAY

8,701.73

%
10.97% OCT

12.03% JAN
-16.19% FEB

JUN

$ 64,469.03

$ 70,162.15

$ 67,583.98

$ 85,528.20

$ 84,711.15

$ 71,905.69

$ 73,249.53

$ 82,790.48

$ 85,248.59

JUN

JUL

$ 63,953.45

$ 73,007.64

$ 78,859.70

$ 74,596.87

$ 71,509.19

$ 85,628.15

$ 91,680.94

$ 77,897.41

$ 90,174.20

JUL

AUG

$ 55,074.31

$ 48,900.29

$ 58,419.92

$ 55,602.98

$ 58,375.82

$ 62,219.29

$ 65,662.95

$ 73,962.21

$ 86,525.80

AUG

SEP

$ 65,179.62

$ 79,282.17

$ 75,385.36

$ 81,916.16

$ 83,389.29

$ 74,742.70

$ 89,108.85

$ 89,310.51

$ 94,198.39

TOTAL

$719,443.43

$738,683.79

$804,462.91

$823,279.44

$835,280.40

$821,394.01

$889,847.38

$865,639.98

$925,391.52

SEP
$

379,823.10

$ 24,929.62

7.02% TOTAL

LAW ENFORCEMENT SALES TAXES RECEIVED

FY 2021 Actual to Budget
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0.07

100000

900,000

90000
0.06

S

800,000

80000

A
700,000

0.05

70000

FY 21 Actual

60000

0.04

50000
0.03

J

600,000

M

Budget
Difference

40000

J

Cumulative Dif

A

500,000

M
400,000

F

Cumulative % Dif
30000

D
N

200,000

20000

O

0.01

100,000

10000
0

-

0
OCT

3/4/2021

J

300,000

0.02

NOV

DEC

JAN

FY12

FEB

Page 7

FY13

FY14

FY15

FY16

FY17

FY18

FY19

FY20

FY21

CITY OF WARRENSBURG
MONTHLY REVENUE COMPARISON
as of 03/04/2021
February 2020

February 2021

Difference

%

Sales Tax
One Cent Sales
Half Cent Sales
3/8 Cent Sales
One Cent Use
Half Cent Use
3/8 Cent Use
Law Enforcement
Total

$283,194.65
$141,597.20
$104,477.05
$24,052.68
$12,028.59
$9,020.32
$75,654.69
$650,025.18

$255,833.14
$127,916.48
$95,693.61
$58,743.64
$29,377.33
$22,030.24
$63,404.45
$652,998.89

($27,361.51)
($13,680.72)
($8,783.44)
$34,690.96
$17,348.74
$13,009.92
($12,250.24)
$2,973.71

-9.66%
-9.66%
-8.41%
144.23%
144.23%
144.23%
-16.19%
0.46%

Franchise
*Cable
Electric
Gas
Telephone
Water
Total

$13,149.86
$118,639.22
$34,373.70
$15,683.65
$21,773.58
$203,620.01

$12,700.00
$118,650.54
$37,816.92
$10,988.59
$21,933.22
$202,089.27

($449.86)
$11.32
$3,443.22
($4,695.06)
$159.64
($1,530.74)

-3.42%
0.01%
10.02%
-29.94%
0.73%
-0.75%

Motor Vehicle
Motor Fuel
Vehicle Sales
Vehicle Fee
Total

$42,072.47
$13,726.41
$7,908.32
$63,707.20

$40,991.13
$13,974.37
$7,856.38
$62,821.88

($1,081.34)
$247.96
($51.94)
($885.32)

-2.57%
1.81%
-0.66%
-1.39%

Bond Property
Go Bond Fire
Go Bond Infra.
Total

$4,329.99
$13,917.83
$18,247.82

$1,527.93
$4,911.20
$6,439.13

($2,802.06)
($9,006.63)
($11,808.69)

-64.71%
-64.71%
-64.71%

Property
General Property
Parks Property
Total

$15,238.83
$8,278.30
$23,517.13

$14,945.25
$8,118.81
$23,064.06

($293.58)
($159.49)
($453.07)

-1.93%
-1.93%
-1.93%

Lodging Tax

$17,619.90

$14,549.56

($3,070.34)

-17.43%

Grand Total
* Estimated

$958,489.42

$955,523.66

($2,965.76)

-0.31%

Monthly Total Revenue Comparison

Monthly Percentage Revenue Comparison
February 2020 - 2021
Vehicle Fee,
$7,856.38

Go Bond Infra., $8,118.81
Go Bond Fire,
$14,945.25

General Property,
$14,549.56

Vehicle Sales,
$13,974.37

Motor Fuel, $40,991.13

Telephone , $10,988.59

Water,
$21,933.22

Gas, $37,816.92

One Cent Sales, $255,833.14

Electric, $118,650.54

Half Cent Sales, $127,916.48

*Cable, $12,700.00

February 2020 - 2021

$1,200,000

Law Enforcement, $63,404.45

$1,000,000
$800,000
$600,000
3/8 Cent Use, $22,030.24

$400,000

3/8 Cent Sales, $95,693.61
One Cent Use, $58,743.64
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$0
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Motor
Vehicle
February 2020

3/4/2021

Half Cent Use,
$29,377.33
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Property
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Tax

Grand
Total

February 2021
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CITY OF WARRENSBURG
MONTHLY REVENUE COMPARISON
as of 03/04/2021
Year to Date 2020 Year to Date 2021
Sales Tax
One Cent Sales
Half Cent Sales
3/8 Cent Sales
One Cent Use
Half Cent Use
3/8 Cent Use
Law Enforcement
Total

$1,396,814.29
$698,407.15
$508,360.74
$104,565.40
$52,292.51
$39,214.48
$354,893.48
$3,154,548.05

$1,436,594.41
$718,297.28
$523,888.57
$190,919.36
$95,477.59
$71,599.23
$379,823.10
$3,416,599.54

Franchise
*Cable
Electric
Gas
Telephone
Water
Total

$65,011.39
$658,130.87
$113,668.80
$87,011.10
$117,348.02
$1,041,170.18

$63,215.99
$611,563.77
$111,506.31
$69,770.51
$115,671.54
$971,728.12

Difference

Revenue Comparison Percentage

%

$39,780.12
$19,890.13
$15,527.83
$86,353.96
$43,185.08
$32,384.75
$24,929.62
$262,051.49

2.85%
2.85%
3.05%
82.58%
82.58%
82.58%
7.02%
8.31%

($1,795.40)
($46,567.10)
($2,162.49)
($17,240.59)
($1,676.48)
($69,442.06)

-2.76%
-7.08%
-1.90%
-19.81%
-1.43%
-6.67%

Motor Vehicle
Motor Fuel
Vehicle Sales
Vehicle Fee
Total

$215,605.12
$70,358.51
$36,289.77
$322,253.40

$205,645.05
$76,440.24
$37,409.55
$319,494.84

($9,960.07)
$6,081.73
$1,119.78
($2,758.56)

-4.62%
8.64%
3.09%
-0.86%

Bond Property
Go Bond Fire
Go Bond Infra.
Total

$235,953.83
$758,423.03
$994,376.86

$237,188.47
$762,391.51
$999,579.98

$1,234.64
$3,968.48
$5,203.12

0.52%
0.52%
0.52%

FYTD - February 2020 & 2021

Parks Property,
$404,641.74

General Property, $744,318.91

One Cent Sales, $1,436,594.41

Go Bond Infra., $762,391.51

Property
General Property
Parks Property
Total
Lodging Tax
Grand Total
* Estimated

$743,084.97
$403,671.47
$1,146,756.44

$744,318.91
$404,641.74
$1,148,960.65

$112,553.81

$96,336.19

$5,777,281.88

$5,953,119.34

$1,233.94
$970.27
$2,204.21
($16,217.62)
$175,837.46

0.17%
0.24%
0.19%

Half Cent Sales, $718,297.28

-14.41%
Go Bond Fire, $237,188.47

3.04%

Revenue Comparison Total
FYTD - February 2020 & 2021

Vehicle Fee,
$37,409.55

$7,000,000

Vehicle Sales,
$76,440.24

$6,000,000

3/8 Cent Sales, $523,888.57

Motor Fuel,
$205,645.05

$5,000,000
Water, $115,671.54

$4,000,000

Telephone , $69,770.51

$3,000,000

Gas, $111,506.31
One Cent Use, $190,919.36

Electric, $611,563.77

$2,000,000

Law Enforcement,
$379,823.10

$1,000,000
*Cable, $63,215.99

$0
Sales Tax Franchise

Motor
Vehicle

Year to Date 2020

3/4/2021

Bond
Property

Property

Lodging
Tax

Grand
Total

Year to Date 2021
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Half Cent Use, $95,477.59

3/8 Cent Use, $71,599.23

CITY OF WARRENSBURG
MONTHLY REVENUE COMPARISON
as of 03/04/2021
2021 Budget

Year to Date 2021

Difference

$3,301,205.00
$1,615,000.00
$1,163,750.00
$332,500.00
$178,000.00
$131,000.00
$826,500.00
$7,547,955.00

$1,436,594.41
$718,297.28
$523,888.57
$190,919.36
$95,477.59
$71,599.23
$379,823.10
$3,416,599.54

($1,864,610.59)
($896,702.72)
($639,861.43)
($141,580.64)
($82,522.41)
($59,400.77)
($446,676.90)
($4,131,355.46)

56.48%
55.52%
54.98%
42.58%
46.36%
45.34%
54.04%
54.73%

Franchise
Cable
Electric
Gas
Telephone
Water
Total

$163,000.00
$1,525,000.00
$267,000.00
$276,000.00
$276,000.00
$2,507,000.00

$63,215.99
$611,563.77
$111,506.31
$69,770.51
$115,671.54
$971,728.12

($99,784.01)
($913,436.23)
($155,493.69)
($206,229.49)
($160,328.46)
($1,535,271.88)

61.22%
59.90%
58.24%
74.72%
58.09%
61.24%

$430,000.00
$135,000.00
$73,500.00
$638,500.00

$205,645.05
$76,440.24
$37,409.55
$319,494.84

($224,354.95)
($58,559.76)
($36,090.45)
($319,005.16)

52.18%
43.38%
49.10%
49.96%

$252,000.00
$798,000.00
$1,050,000.00

$237,188.47
$762,391.51
$999,579.98

($14,811.53)
($35,608.49)
($50,420.02)

5.88%
4.46%
4.80%

Motor Vehicle
Motor Fuel
Vehicle Sales
Vehicle Fee
Total
Bond Property
Go Bond Fire
Go Bond Infra.
Total

Revenue to Budget Comparison Percentage

% Remaining

Sales Tax
One Cent Sales
Half Cent Sales
3/8 Cent Sales
One Cent Use
Half Cent Use
3/8 Cent Use
Law Enforcement
Total

FYTD - February 2021

Parks Property,
$404,641.74

General Property, $744,318.91

One Cent Sales, $1,436,594.41

Go Bond Infra., $762,391.51

Property
General Property
Parks Property
Total
Lodging Tax
Grand Total

$775,000.00
$425,000.00
$1,200,000.00

$744,318.91
$404,641.74
$1,148,960.65

($30,681.09)
($20,358.26)
($51,039.35)

3.96%
4.79%
4.25%

$215,000.00

$96,336.19

($118,663.81)

55.19%

$12,108,455.00

$5,953,119.34

($6,155,335.66)

50.84%

Half Cent Sales, $718,297.28

Go Bond Fire, $237,188.47

Revenue to Budget Comparison Total
FYTD - February 2021

Vehicle Fee, $37,409.55

$14,000,000

Vehicle Sales, $76,440.24

$12,000,000

3/8 Cent Sales, $523,888.57

Motor Fuel,
$205,645.05

$10,000,000
Water, $115,671.54

$8,000,000

Telephone , $69,770.51

$6,000,000

Gas, $111,506.31

$4,000,000

One Cent Use, $190,919.36

Electric, $611,563.77
Law Enforcement,
$379,823.10

Half Cent Use, $95,477.59

$2,000,000
3/8 Cent Use, $71,599.23
Cable, $63,215.99

$0
Sales Tax

Franchise

Motor
Vehicle

2021 Budget

3/4/2021

Bond
Property

Property Lodging Tax Grand Total

Year to Date 2021
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